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Together with our partner banks,
we work every day for millions
of customers and businesses.
We work to make every payment
digital, because it is simpler, safer
and more practical for everyone.
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Letter from the Chairman

and the Chief Executive O

Dear Shareholders,

2017 was an intense year for the Nexi Group, in which the transforma-
tion process launched in 2016 continued; in February, the 2017/2021
Business Plan of the Group was approved, which has the strategic
objective of increasingly becoming the reference company for the
evolution of the country towards digital payments, achieving a signi-
ficant growth in profitability and contributing positively to the deve-
lopment of the country.

The board of directors and the new management team worked with
determination to improve the organizational efficiency of the Group,
directing a greater focus on the structures, improving customer
orientation and efficacy of the decision-making process.

In November, Nexi was created from the CartaSi and ICBPI experien-
ce; therefore, an important rebranding project was completed, aimed
at renewing the two historical brands ICBPI and CartaSi, which had
by now little connotations to support the ongoing evolution of the
activities. The project led to the change of the corporate names of
ICBPI and CartaSi to “Nexi” and “Nexi Payments” respectively, more
responsive to the Group’s present and future plans and activities, and
more consistent with the current positioning of the two companies in
the digital payment market. The new brand, which wants to convey
the projection towards the future and the proximity to our clients, was
launched on 10 November 2017 with a series of events involving insti-
tutional representatives, partner banks and commercial stakeholders.
As part of the Group’s growth and development strategy, also exter-
nally in the e-money market, important acquisitions were completed,
some of which were already launched in the previous year.

The acquisition of the business units relating to the merchant acqui-
ring activities of Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena and Deutsche Bank
Italia was therefore initiated.

The 100% acquisition of Bassilichi S.p.A., the parent company of the
Bassilichi Group, specialized in the area of payments and services for
businesses, was then completed.

In the second half of the year, the transfer, to CSE (Consorzio Servizi
Bancari), of the Nexi business unit active in providing transfer agent
services for pension funds was also completed.

These transactions were carried out in a context of greater dynamism
of the Italian economy, which saw a1.5% CDP growth.

The awakening of the economy has favoured Italian banks, especially
as regards loans to the private sector, the improvement of credit quality
and the reduction of the weight of impaired loans. There was also an
increase in profitability and a significant strengthening of capital ratios.
In reference to the markets in which the Group operates, the pay-
ments system remains dominated by cash, thus offering further de-
velopment opportunities, but the digital payments sector is going
through a phase of expansion, characterized by growth in all product
segments.

The Group intends to drive this growth by supporting the banking
system in the payment innovation process through important invest-
ments in technology so that banks can be increasingly competitive
even in the digitalisation sector, obtaining benefits in terms of innova-
tion and customer relations.

Chairman
Franco Bernabé

N ean B (-

ncer

This year, several new activities have already been carried out that go
precisely in this direction. In November 2017 an instant bank tran-
sfer was launched called Instant Payment, which allows funds to be
transferred in less than 10 seconds. In the micropayment sector, an
initiative was launched that will eliminate, in 2018, commissions for
transactions of less than Euro 10. A new international debt product has
been released on the market, the first CVM campaigns have been lau-
nched with the banks, the prepaid card portfolio has been expanded
and the new black contactless aluminium credit card has been laun-
ched, dedicated to a specific customer segment.

In the merchant services sector, the new app has been launched that
allows merchants full control of their collections as well as a compari-
son of the business trend towards their respective competitors.

Total assets under management (AuM) of the Italian asset manage-
ment sector reached about Euro 2,300 billion in the third quarter of
2017. The evolutionary scenarios of the next years foresee a continua-
tion of growth with the possibility of achieving an average annual in-
crease of 8% by 2020.

In 2017 the Croup prepared the first non-financial statement, an
important tool not only to respond to the requirements of Decree
254/2016 but also to share the social and environmental initiatives
and activities of its work with stakeholders. Therefore, Nexi decided to
start a structured and organic sustainability process.

The challenge is to grow, through continuous commitment to gene-
rate positive change that everyone can benefit from, promoting ini-
tiatives and simple and innovative solutions that are able to simplify
the life of citizens, encourage business development, improve the ef-
ficiency of public administration and support, therefore, the growth of
the country system and in general of the society in which we live and
of which Nexi feels to be a responsible player.

The economic results achieved by the Nexi Group and Nexi in 2017
are positive, both as a whole and in comparison with those of the pre-
vious year.

The 2017 financial year closed with a consolidated EBITDA of € 304 mil-
lion compared to € 2273 million in 2016, with a contribution of € 34.5
million associated with new acquisitions. Consolidated net profit for
the period amounted to € 791 million, compared to a result of € 104
million in 2016, having incurred significant expenses associated with
the important transformation and reorganization process. Sharehol-
ders’” equity totalled € 2050.8 million compared to € 2,059 million as
at 31 December 2016.

2017, for the Bank, reported an EBITDA of € 145.2 million compared to
€1216 million in 2016; the Company presents a profit for the year of €
895 million compared to a 2016 profit of € 84.2 million. Shareholders’
equity amounted to € 2033.3 million compared to € 2,049.8 million in
December 2016.

The growth prospects for 2018 remain favourable thanks to the cur-
rent economic scenario which confirms a strengthening of the signs
of recovery and a return of confidence to pre-recession levels.

We are working hard and energetically to boost the 2017-2021 Busi-
ness Plan and the transformation process of the Group, evaluating all
the opportunities that the market offers, aware of the importance of
the challenges that await us but aware of our potential and ability to
operate in the interest of the system, our clients, our shareholders and
our people.

CEO
Paolo Bertoluzzo
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at 21 March 2018
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Shareholders’” Meeting Call

The Shareholders are convened to the ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting in Milan, Corso Sempione no. 55, on 24 April 2018 at 3.00
p.m. first call and, if required, on 26 April 2018, at 5.00 p.m. second call, same place, in order to discuss the following

AGENDA

1. Financial statements as at 31 December 2017, Report on Operations of the Board of Directors; reports of the Board of Statutory
Auditors and the Auditing Company; related resolutions.

2. Appointment of the Board of Directors after determining the number and term of office of the directors. Determination of
related fees; related resolutions.

3. Appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors and its Chairman. Determination of related fees; related resolutions.

4 Remuneration policies of the Nexi Group; related resolutions.






REPORTS AND
CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2017 Reports and Consolidated
Financial Statements

Banking group
structure

As at 31 December 2017 the structure of the
Banking Group was as follows:

Nexi S.p.A. (Formerly ICBPIS.P.A))
Parent Company, registered in the National
Register of Banks.

Nexi Payments S.p.A.

(Formerly CartaSiS.p.A)

Financial company registered in the Register of
Payment Institutions pursuant to Art. T14-sep-
ties of the Consolidated Banking Act, in which
the Parent Company has a 98.745% stake.

HELP LINE S.P.A.
Service company in which the Parent Compa-
ny has a 70% stake.

OASI DIAGRAM — OUTSOURCING APPLICA-
TIVO E SERVIZI INNOVATIVIS.P.A.

Service company, 100% owned by the Parent
Company.

BASSILICHI S.P.A.
Service company, 100% owned by the Parent
Company.

MONEYNET S.P.A.

Financial company registered in the Nation-
al Register of Payment Institutions pursuant
to art. 114-septies of the Consolidated Bank-
ing Act, indirectly held 100% by the Parent
Company through Bassilichi S.p.A, with a
61% stake and by Consorzio Triveneto S.p.A.,
with a 39% stake.

CONSORZIO TRIVENETO S.P.A.

Service company, 100% owned by the Parent
Company, directly with a 3575% stake and in-
directly through Bassilichi S.p.A. with a stake
of 64.25%.

BASSMART S.R.L.

Service company, indirectly owned 95% by
the Parent Company and directly owned with
a 95% stake through Bassilichi S.p.A.

ARSBLUE D.O.O.

Service company under Serbian law, indirect-
ly held 40.8% by the Parent Company through
Bassilichi CEE.

BASSILICHI CEE D.O.O. BELGRADO

Service company under Serbian law, indirectly
80% owned by the Parent Company through
Bassilichi S.p.A.

BASSILICHI CEE D.O.O. BANJA LUKA

Service company under Bosnian law, indirect-
ly held 100% by the Parent Company through
Bassilichi CEE D.o.o. Belgrade.

BASSILICHI CEE D.O.O. PODGORICA

Service company of Montenegrin law, indi-
rectly 100% owned by the Parent Company
through Bassilichi CEE D.o.o. Belgrade.



Scope of
consolidation

The scope of consolidation of the Nexi Group as
at 31 December 2017 includes, besides the Group
companies, the following:

o Hi-MtfSI.M.Sp.A, inwhich the Parent Com-
pany has a 25% stake.

e Unione Fiduciaria S.p.A., in which the Parent
Company has a 24% stake.

e Win Join S.Cons.a r.l. in which Bassilichi S.p.A.
has a 24% stake.

e Rs Records Store S.p.A. in which Bassilichi
S.p.A.has a30% stake.

e ICT Logistica S.p.A. in which Bassilichi S.p.A.
has a 33% stake.

o BASSNET S.rl. in which Bassilichi has a 49,68
S.p.A. stake.

o K.RedS.rl inwhich Bassilichi S.p.A. has a 50%
stake.

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MEXI -09

Prudential scope
of consolidation

The Company Mercury UK HoldCo Ltd, is at the
top of the prudential scope of consolidation
The scope also includes:

e LatinoltalySrl;

o Mercury Payment Services S.p.A.






BOARD OF DIRECTORS" REPORT
ON BANKING GROUP OPERATIONS

2017
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Board of Directors’ Report
on Banking Group Operations

International economy

In 2017 the growth rate of the world economy
accelerated to 3.2%, from 2.5% in 2016, thanks
to the reawakening of investments, which
benefited from the recovery in profits and from
the persistent expansion of monetary policies.
In particular, in the United States, GDP grew

by 2.3% (vs.15% in the previous year), with a
positive return on investments (from -0.6% to
47%) — made possible from the recovery of
profits after the contraction reported in the pre-
vious year - while consumption maintained the
same pace of 2016 (2.7%). In Japan, GDP grew
by 1.8% (vs. 09%), driven both by investments
(from 0.6% to 3.0%) - stimulated by the decisive
surge in profits - and by consumption (from
01%t01.2%). In the Eurozone, CDP growth rose
to 2.4% (from 1.8%), thanks to the recovery in
investments (from 3.6% to 44%) and exports
(from 2.8% to 5.0%), while consumption slowed
slightly (from 2.0% to 19%). Higher growth al-
lowed unemployment rates to drop significant-
ly, decreasing from 4.7% to 4.1% in the US, from
31% t0 2.8% in Japan and from 97% to 8.7% in
the Eurozone.

Inflation at the global level rose by one percent-
age point to 34%, reflecting the rise in raw mate-
rial prices. Specifically, the change in consumer
prices increased from 13% to 21% in the United
States, from -01% to 0.5% in Japan and from 0.2%
to 1.5% in the Eurozone. Net of the most volatile
energy and food prices, it has fallen from 2.2% to
1.8% in the US and from 04% to -01% in Japan,
while it has slightly risen from 09% to 1.0% - in
the Eurozone.

............................................................

1 Source Banca d’ltalia

Italian economy

ltaly has benefited from the greater liveliness of
the world economy, with GDP growing by 15%
(vs. 09% in 2016), although a large gap persists
with the rest of the Eurozone. The recovery was
driven by exports (whose pace rose from 24%
to 5.2%) and by investments (from 2.8% to 34%),
while consumption growth remained stable (at
1.5%). The labour market benefited from the re-
covery, with the unemployment rate dropping
by one percentage point to 10.8%.

Inflation rose to 1.2% (vs. -01%), due to the in-
crease in raw material prices. On the other hand,
net of the most volatile components, it fell to
0.5% (vs. 0.7%), against a wage trend that re-
mained stable at moderate levels (at 0.6%).

Reference markets

The following section provides some informa-
tion about the markets in which the Nexi Group
operates.

E-money

In the Italian market of Electronic Money, cash
still plays the dominant role. In 2016, 95 transac-
tions per capita were executed with non-cash
instruments, compared to 215 of the Eurozone
(Bank of Italy elaboration on ECB, BRI and Poste
Italiane sources).

The payment card industry is going through a
phase of development, characterized by the
growth of all types of products, but which relies
mainly on debt and prepaid products.

During 2016, the market for POS enabled deb-
it card grew: both in terms of number of cards
(+6.8%) and use (volumes +11.8%, transactions



+13.6%). Prepaid products slowed the decisive
expansion of recent vyears, in particular due to
the number of cards in circulation (+3.7%), while
volumes (18.5%) and transactions (+23.5%) re-
main robust. Credit cards increased as a number
(+0.3%), but the active ones fell by 2.2%; the use
of these cards increased (volumes +59%, trans-
actions +9.8%).

The Nexi estimates for the market in 2017 see in-
ternational volumes (VISA + MasterCard) up by
12.6%, with a significant, growing contribution
from prepaid and international debit cards, whose
POS volumes have increased by 24.2%; in particu-
lar, prepaid by 175%, international debt by 30.6%.
Credit increased by 6.3%: the Classic segment by
6.2%, Commercial by 73%, Premium by 54%.

As for the revolving segment, there was an in-
crease? of +84% in volumes financed through
revolving credit cards in 2017

Payment systems

Clobally and in the Eurozone, the trend in the
use of alternative cash instruments is growing
rapidly: between 2005 and 20715, in the Eurozone,
transactions rose from 166 to 215 (2.9 per cent on
average per year). The use of cards, which are
more directly compared to cash at points of sale,
has increased considerably: in the same period,
the percentage of cards on total transactions
with alternative means to cash increased from
30.1to 43.7 percent.

In the international comparison, Italy is char-
acterized by a low number of transactions with
instruments other than cash: in 2015, 88 trans-
actions per capita in Italy (92 in 2016) compared
to an average figure of 215 in the Area. However,
the use of these instruments in Italy shows high
growth: on average, in the period 2012-2015, pay-
ment card transactions increased by 14.7 percent
compared to 77 in the Area.

In the next few years, globally, the affirmation of
electronic payments (E-payments and mobile
payments)is expected. Itis estimated that E-pay-
ments will grow at an average annual rate of 17.6%
and mobile payments by 21.8% from 2015-2019,
driven by the adoption of the Instant Payments
and the strong growth that will be recorded in
emerging markets. Attention is focused in par-
ticular on Instant Payments, increasingly consid-
ered by the Observatories to be one of the main
phenomenain the “war on cash”.

............................................................

2 Source Assofin

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MNEXI

Specifically, in Europe and in Italy, the Payment
Service Providers (PSP) and the European ACHs
are creating products and services that will take
advantage of the new infrastructure for the man-
agement of retail payments in “instant” mode,
adopting as much as possible to the current
SEPA schemes. The European Central Bank will
activate a pan-European “Instant” tool (TIPS) at
the end of 2018. In light of this complex scenario,
it is worth pointing out that, as has already hap-
pened for SEPA, the success of these initiatives
will be determined by the ability of the European
System to activate, in advance, robust and effi-
cient mechanisms of interoperability among the
qualified operators, desired and urged by the Eu-
ropean Legislator.

The digital revolution will inevitably also reflect
on B2B-like payment processes, where compa-
nies will be able to considerably improve their
management processes in the “financial” and
“supply” segments and encourage the evolution
of their business also through new and innova-
tive procedures of collection and payment.

It should be noted that the strengthening of
electronic invoicing and Instant payments is one
of the main areas of efficiency improvement for
companies.

The complex European regulatory framework
aimed at standardizing payment processes, miti-
gating risks, expanding competition and general
system innovation is having a significant influ-
ence on the operating and business models of
Payment Service Providers (PSP) and, more gen-
erally, stakeholders interested in the subject.

In particular, the new Directive (EU) 2015/2366
(so-called PSD 2) on retail payments that should
be implemented by each Member State by 2018,
expanding the issues of the previous regulato-
ry provision (PSD), opens the payment services
market also to new non-bank subjects, so-called
TPP (Third Part Payment), with which, as already
mentioned, the European banking industry will
also need to face.

It is clear that, in the coming years, there will be
a tendency to harmonize, in terms of requla-
tion and collaboration, the needs and activities
of bank PSPs and those so-called TPP/FinTechs,
in order to provide customers with better and
cheaper products.

-13



14-

NEeXI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

It should be noted that the CBI Consortium, the
ABI issuing body for the management of pay-
ment systems between companies, is imple-
menting a system interbank gateway, with which
the participating banks will be able to provide
the TPP with the basic services required by PSD2.
To create this gateway, Nexi has been selected
by the CBI Consortium as a reference provider
through a call for tenders.

Individual Managed
Portfolios

Total assets under management (AuM) of the Ital-
ian asset management industry reached about
Euro 2,300 billion in the third quarter of 2017.

The evolutionary scenarios of the coming years
foresee a continuation of growth with the pos-
sibility of reaching Euro 2,900 billion in AuM by
2020, with an average annual growth of 8%.

The main driver behind the growth assumptions
of Asset Management in Italy is given by the
expectation of the growth in the wealth invest-
ment level in savings products in order to align
Italy with the European average. In 2016, the
AUM value of the Italian sector was equal to 70%
of GDP, against 132% of the European average.
The percentage of the financial wealth of Ital-
ian households invested in asset management
products was 31% in 2016, with a strong increase
compared to 22% in 2008 but still far from the
European average of 44%.

The progressive approach of Italian indicators to
the averages of the other European countries
will lead to the growth of the industry, regardless
of cyclical factors such as the performance of
stock market indices.

Among the savings products, Pension Funds
will have a particular boost, for which a growth
of more than 8% per year and higher than the
market average is expected. Open-end pension
funds will be incentivized both by the specific tax
regime and by the uncertainties related to public
pension schemes.

Within the mutual funds, the progressive in-
crease of the market share of Foreign Law and
Roundetrip funds is confirmed, whose share in the
market for mutual funds in Italy is estimated to
be higher than 70% in the coming years. Among
the growth drivers, we must certainly consider
the emergence of ETFs, currently on the market
only as funds under foreign law.

Dear Shareholders,

2017 ended with a consolidated Net Profit of
Euro 791 million, compared to a Net Profit of
Euro 104.0 million in 2016.

Shareholders’ equity reached Euro 2,050.8 mil-
lion, compared to Euro 2,0591 million as at 31 De-
cember 2016.

These are positive economic results, both overall
as well as with respect to the previous year, and
were attained in a macroeconomic scenario of
recovery that is still weak.

Operating revenue amounts to € 8559 million.
Consolidated EBITDA is equal to Euro 304.0 mil-
lion, 33.7% against € 2273 million in 2016.

Group evolution

In 2017, the Group’s growth and development
strategy continued, also externally, in the
E-money market.

In particular, significant acquisitions were com-
pleted, some of which were already launched in
2016.

In June, following the necessary authorizations
from the competent Supervisory Authorities,
acquisitions of the business units relating to the
merchant acquiring activities of Banca Monte
dei Paschi di Siena and Deutsche Bank Italia were
completed.

In July, the acquisition of 100% of Bassilichi S.p.A.,
the parent company of the Bassilichi Group, an
operator specialized in payments and servic-
es for businesses, for which an agreement was
signed at the end of 2016, was completed.

Lastly, in December, the sale of the business unit
active in the provision of transfer agent services
for pension funds was finalized to CSE Consorzio
Servizi Bancari, with which a preliminary agree-
ment was signed in October.

2017-2021 Business plan

During the meeting held on 9 February 2017 the
Parent Company Board of Directors approved the
Group 2017/2021 Business Plan, which is based on
the quidelines that had already been discussed
and approved by the board on 22 June 2016.

The ambition of this Plan is to make the Croup
the national leader in digital payments, reaching
the scale necessary to invest in technology, ser-
vices, skills with the aim of growing faster than
the market, guiding the development of digital
payments in ltaly together with partner banks
and, in particular, to pursue a significant increase
in profitability.



This growth strategy focuses on payments and is
based on four fundamental pillars:

1. Organic growth, on the various business units,
through real product leadership and customer
experience leadership together with partner
banks, accelerating the shift from cash to dig-
ital payments;

2. Inorganic growth with targeted acquisitions
in the payments sector to encourage scale
growth and skills development more rapidly;

3. Strong investments in technological excel-
lence, in skills, in the commercial area and in
partnerships with banks;

4. Focus on efficiency and on the concentration
of resources also to finance investments, sig-
nificantly reducing costs in areas with lower
growth impact and disposal of non-strategic
activities.

The Plan sees a digital transformation of the
Group and initiatives aimed at implementing
innovative projects that allow, on the one hand,
the offer of services designed to meet the most
technologically advanced needs of the market
and, on the other, to identify the best invest-
ment opportunities both in already established
companies and in start-ups.

The key objectives of the Plan include the revi-
sion of the Group’s corporate structure to make
the legal structure of the individual components
consistent with the nature of the business actu-
ally performed.

To this end, on 16 October 2017, the Board of Di-
rectors initially approved the overall and general
framework of a corporate reorganization project
of the banking group controlled by Nexi S.p.A.
and the other subsidiaries of Mercury UK Hold-
Co Ltd aimed at separating, within the group,
the technological and digital payments activities
from those connected to the banking license,
eliminating the existing competitive disadvan-
tages with respect to competitors and increasing
overall efficiency.

The reorganization therefore sees the creation of:
Nexi Payments (Imel), National champion of
digital payments:

- focused exclusively onits core business and on
the development of related technology

- with a flexible corporate structure able to sup-
port additional investments (e.g. IT and pay-
ment infrastructure) and future M&A activities

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MNEXI

- with better access to the capital market thanks
to the lower risk perceived by them for the ac-
tivities related to digital payments compared to
regulated banking activities.

Nexi (bank), with a simplified organizational
structure and a greater focus on banking servic-
es such as:

= Securities Services

-“Settlement” to be offered through ajoint com-
mercial offer between Nexi and Nexi Payments.

At the start of 2018, the Boards of Directors of
Nexi and Nexi Payments definitively approved
the project that was submitted to the compe-
tent Supervisory Authorities for the necessary
authorizations.

Rebranding

As part of the Group transformation process, a
rebranding project was launched, involving both
the Parent Company and CartaSi, motivated by
the need to renew the two brands with conno-
tations more related to the past rather than the
future and to instruments connected to digital
payments.

The Parent Company Board of Directors has
therefore undertaken a process of assessing
the adequacy of the company name of the two
companies with respect to the reference mar-
ket, the outcome of which showed that the pre-
vious business names, excessively related to the
past and, however, little known by the public to
whom they addressed, were unsuitable to sup-
port the ongoing evolution of the activities.

In light of these results, a research phase for a
new company name was launched, also verify-
ing the appreciation of the potential names with
consumers and merchants.

Having taken note of the analysis on the adequacy
of the two names and deemed appropriate to up-
date the brands to the Group’s present and future
plans and activities, the Parent Company Board
resolved to change the name of ICBPI to “Nexi
S.p.A” and CartaSi to “Nexi Payments S.p.A”, as it
is more consistent with the current positioning of
the companies in the digital payments market.

On 25 October 2017, the Shareholders” Meet-
ings of ICBPI and CartaSi, extraordinary meeting,
therefore resolved to change their respective

-15



16-

NEeXI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

company names with effect from 10 November
2017, consequently amending the Articles of As-
sociations.

Nexi S.p.A., with effect from 10 November 2017,
also transferred its registered office to Milan,
Corso Sempione 55.

On the occasion of the launch of the new brand,
a series of events were organized in Milan and
Rome, attended by institutional representatives,
partner banks and commercial stakeholders.
Various activities were launched to spread the
new brand across the press and digital media.

Governance and control
structures

On 27 July 2017, following the acquisition of Bas-
silichi S.p.A., the Chairman of the Nexi Payments
Board of Directors, Franco Bernabe, resigned
from the position of Chairman, maintaining the
role of board member. The Board therefore re-
solved to co-opt as Board Member and Chair-
man of the Board of Directors, Marco Bassilichi,
subsequently confirmed by the Shareholders’
Meeting held in the ordinary session on 25 Oc-
tober 2017, until the approval date of the financial
statements as of 31 December 2018.

Group internal
Audit system

In 2017, the projects to develop the Group In-
ternal Control Systemn continued in line with the
evolution of the reference legislation.

The Audit Department, in continuity with the
development activities of its control model, car-
ried out further evolutionary measures in the
areas of finalizing and managing the “Remedial
Actions” emerged in the audits, developing fur-
ther operational reports useful for the analysis
and monitoring of the actions also by the Man-
agement involved. The actions implemented are
ina process of improving the effectiveness of the
audit action also through a more direct correla-
tion with the main business risks.

Furthermore, the acquisition by Nexi of the Bas-
silichi scope involved the revision of the Govern-
ance systems and the Organizational and Oper-
ating Model of the Group subject to evaluation
of the Internal Control System (SCI - Sistema dei
Controlli Interni). In this context, the Audit Func-

tion initiated and conducted a project to evolve
the SCI Overall Evaluation Framework and to
extend the scope of analysis consistent with the
new corporate structure.

Lastly, the fine-tuning activities of the set of
“Remote Controls” continued, which the Audit
Function had implemented in compliance with
the requirements of the Supervisory Authorities.
In this context, a new set of remote controls was
also identified in the “E-money” area, which will
be developed in the 2018 financial year.

The Compliance Department of the Parent
Company, which continuously monitors the
rules with regard to all company activities ac-
cording to a “risk based” approach, updated the
regulatory scope during the vear applicable to
the Nexi Group in order to incorporate both reg-
ulatory changes and the expansion of the corpo-
rate scope as a result of company acquisitions.

Within the companies of the former Bassilichi
Group, for which there is currently a decentral-
ized management model for the control func-
tions, the method for measuring the non-com-
pliance risk used by the Parent Company
Compliance Department is being implemented.

Furthermore, during the year, activities were
launched aimed at the implementation of the
Directive (EU) 2015/849 within the Group con-
cerning the prevention of the use of the financial
system for the purposes of money laundering or
terrorist financing (so-called “IV AML Directive”),
Directive 2015/2366/(EU) on payment services in
the internal market (so-called PSD2), EU Requ-
lation 2016/679 on data protection (so-called
GDPR) and Directive 2014/65/EU relating to the
markets for financial instruments (so-called Mi-
FIDII).

The IT tools in support of the Department are
also being improved, also with reference to the
self-assessment exercise of the risks of money
laundering and financing of terrorism.

Risk governance

Also, in 2017, the activity carried out by the Risk
Management Department had the aim to sup-
port Management in view of a prudent and ef-
fective management of the company business,
while ensuring full compatibility with the risk
governance process, through the definition and
compliance with the risk tolerance defined in
the Risk Appetite Framework.



The Risk Appetite Framework was subject to the
annual review in line with the changed context
of the Group and with the new Business Plan;
work continued on the regulatory adapta-
tion and fine-tuning of the methods, systems
and processes for measuring corporate risks;
the project initiatives were analysed, some of
which were classified as Significant Transac-
tions (OMR - Operazioni di Maggior Rilievo),
related to the development of new products/
services for all the Group companies; as re-
gards operational risk, the planned Risk Con-
trol Self-Assessment of the operational pro-
cesses was carried out and the methodology
of IT risk analysis was revised, based on the
new IT strateqgy; Lastly, the new Recovery Plan
was prepared, a document requested from the
Banks under the Banking Recovery and Reso-
lution Directive (BRRD), and the new Liquidity
Plan, prepared according to the ILAAP guide-
lines (Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment
Process) issued by the EBA.

Nexi group organisational
structure

In line with the transformation process already
started in 2016, during the vyear, the activities
aimed at achieving the organizational efficiency
necessary to finance investments and achieve
the strategic objectives of the 2017-2021 Business
Plan were completed.

In particular, with the changes to the Group or-
ganizational structure completed in May and
November 2017 the implementation of the
Group organizational model was completed,
concentrating on a greater focus of the struc-
tures, improving customer orientation and sim-
plifying the decision-making process.

The main additions and changes to the organi-
zational structures, as regards the Parent Com-
pany, include:

o the establishment of the Initiatives Commit-
tee in order to support the decision-making
process regarding the implementation of new
project initiatives relevant to the Group;

o the assignment also of the Recovery Commit-
tee function to the Operational Risk Commit-
tee, pursuant to the BRRD (Bank Recovery and
Resolution Directive);
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e the centralization of the activities previously
carried out by the CFO of Nexi Payments, the
transfer of the three organizational units of
the Securities Services Institutional Sales Trad-
ing, Market Making and Middle Office to the
Treasury unit, and the establishment of the
Post Merger Integration (PMI) organizational
unit; Project Governance for the management
and integration of the Group’s industrial and
strategic activities;

e the establishment and specialization of the
CISO function in the CIO Area, which includes
all the management activities related to IT se-
curity and Business Continuity in a dedicated
area;

e the establishment of the IT Governance &
Strategy function in the CIO Area to oversee
the activities relating to architectures, the
management of the project portfolio and the
operational management of contracts with
outsourcers;

e the assignment of the CIO Area of software de-
velopment and maintenance activities to the
Payments & CBI competence center, related to
Interbank Corporate Banking and other Ban-
ca-Impresa services previously allocated to the
corresponding BU;

e actions in the CIO Area for the optimization
of the monitoring of new strategic projects (IT
Strategy) through:

- the creation of the new M&A and Corporate
Systems Competence Center which, in addi-
tion to including the activities overseen by
the current Corporate Systems function, as-
sumes responsibility for the implementation
of new application solutions required for ex-
traordinary transactions that impact on “cor-
porate systems”;

- the review of the Merchant Services Compe-
tence Center structure which is divided into
the following organizational units: Business
Architecture, Switch, On Boarding & CRM Ac-
quiring, POS and Acquiring Core Platforms;

- the establishment in the Digital Competence
Center of the Digital Architecture function
with the task of defining and developing the
architectures in the “digital” and “data” areas;

- the creation in the IT Service Management
and Infrastructures segment of the new Net-
work unit with the task of defining and devel-
oping solutions for the network infrastruc-
ture to support all the CIO Area Competence
Centers.
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The main changes to the organizational struc-
ture of Nexi Payments, in addition to the afore-
mentioned changes to the structure of the CFO,
concerned:

e the establishment of the supervision of E-Com-
merce activities in the Merchant Services BU,
and a staff unit dedicated to the development
of partnerships in the Electronic Cash Regis-
ter segment; the separation of the Marketing
and Customer Value Management activities to
allow greater focus on the aspects of compe-
tence;

e the creation of the ATM BU, an integral part of
the Payments & ATM BU located in the Parent
Company and coordinated by it, geared to
the needs of Banking customers in relation to
ATMs;

e the centralization of the Payments Services
bank network and the Nexi Tender Office in
the Merchant Services BU. The Management
also revised its organizational model with a
view to streamlining network support struc-
tures and further strengthening the monitor-
ing of partnerships with banks;

e the review of the internal organization of the
Operations Department in order to support
the review of some key processes with a view to
improving production efficiency and to better
adhere to the organizational model of the Busi-
ness Units. In particular, two vertical operation-
al units were created, dedicated respectively to
the provision of specific services for merchants
(Operations Merchant Services) and specific
services for cardholders (Operations Issuing);

e within the Business Development Department,
in order to better adhere to the organizational
model of the Business Units, the Mobile Prod-
ucts organizational unit was split into two units
dedicated respectively to the Issuing and Mer-
chant Services business lines.

As for Help Line, the most significant changes
include:

e the introduction of the CEO position, a role
that replaces that of the General Manager;

o the elimination of, with a view to simplifying
and rationalizing support activities, functions in
the “Covernance and Support” staff, “Report-
ing and ICT”, “Customer Relationship, Quiality
and Design” and “Planning and Monitoring’,
whose activities have been part centralized in
the Parent Company structures, partly trans-

ferred to the Commercial Department and to
the Operations Department of Nexi Payments,
partly merged into the new Help Line staff unit;

e the creation of a single staff unit called Cus-
tomer Operations Support dedicated to sup-
porting Operational Units in providing services
with a view to efficiency and quality of service;

e the revision of the Operational Units with a
view to focusing on the main business lines
by creating four competence centers: Issuing
Customer Operations and Merchants Custom-
er Operations at the Milan office, Issuing in
Servicing Customer Operations at the Cividale
office, Payments Customer Operations at the
Anzola dell’'Emilia office.

The main changes in the organizational struc-
ture of Bassilichi have include:

o the review of the Business Services BU, fo-
cused on non-payment activities (fleet man-
agement, security, back office, licensing) di-
vided internally into the organizational units
of Service Manager, Production, ICT and
Commercial and Marketing and equipped
with a staff area aimed to act as a link to the
central staff structures;

the establishment of the Planning & Control
department whose objectives are to monitor
the budget and profitability of the company
and its subsidiaries (Consorzio Triveneto, Mon-
eynet, Bassilichi CEE, BassmArt), verifying and
updating the reference management indices
(revenues, costs, margins and economic indi-
cators) and producing the related analysis and
reporting support;

the establishment of the CFO area to which the
Administration and Budget Department and
the Finance and Treasury organizational units,
Ceneral and Legal Affairs, and Communica-
tions were transferred;

In addition, due to the acquisition by the Nexi
Group of the former Bassilichi group, specific
initiatives were launched for the preparation
of the technical and organizational measures
necessary for integration purposes.

As part of the Quality Management System, the
verifications for the confirmation of the 1ISO9001
Certification for the Parent Company, Nexi Pay-
ments and Oasi and for the ISO9001 and UNI EN
15838 certifications (certification of excellence
specific to the Contact Centers) were success-
fully passed for Help Line.



Regulatory compliance

In 2017, the project was launched for updating
the Organizational Model pursuant to Legisla-
tive Decree 231/01for all the Group companies in
order to incorporate the organizational changes
that have occurred and the legislative changes
introduced (for example, gangmaster system
crime, organ trafficking crime, reforms to the
penal code) and with the intent to implement,
with a view to simplifying the model and making
it more effective and usable, a rationalization and
review of the Model definition methodology.

In the second half of 2017 the assessment initi-
ative was launched to measure the adequacy of
business processes and IT systems to the regula-
tory requirements set forth in the New European
Data Protection Regulation, so-called. “GDPR”.
The overall plan for measures to adapt to the
new legislation requires full compliance, in line
with the deadlines set by the Regulations, by
2018.

The activities for the obligations provided for by
the law of 18 June 2015, n. 95 and Council Direc-
tive 2014/107/EU of 9 December 2014, amend-
ing Directive 2011/16/EU have been completed
regarding the mandatory automatic exchange
of information in the field of taxation (common
reporting standard - CRS).

The activities deriving from Directive 2014/65/
EU (MiFID) and from requlation no. 600/2014
(MIFIR) were initiated. Adjustments to Record
Keeping, Transaction Reporting and Post Trade
Transparency were completed within the terms
of the law and the Execution Policy was also
updated. Developments are under way on the
applications for the production of reports to be
forwarded to the Supervisory Bodies and the ad-
justments to company regulations.

In reference to the introduction of IFRS 9, during

2017, Nexi carried out the project activities aimed

atidentifying the main impact areas and defining

the reference methodological framework for the

classification, measurement and impairment of

financial assets. Within the scope of the project,

the guidelines for the application of the IFRS 9

rules were defined and approved by the Board of

Directors, and in particular:

- the business model;

- the procedures for carrying out the SPPI test
(Sole payment of Principal and Interest);

- the impairment model also for the purposes of
the classification of performing exposures.
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In reference to IFRS 15, in the second half of the
year, the Nexi Group undertook a project in
order to analyse the impacts for the most sig-
nificant contracts related to the recognition of
revenues and the identification of the included
obligation performance, so as to allow changes
to the allocation of revenues starting from the
first quarter of 2018.

Lastly, the Nexi Group started the project to
adapt to the new regulations introduced by the
Directive (EU) no. 2015/2366 on payment ser-
vices in the internal market (Payment Services
Directive, so-called “PSD2”) and the related sec-
ondary reqgulation issued by EBA. In September,
a first assessment phase was completed aimed
at investigating the impacts and identifying
the actions to be undertaken by preparing a
remediation plan for the analysed mainstream
(Processes & Operating Risks, Data Openings &
TPPS Relationships, SCA & Fraud Detection and
Contracts & Transparency) in line with the dif-
ferent timelines for the entry into force of the
new regulation. The consequent implementa-
tion activities of the identified interventions are
under way.

Group IT

During the vyear, the IT Department concentrat-
ed, in addition to the execution of the project
and maintenance initiatives of the Group’s appli-
cation range, on the following topics:

e Continuation of the reorganization and
strengthening of internal staff through a hir-
ing/insourcing plan.

e Completion of the design phase of the various
ICT Strategy streams and start of the execution
phase for the Infrastructures, Digital and Mer-
chant Services areas.

e Strengthening of ICT Governance, with set-
up of a structure dedicated to monitoring the
project portfolio and overseeing the progress
of strategic initiatives.

e Launch of a Spending Review program, aimed
at reducing operating costs (running and pro-
cessing).

e Continuation of the “Remediation” program
aimed at improving the Group’s technological
infrastructures and resolving operational criti-
calities.
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ICT Services and Solutions for Issuing &
Operations Systems

As part of the Issuing & Operations Systems,
extensive work was carried out in 2017 with the
Issuing, Sales BUs and Service Manager teams in
order to ensure continuous and effective man-
agement of Clients.

In particular:

e As regards International Debit, the Issuing
commercial offer was extended with the in-
ternational debit product, released on the
equensWorldline platform and also imple-
mented on the SIA platform, with the forecast
of the latter to be completed by the end of the
first quarter of 2018.

e The Value Partnership business model for the
so-called “Large Banks” was revised in order to
introduce new functionalities in line with the
needs of the market and the objective of offer-
ing “best in class” services.

e The ContactlLess technology was adopted for
cards and terminals enabled to operate on the
PagoBancomat® Network in order to comply
with the obligation required by national and
international networks.

e Further initiatives were launched in fraud pre-
vention and dispute management.

ICT Services and Solutions for Merchant
Services

In the first half of 2017, activities in the Mer-
chant Services area focused mainly on the
migration of the Book Merchants of Deutsche
Bank and MPS. Subsequently, focus was placed
on the development of the functionalities re-
lated to the Referral model for the acquired
books. New commercial offers were also cre-
ated for Merchants, with the aim of incen-
tivising micropayments and the use of POS
through digital collection instruments (e.q.
Start Offer). At the same time, work was car-
ried out on the main projects related to the
“ICT Strategy” Program (Onboarding Acquir-
ing and Core Platform), within which feasibility
studies were carried out for the implementa-
tion of target solutions.

ICT Services and Solutions for Payment
and ATM Systems

In regard to payment systems, the activities car-
ried out during the year promoted the stabiliza-
tion and renewal of the main ICT platforms in the
ATM and Corporate Banking sectors.

In particular, the following is highlighted:

e The creation of an infrastructure for the
management of Instant Payments (ACH,
Cateway).

e Implementation of electronic payment flows
for INPS pensions according to the SEPA
Credit Transfer standard (Smart Payments
INPS).

e The introduction of the Check Image Trun-
cation, a mechanism for transmitting the im-
age of cheques.

e The adaptation of the iCT platforms in order
to incorporate the provisions of the PSD2
regulation.

ICT Services and Solutions for Digital
Systems

Digital activities focused on application con-
solidation and data quality initiatives, tech-
nological innovation aimed at supporting the
commercial offerings of the Partner Banks
(Mobile payments), simplifying and automat-
ing existing processes in the e-commerce
sector.

The Data & Analytics competencies were also
strengthened, with the aim of launching initi-
atives aimed at supporting the business in the
Client targeting activity.

Lastly, work was carried out on the efficiency
of IT operations through the organizational
set-up of the Digital Factory and the introduc-
tion of new work methods (Agile, DevOps).

The main areas of activity include:

e Mobile Payments - Apple Pay: enabling the
payment service through Apple Wallet Pro-
vider for cards issued by CartaSi.

e Mobile Payments - HCE: integration in the
current HCE of new features in order to in-
crease security and improve the customer
experience.

e E-Commerce (On-boarding, XPay Evolution):
creation of a new web-based direct e-com-
merce channel and evolution of processes
(internal preliminary examination) and prod-
ucts (Xpay), at the same time facilitating the
dialogue with other market platforms.

o CAMS eW Issuing extension: enrichment of
the information database with the personal



data the handling relative to the Client Banks
managed under servicing, currently in the
availability of the processor only, and evolution
of the PAN functions, multifunctional cards.

o CVM Issuing & Acquiring: implementation of
“customer value management” campaigns
in respect of Cardholders and Merchants, in
order to retain clients and promote the Nexi
Group offering.

o Nexi Business: creation of a mobile APP for
merchants through which it is possible to
monitor operations, conduct operations and
self-customer caring processes.

e Cardholder Portal: release of the new card-
holder portal on a new, more modern and
secure technology stack with a new cus-
tomer experience and new spending control
functions.

ICT Services and Solutions for Securi-
ties Services and Banking Systems

2017 was a year of intense activity both for
the execution of project initiatives aimed at
the adaptation of the information systems to
the secondary legislation, and to pursue the
continuous operating efficiency in the area of
Fund Services.

The main activities include:

e Brokerage area - Middle Office evolution:
optimization of the activity with the intro-
duction of more efficient logics of opera-
tional verification.

o MiFID Il: implementation of the EU Directive
2014/65 (MIFID 11), which involved complex
and transversal activities with respect to
the various areas of the investment services
(third-party brokerage, own account bro-
kerage and treasury) and fund services (cal-
culation NAV and transfer agent).

e Sale of the Pension Funds business unit:
management of technical and operational
aspects, guaranteeing the continuity of the
service.

e Collateral Management: adoption of a new
product for the management of the cash
collateralisation of transactions on over-the-
counter derivatives for big clients.

o EMIR: adaptation of the applications according
to the new EMIR regulations that came into
force during the year.
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ICT infrastructures

In 2017, infrastructure played an important role
in supporting the acceleration of Nexi’s business
development.

Focus on the strategic axes regarded the in-
crease in quality, strengthening of architectures
and platforms, and efficiency.

In particular, the following activities are distin-
quished:

e Live Service Control Room. An organizational
nucleus of the processes and tools was cre-
ated dedicated to supervision in H24 mode
of the level of service offered to clients. In-
spired by the best international best practic-
es, the Live Service Control room has allowed
to increase the level of average availability
of services arriving to permanently exceed
999% during the year.

Platform Improvements. Through the Ser-
vice Control Room, it was possible to isolate
the components of the IT platform affected
by structural fragility. Improvement and re-
mediations have been launched on each of
these programs that have allowed to solve
the problems in a permanent way.

Skills. The workforce has been strengthened
with new expert resources in key sectors, the
professional and managerial skills have been
made congruent to the strategic nature of
the function.

Strengthening of Disaster Recovery Infra-
structure. The “active-active” Disaster Re-
covery architecture, already successfully
used in various areas of the Data Center of
Pero and Settimo Milanese (primary Data
Center), has been extended to the whole
perimeter of the mid-range systems (within
the contractual so-called “Giotto”) and more
than 20 applications.

EOL (technology End of Life) management.
Technological renewal projects have been
carried out of infrastructures that are ex-
tremely relevant to the business that had
achieved and, in some cases, exceeded their
useful life cycle. The most important inter-
vention concerned the Oracle hardware and
software update of the so-called ODS data-
base (Operational Data Store).

Private Cloud. Within the framework of the
Infrastructure IT Strategy, the new Nexi Pri-
vate Cloud infrastructure has been designed
according to the “Software Defined Data
Center” paradigm.
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NEXI GROUP

Information security and technical-organizational measures to con-
In the field of IT security, the process of continu- trol the use of privileged utilities (Security Pri-
ousimprovement of ICT security and cybercrime ority Program).

control has, among the main activities, seen:

e the technical certification of the Group’s main
applications relating to compliance with the
regulations on ICT Security (PCI-DSS Certifica-
tion).

Human resources

in regard to human resources, the Group’s work-
force as at 31 December 2017 amounted to 2808
e a series of tactical activities aimed at improving resources, compared to 1895 of 31 December
ICT security and reducing the vulnerabilities of 2016, and are thus distributed among the individ-
the Nexi Group information systems, including 3 companies.
the strengthening of perimeter protections

Workforce on Dec. 31, 2017

Managers

Middle
Management

Permanent staff
Workers

Temporary staff

NEXI NEXI PAYMENTS OASI HELP LINE

00 00000000000000000000000000000 s ©00000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000000000000000 s s0sesssscscscsesssscssscscscses s

DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17
HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE

00000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsssescsscsssossscssscsssnscs

35 350 47 47.0 14 14.0 33 33.0 6 6.0 3 30 2 20 1 10

385 3785 396 390.7 192 190.0 220 2177 37 370 38 38.0 17 168 14 13.8
442 420.7 376 358.0 326 3029 287 266.5 54 533 48 477 331 2757 278 2354

9 9.0 6 6.0 - - - - - - - - 45 416 5 438

825 801.7 532 5069 . 298 255.0

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scscsscsscsssscsscssnsososs

Managers

Middle
Management

Permanent staff
Workers

Temporary staff

BASSILICHI CONS. TRIVENETO MONEYNET BASSMART

00 00000000000000000000000000000 s ©00000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000000000000000 s s0sesssscscscsesssscssscscscses s

DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17
HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE

00000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsssrsosscssscssscssscsssnscs

12 120 3 30 1 10 - -
42 420 12 120 1 10 - -
680 647.7 125 108.4 67 66.0 6 6.0
- - - - 2 06 - -
1 10 - - 3 30 - -

140 1234

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsssscsssosssscsscssnsnsoss

Managers

Middle
Management

Permanent staff
Workers

Temporary staff

ARS BLUE BASSILICHI BELGRADO  BASSILICHI BANJA LUKA BASSILICHI PODGORICA

00 00000000000000000000000000000 s ©00000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000000000000000 s s0sesssscscscscsssscssscscscsns s

DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC-17 DEC-16 DEC DEC-16 DEC-17
HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE HC FTE

00000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsssrsosscssscssscssscsssnscs

1 10 1 10 - - - -
44 44.0 35 35.0 10 10.0 - -
- - 6 6.0 4 4.0 - -

- 450 450

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsssscsssosssscsscssnsnsoss



NEXI GROUP

tecesecesecscsesecscscsesesscscstsesssscsee

DEC-16 DEC-17
HC FTE HC FTE

seeccsescecsscsecscsecsccscsecsecssccsscssece

Managers 57 57.0 102 102.0
Middle

Management 631 6223 723 7152
Permanent

staff 1,153 1,052.6 1,956 1,824.6
Workers - - 2 0.6
Temporary

staff 54 50.6 25 24.8
Total 1,895 17826 2,808 2,6671

Information on staff and
the environment

In terms of training, for the year 2017 the Group
Training Plan “Train to enhance roles and skills
in the ICBPI Group”, now Nexi Group, presented
for financing the Banking and Insurance Fund in
2016 was finalized and reported.

The 2017 training actions responded to the
Group’s organizational and process develop-
ments and focused, in particular, on these ob-
jectives:

a) Timely retraining of resources that have changed
roles following organizational changes.

b) Update and consolidation of the distinc-
tive and peculiar competencies of the Nexi
Group.

c) Compliance with the legal requlations typical
of the activities of the bank and the interme-
diary and the related actions validated by the
Compliance Department.

d) Definition of the new 2018-2019 training
model and anticipation of some innovations
contained therein.

The redevelopment actions were carried out un-
der coaching/on-the-job training, in particular
in the Payments area, with a focus on specializa-
tion in the classroom, held by internal trainers.

The updating of skills, at the request of the var-
ious managers (so-called “On demand”) has
provided for both participation in inter-com-
pany courses and the organization of internal
classrooms that involved, in particular, the areas
affected by the release of new IT tools, the areas
involved in rebranding and sales.
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All compulsory training actions validated at the
beginning of the year were completed. Part of
the contents, where possible and in compliance
with the regulations, have been updated and
revised with the aim of optimizing the duration
of the courses while maintaining the planned
training objectives; in this way it was possible
to make the originally planned commitment of
15.8% more efficient.

In 2017 the training activities involved a total
of 1,752 resources for a total of 40,210 hours of
training, of which 22% of compulsory training,
73% specialized training and 5% managerial
training, with an average of about 3 man/days
out of the total employees.

As for the former Bassilichi group, about 6,000
hours of training were provided in 2017, 25% of
which was financed. Innovative ways of deliver-
ing training have been experimented, through
sessions held in interactive virtual classroom (so-
called webinar) thanks to the use of a web plat-
form. This type of intervention involved about
400 employees belonging to the Interaction
Center Department (Team leader, focal point
and operation call) with the aim of motivating,
sensitizing and creating alignment with corpo-
rate expectations regarding communication to
the client (banks, merchants, credit card users,
merchants, technicians etc.).

The program, designed in such a way as to fa-
vour a strong awareness on what are considered
the classic postulates of communication, dealt
with issues related to the development of com-
munication skills even in situations of emotional
stress.

This method was particularly suitable for reach-
ing, at the same time, a very large audience of
people spread over several geographical loca-
tions, thus optimizing time and costs. The pro-
gram was finalized with the use of Fondimpresa
funds.

The training course, started in 2016, was also
completed, conceived ad hoc for the entire
commercial team with the aim of developing
and refining the managerial skills necessary to
approach strategic clients in a more analytical,
planned and structured way.

An in-depth study plan was organized for all
the Service Managers with specific and prag-
matic focus on the issues of business continu-
ity and disaster recovery of the services pro-
vided, based on reference standards and good
practices.
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In the safety area, during 2017, 876 hours of train-
ing were provided involving 159 employees.

Animportant activity is also dedicated to admin-
istration and budget department, on IAS/IFRS
national and international accounting standards.

In regard to Health and Safety, a gap analysis was
carried out for the Nexi Group in relation to the
Health and Safety Management System (SGSL -
Sistema di Gestione della Salute e della Sicurez-
za) in order to make the Group Organization,
Management and Control Model compliant with
UNI-INAIL.

Work on monitoring the quality of workplaces
continued, such as the microclimate (temper-
ature, humidity, ventilation and air quality) and
lighting (natural and artificial light). Further-
more, the evaluation of work-related stress risk
data continued with analysis of mental fatigue,
monotony and repetitiveness in work process-
es. As required by the law, evacuation drills were
carried out at each location.

External communication
and media relations

Communication events include the following:

e Communication and press office activities re-
lated to the creation and launch of the new
Nexi brand forinstitutional and business events;

e Media relations aimed at enhancing the com-
pany’s positioning on the market, the products
and services offered, the initiatives and corpo-
rate and business events organized by Nexi;

e The organization of internal events for em-
ployees and related to rebranding and the in-
volvement of colleagues on Nexi projects and
ONgoing activities;

e The supervision of events promoted by third
parties (ABI, NetComm, Politecnico) with the
aim of increasing the company’s participation;

e Content management and distribution of the
internal newsletter

Performance of the parent
company and the group
companies

The results of the Financial Statements and the
initiatives of the Parent Company and of the Sub-
sidiaries subject to the management and coordi-
nation of Nexi.

Nexi S.p.A.

Nexi reported a Net Profit for the year of Euro
895 million compared to a 2016 Net Profit of €
84.2 million.

EBITDA amounted to € 145.2 million 194% com-
pared to € 121.6 million of 2016.

Shareholders’ equity totalled Euro 2,033.3 million
compared to Euro 2,049.8 million of December
2016.

Nexi payments S.p.A.

The company, of which Nexi holds 98.745% of
the share capital, ended the year with an EBITDA
of € 229407 million (+36.3% compared to 2016)
and a pre-tax profit of € 122988 million, lower
than in the previous year (-68.7%) which includ-
ed the extraordinary proceeds related to the sale
of the Visa Europe membership to Visa Inc.

The 2017 business performance led to a total
management of approximately 16.2 million cards
and over 29 billion transactions.

The activities are analysed below in relation to
the three main lines of business managed by the
company:

e|ssuing and acquiring activities under direct li-
cense and on behalf of Banks;

e Servicing activities;

© POS and ATM terminal management activities.



Issuing and acquiring activities under Direct Li-
cense and on behalf of Banks

e The card range recorded growth compared to
2016 (+8.8%), reaching over 9.6 million cards at
the end of the period, thanks to the increase
in the stock of prepaid cards made during the
year;

o The breakdown by product of the new issues
of the year (2 million cards) reflects a general
increase in all products compared to the pre-
vious period;

o The breakdown by product of cards in circula-
tion at the end of the year shows an increase
in prepaid products, albeit with an increasing
percentage weight of the Classic / Revolving
cards (28.6%);

e The total spending of the owners amounted
to about Euro 30.2 billion and recorded, com-
pared to 2016, a growth of 4.8%, with positive
performance both of the Direct License mod-
el (+3.3%) and the model on behalf of Banks
(+89%);

o The average use of credit cards under Direct Li-
cence, which is confirmed among the highest
in the reference market, has increased (+4.6%),
also due to the promotional and spending
stimulation initiatives implemented during
2017,

e Acquiring transaction volumes amounted to
approximately € 619 billion, up (+18.5%) com-
pared to 2016; growth also influenced by the
acquisition of the Acquiring business units of
Monte dei Paschi di Siena and Deutsche Bank
for the management of incremental Pagoban-
comat volumes. Net of the inorganic increase,
growth is + 99% compared to 2016;

o Overall, the number of transactions managed
by issuing and acquiring reported a growth of
23.5%.

Activities under Servicing

o The stock of cards managed on behalf of third
party licensees totaled approximately 6.6 mil-
lion cards, up 17%, performance driven by
credit cards (+2.4%);

o The number of features linked to national debit
cards (€ 309 million) is down compared to that
of 2016 (-0.8%), even with the stock of debit
cards (€ 1.7 million) slightly up (+04%);

eThe total number of transactions managed
(1,679 million) is up compared to last year
(+1.8%).
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Terminal management activities

eThe stock of managed Pos (725 thousand
units), composed of e-commerce terminals
(over 20 thousand units) and physical (about
705 thousand units), has significantly increased
due to the acquisitions made during the year
by the Merchant service business units of Ban-
ca Monte dei Paschi di Siena and Deutsche
Bank (+33.4%);

o ATM managed terminals amounted to 92
thousand units and fell compared to last year
(-0.7%) as a result of the rationalization of
the branch network by some client banking
groups.

The main economic indicators of 2017 com-
pared with those of 2016, show the following
results:

e The income statement, as at 31 December 2017,
reports a result for the period of € 83425 mil-
lion compared to € 329909 million as at 31 De-
cember 2016 (-74.7%);

o Net revenue and commission income amount-
ed to € 552.847 million, compared to € 470.070
million in 2016 (+17.6%);

e Net interest income margin totalled at € -12.420
million, while in 2016 reported € - 8.009 million
(+551%);

e Payroll costs amounted to € 44.006 million,
compared to € 38199 million in 2016 (+15.2%);

o Administrative expenses totalled € 308 453 mil-
lion, compared to € 283.278 million in 2016, with
an increase of 89%.

The Balance Sheet, as at 31 December 2017, re-
ports total assets of € 3,632.5 million, compared
with € 2,7919 million of 2016.

In particular:

e Receivables amounted to € 2,572.2 million
compared to € 2,391.8 million in 2016;

e Tangible assets amounted to € 83.2 million
compared to € 84.2 million in 2016;

e Payables amounted to € 2,298.5 million, com-
pared to € 1,618.5 million in 2016, and the in-
crease is due to the greater need for funding;

e Funds amounted to € 13.0 million compared to
€13.6 million in 2016.

The commercial activity of Nexi Payments in
2017 was characterized by coordinated action on
all business lines and customer segments, with
particular attention to innovation and value cre-
ation for the partner banks.

-25



26- NE@XI -2017 Reports and Financial Statements

An integrated program of involvement initia-
tives was launched in 2017 with the objective
of strengthening the value of the Partnership
with Banks, aimed at ensuring continuous up-
dating of the commercial strategy of the offer
and presentation of the main developments in
terms of technological innovation and market.
The meetings were also occasions to discuss the
main challenges and strategic opportunities of
the market and gather ideas and suggestions on
possible paths to be taken to develop the digital
payment market in Italy.

During the month of November, the annual con-
vention “What’s Next?” dedicated to the Partner
Banks was also organized, an opportunity for the
presentation of the Nexi Payments commercial
strategy and for sharing the news of the offer in
all business areas.

In reference to the activities of monitoring and
commercial stimulation, in collaboration with
the Banks, commercial activities were carried out
during the year aimed at increasing the dissemi-
nation and use of payment instruments.

In particular, the following commercial activities
were carried out:

e Incentive plans targeted at the growth of the
range of cards, the support of the issue of in-
ternational debit, premium and commercial
products, and the growth of the POS portfolio;

e Promotional activities aimed at further stim-
ulating the networks of partner banks in the
growth of the transaction and in customer ac-
quisition / retention;

©“B2C” promotional activities dedicated to a
targeted selection of partner banks, aimed at
encouraging credit card issue and at the same
time the use of the cards and the membership
of the new cardholders to loyalty and digital
services;

e Relaunch of the most advanced version of pre-
paid cards, equipped with new features that
characterize the product at the top of the mar-
ket;

e Expansion of acceptance networks by mer-
chants;

e Participation in calls for tender issued by major
banks for the management of e-money in the
field of issuing, acquiring and management of
POS terminals;

e Support activities, through work sessions aimed
at participating in Nexi Payments initiatives and
in network training sessions, aimed at sharing
the value of the e-money offer.

During the vear, the boost to commercialization
of the new licensed international debt product
continued, which represents a further opportu-
nity for growth for the partner banks in the field
of electronic payments, making it possible to of-
fer its customers an authorized payment instru-
ment for use on all channels without any credit
risk.

The international debit card can also meet the
needs of banking customers also in the e-com-
merce sector: growth forecasts see further ac-
celeration in the use of the product which will
generate a strong growth in volumes over the
next few years.

In 2017, Nexi Payments also relaunched the com-
mercial offering for issuing and acquiring activi-
ties for third party licensees, extending the offer
contents of the licensed model and the offer of
innovative products to clients under servicing
and the management of POS and ATM terminals.

Within the scope of the services for the Public
Administration, the commercial activities to-
wards the Partner Banks intensified during the
period to promote digital payments within the
treasury services that are proposed to Public
Bodies.

Starting from the month of October, the range
of services has been enriched with a new ser-
vice able to manage the revenues deriving from
transactions carried out through physical POS via
the pagoPA® system, giving the possibility to the
public bodies to open to the Node of Payments,
also their own physical acceptance network. The
service is certified by the Agency for Digital Italy.

The Company has also expanded its business
proposition with Apple Pay features, a new pay-
ment system for cardholders in possession of
Apple products, implemented in collaboration
with some partner banks.

In the second half of the year the commercial
offer was enriched with the Nexi Business App,
an innovative tool that enhances and completes
the products and services that the Partners
Banks can offer to their merchants.

In 2017, the Nexi Payments Purchasing Observa-
tory widened its scope of observation, from that
of purchases to electronic payments. Alongside
the analysis of the monthly trend in purchas-
es and spending behaviuor at times of the year
with a higher seasonality, new insights of greater
depth and specificity were realized, able to re-
spond directly and in a more univocal way to the
requests of the press.



Help line S.p.A.

The subsidiary Help Line S.p.A., of which Nexi
holds 70% of the share capital, recorded an EBIT-
DA of Euro 14 million.

Income taxes amounted to Euro 1.8 million,
therefore, Net Profit amounted to negative Euro
5.7 million.

The Company carries out activities mainly for the
Nexi Group, but also operates for some major
Italian banks, supporting their clients 24 hours a
day, 365 days a year.

In 2017, work continued on improving the pro-
cesses for managing contacts with clients, with
the aim of improving internal efficiency and con-
taining costs.

Projects were launched to ensure constant im-
provement of the quality of the services offered
to clients, through Customer Satisfaction activi-
ties that allow to receive timely feedback on the
degree of customer satisfaction.

Oasi S.p.A.

The subsidiary Oasi S.p.A., of which NEXI holds
100% of the share capital, reported an EBIT-
DA of € 95 million, compared to € 8.7 million
of the previous year (+10.3%). Operating reve-
nues amounted to € 275 million, down by 1.8%
compared to the previous year; operating costs
amounted to € 235 million, in line with 2016
(03%). Current and prepaid taxes € 682 thou-
sand and the one-off extraordinary provision for
group restructuring and the management of the
redundancy incentive of € 1.8 million, lead to a
Net Profit of € 1.5 million. In order to direct the
entire organization on the core business of re-
porting and anti-money laundering, as part of
the restructuring, the activities for ICT Security
and Internal Controls were abandoned. Consid-
ering the result on the same scope of business,
revenues rose by 16.2% and EBITDA by 24%.

The Oasi business was carried out with regular-
ity and consistency with respect to the project
plans. New initiatives and services were added
to traditional products and the major project
for the innovation of IT solutions for reqgulatory
reporting and anti-money laundering has been
largely completed. In particular:

o for the supervisory reports, all the updates re-
quired by the new European and national su-
pervisory regulations were carried out, and the
first European report so-called Asset Encum-
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brance for all OASI customer intermediaries
were sent to the authorities within the pre-
scribed time limits. In synergy with the Parent
Company, an important project was launched
to provide all OASI clients with the new ser-
vice for forwarding the reporting of the Cen-
tral Credit Register via the Internet, rather than
through the national interbank network (RN -
rete nazionale interbancaria). In addition, plan-
ning activities were undertaken for the new re-
quirements on Financial Statements and Finrep
(Financial Reporting) IFRS 9;

ein the anti-money laundering area, the new
solution called GIANOS 4D was designed and
presented to banks, insurance companies and
other intermediaries, which allows the man-
agement of the formalities required by the new
European and national AML-CFT regulations;
important system integration projects have
been implemented and the expansion of out-
sourcing services has begun; the consultancy
for the self-assessment of AML-CFT risks was
completed in relation to the Bank of Italy re-
quirements and training was carried out on the
GIANOS systems in agreement with ABI Servizi.

Bassilichi S.p.A.
and subsidiaries

The subsidiary Bassilichi S.p.A., of which Nexi
holds 100% of the share capital, reported a con-
solidated EBITDA of € 12.7 million in 2017 com-
pared to €10.5 million of the previous year (22%).

Operating revenues amounted to € 1661 million,
up compared to the previous year (€ 142.0 mil-
lion) thanks to the Payments Services business
unit (+30%). Operating costs amounted to €
-1534 million, benefit from the cost containment
program (both direct and indirect) launched in
2017. Annual depreciation and amortization for
€ -151 million, financial charges € -2.8 million,
income taxes € -19 million and extraordinary in-
come items € -579 million lead to a Net Loss for
the year of € -651 million.

In regard to the extraordinary income compo-
nents, which have most influenced the negative
result for the year, we note (i) the impact gen-
erated by the lower valuations of the assets that
took place after the changes in estimates (net of
adjustments to IFRS) for € 279 million on the val-
ues of some equity investments, the value of the
properties and the full write-down of deferred tax
assets; (i) the effects of some transactions oc-
curred concurrently with the sale of the majority
stake in Bassilichi to Nexi for € 22.7 million main-
ly related to tax conciliations as well as to certain
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transactional agreements concluded between
Bassilichi and Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena.

The activities of the former Bassilichi group after
its entry into Nexi were carried out on a regular
basis and, consistently with the plans and pro-
jects envisaged, mainly focused on the group’s
overall rationalization program and the redefini-
tion of its financial structure, incorporating the
following initiatives:

e Following the establishment of the new admin-
istrative body and the control bodies, the Man-
agement of the company started, in Septem-
ber 2017 a process of in-depth analysis on the
financial and capital situation and the transition
to the IFRS standards with reference to 30/06,
then extended to 30/09, which led to the re-
capitalization of Bassilichi by Nexi in December
2017 (capital increase of € 100 million);

e The former Bassilichi group, with a view to op-
timizing the processes, implemented the pro-
cesses and harmonized the Nexi policies at all
levels of the organization. With regard to pro-
cesses in particular, a system of planning and
control and monthly reporting, both account-
ing and management, was implemented, con-
sistent with the information needs required by
Nexi and the Bank of Italy regulatory system;

e From the operational point of view, 2017 saw
the launch of a comprehensive plan to reduce
direct and indirect operating costs, started in
collaboration with Nexi, to exploit any possi-
ble synergy of group-level spending while at
the same time reducing costs under a “stand
alone” logic;

e Consistent with the above, Bassilichi has,
thanks to the financial contribution of Nexi,
refinanced its financial indebtedness at more
advantageous interest rates and cost in order
to achieve material savings on the financial ex-
pense in this regard;

e The rationalization of the former prodromal
group to the future integration plans involved
all the business lines, segregating, within
the company in Bassilichi, a dedicated divi-
sion called “Business Service” that includes all
the lines of business not relevant to the core
business of Bassilichi and Nexi. Management
is currently evaluating the best path for the
enhancement of these lines of business, also
through the possibility of transfer to third par-
ties;

e|n addition, a process was launched for the
valuation of non-strategic equity investments,
which in part has already reverberated its ef-
fects in 2017 with the sale of the investment in
Alfazero;

e Bassnet, a company in which Bassilichi holds
about 49%, is particularly important in the
portfolio of the investee companies. Towards
the last months of 2017 Bassnet embarked on
its own path of resolution of the business crisis
which it is experiencing; a path that could lead
to the liquidation of the Company during 2018.

The former Bassilichi group includes:

e Bassilichi S.p.A. which operates in the Payments
sector and in the Business service sector.

-The company, within the Payments sector,

offers services related to the management of
electronic payments (POS, Digital Commerce
Carda management) as well as interbank
corporate banking, cash automation / cash
management (Teller cash Recycle / Teller As-
sist Units and Automated Teller machine) and
self-service devices;
In regard to the business service sector, the
company offers services related to the man-
agement of the entire process cycle to sup-
port the business, including data entry - back
office, administrative / accounting, passive -
digitalization and contact centre. In the busi-
ness service area, integrated security services
are also included, including installation, man-
agement and maintenance of systems as well
as video surveillance and cash and surveil-
lance management. This area also includes
Fleet management, namely the management
of workstations and Licensing.

In the financial year 2017, the company reported
operating revenues totalling € 150.3 million.

e Moneynet Sp.A, whose share capital is 61% held
by Bassilichi S.p.A. and 39% by Consorzio Triveneto
Sp.A. s a Hybrid Payment Institute, authorized by
the Bank of Italy pursuant to and for the purposes
of art. T14-novies of Legislative Decree. 1 Septem-
ber1993, n. 385 (and subsequent amendments).

In the financial year 2017 the company recorded
operating revenues totalling € 7.3 million.

e Consorzio Triveneto S.p.A., whose share capital
is 64.25% held by Bassilichi S.p.A. and 35.75% by
Nexi, it operates in the Payments sector, offer-
ing its customers services related to the man-
agement of electronic payments (POS, Digital
Commerce Carda management).

In the financial year 2017 the company recorded
operating revenues totaling € 35.3 million.

e Bassilichi CEE D.o.o, whose share capital is
80% held by Bassilichi S.p.A. and 20% by other
shareholders, offers its customers services re-
lated to electronic payment management, as
well as ATM maintenance and management.



Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MEXI -29

In the financial year 2017, the company recorded e Basmart S.rl, whose share capital is 95% held
operating revenues totalling € 4.3 million. by Bassilichi S.p.A. and 5% by other partners, it
is specialized in the realization of projects and
services with high technological content for the
historical artistic heritage, culture and leisure.

e Arsblue D.o.o, whose share capital is 40.8%
held by Bassilichi and 59.2% by other sharehold-
ers, is dedicated to software development for

tsyst .
payment systems In the financial year 2017 the company recorded

ti totaling € 1.5 million.
In the financial year 2017 the company recorded operating revenues totaling mien

operating revenues totalling € 1.6 million.

The following table shows the main financial statements indicators for year 2017:

NEXI GROUP - HIGHLIGHTS AND MAIN INDICATORS YEAR 2017 YEAR 2016 % CHANGE

Statement of financial position highlights (€'000)

Loans and receivables with customers 2,910,913 2,844,529 2.3%
Loans and receivables with banks 835,116 747,676 n.7%
Financial assets 2,727,915 3,371,105 -19.1%
Tangible/Intangible assets 2,119,069 1,360,544 55.8%
Total assets 12,593,382 10,662,098 18.1%
Direct funding from customers 7,789,484 6,255,341 24.5%
Indirect funding from customes (assets under administration) 54,162,935 51,660,230 4.8%
Equity 2,050,841 2,059,082 -04%

Income statement highlights (€'000) (*)

Net interest income 38,857 36,281 71%
Net fee and commission income and revenue from services 811,702 648,043 25.3%
Operating income 855,945 688,527 24.3%
Personnel expense 171,846 137,919 24.6%
Operating costs 552,001 461,236 19.7%
EBITDA 303,944 227,291 33.7%
Profit for the year 79,092 103,998 -239%
Loans and receivables with customers / Total assets 23.1% 26.7%
Loans and receivables with banks / Total assets 6.6% 7.0%
Financial assets / Total assets 21.7% 31.6%
Direct funding from customers / Total assets 73.1% 76.5%
Indirect funding from customers / Total funding from customers 87.4% 89.2%

Profitability ratios (%)

Profit / (equity - profit) (ROE) 4.0% 53%
Net interest income / Operating income 4.5% 5.3%
Fee and commission income and revenue from services / Operating income 94.8% 94.1%
Operating costs / Operating income (Cost income ratio) 64.5% 67.0%

Credit risk ratios (%)
Net impaired loans and receivables with customers / Net loans and receivabls
with customers - -

limpairment losses on loans and receivables with customers / Gross impaired
loans and receivables with customers 90.9% 92.2%

Total net impaired assets / Equity - -

Productivity indices (€'000)

Average number of employees (FTE) 2,667 1,784 49.5%
Operating income / Average number of employees 321 386 -16.8%
EBITDA / Average number of employees na4 127 -10.5%
Personnel expense / Average number of employees 64 77 -16.6%

(*) The economic data can be formal in the reclassified income statement included in the management report.
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Dear Shareholders,

Financial statement
Highlights

A summary of the consolidated results recorded
in the accounts as at 31 December 2017 is provid-
ed below.

Statement of financial position

The group’s financial position and performance
are illustrated by the key figures of its statement
of financial position and income statement set
out below.

ASSETS

(millions of €)

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s0000ssscscssscscssscsessssse

Financial assets held for trading
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

Loans and receivables with banks
Loans and receivables with customers
Equity investments

Non-current assets

Other assets

Total assets

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s0000ssscscssscscssscsessssse

LIABILITIES

(millions of €)

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s0000ssscscssscscssscsessssse

Due to banks

Due to customers

Other liabilities

Post-employment benefits

Provisions

Equity

Equity attributable to non-controlling interests
Profit for the year

Total liabilities

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
17.4 13.2
2,710.5 3,3579
5.0 159

835.1 747.7
2,9109 2,844.5
12.1 10.1
2,107.0 1,350.4
3,995.4 2,3223
12,593.4 10,662.1
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1,692.1 1,567.1
7,789.5 6,255.3
981.6 710.3
22.6 20.6

519 373
1,971.7 1,955.1

5.0 124

79.1 104.0
12,593.4 10,662.1

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s0000ssscscssscscssscsessssse

At December 2017, the group has total assets of
€12,5934 million compared to € 10,6621 million
at the end of the previous year.

Aglance at the various asset captions shows that:

e financial assets held for trading amount to
€174 million against € 13.2 million at 31 decem-
ber 2016;

» available-for-sale financial assets come to
€2,710.5 million compared to € 3,3579 million at

the end of 2016, mainly consisting of govern-
ment bonds.

¢ held-to-maturity investments amount to
€ 50 million and comprise bank bonds (31 De-
cember 2016: € 159 million). The reduction is
mainly a result of redemption of certain bonds
that reached maturity;

¢ loans and receivables with banks amount to
€ 8351 million compared to € 7477 million at the
previous reporting date. The increase is princi-



pally due to the higher deposits and to the re-
verse repos with banks at the reporting date;

eloans and receivables with customers
amount to € 29109 million compared to €
2,844.5 million at 31 December 2016;

* equity investments amount to € 121 mil-
lion compared to € 101 million at the previous
year-end;

e non-current assets amount to € 2,070
million against € 1,350.4 million at 31 Decem-
ber 2016. The increase is mainly attributa-
ble to the goodwill recognized as a result of
the acquisition of merchant books by
Deutsche Bank and BMPS and the acquisition
of Bassilichi;

e other assets of € 39954 million (31 Decem-
ber 2016: € 2,322.3 million) include cash and
cash equivalents of € 3,243.3 million, tax assets
of €103.7 million and other assets of € 6484
million. The increase mainly refers to the
greater liquidity deposited with central banks.

With respect to liabilities:

edue to banks amounts to € 16921 million
compared to € 1,5671 million at 3112.2016.
The increase is principally due to the higher
deposits with banks at the reporting date;

N
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e due to customers comes to € 77895 million
against € 6,2553 million at the previous year-
end. The increase is mostly due to the higher
volume of funding from customers and to re-
verse repos in place at end of the period;

eother liabilities amount to € 9816 million
compared to € 710.3 million at the end of 2016
and include financial liabilities held for trading
of € 67 million, hedging derivative of € 5.5 mil-
lion related to the hedging of Visa Inc. in port-
folio, tax liabilities of € 50.0 million and other
liabilities of € 9194 million;

* post-employment benefits total € 22.6 mil-
lion compared to € 20.6 million at the end of
2016. The increase is due to the acquisition of
Bassilichi;

e provisions amount to € 519 million compared

to € 373 million in the previous year-end;

e equity attributable to the owners of the parent
comes to € 1971.7 million compared to € 195511
million at the previous year-end;

* equity attributable to non-controlling
interest amount to € 5.0 million at compared
to €124 million at the end of year 2016.
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Income statement The EBITDA amount to € 303944 million com-
pared to € 227291 million at 31 December 2016
(+33.7%) and a profit amount to € 79092 million

(2016: €103998 million).

The December 31st 2017 figures are compared at
the same period of last year in the following table.

NEXI GROUP - INCOME STATEMENT

YTD december, 31 (€/000) 2017 YEAR 2016 YEAR % CHANGE
Net fee and commission income 811,702 648,043 25.3%
Net interest income 38,857 36,281 71%
Net trading/hedging income 4,748 3,676 29.2%
Dividends from equity investments and AFS 638 527 21.2%
Operating revenue 855,945 688,527 24.3%
Payroll and related costs -171,846 - 137919 24.6%
Production costs -111,196 - 91,045 221%
ICT costs - 218,140 -186,151 17.2%
General expenses -48,170 - 37,580 28.2%
Administrative expenses - 549,352 - 452,695 21.4%
Other net operating expenses/income 5,046 3,280 53.9%
Net accruals for risks and charges -7,695 -11,820 -349%
Operating costs (net of DA) -552,001 - 461,235 19.7%
EBITDA 303,944 227,291 33.7%
Depreciation and amortization - 57,301 - 36,643 56.4%
Operating profit 246,643 190,648 29.4%
Depr.&Amort. (customer contract) -10,523 -10,523 -
Share of gains/losses of investees 24,372 18 n.a.
Non recurring/extraordinary items -157,172 - 55,291 184.3%
Pre-tax profit 103,320 124,852 -17.2%
Income taxes - 24,854 -19,268 29.0%
Profit to non-controlling interests 626 -1,586 -139.5%
Group Net profit 79,092 103,998 -23.9%

........................................................................................................................................................

With respect to the operating revenue:

* Net fee and commission income amount to
€ 811.702 million, up on the same period of pre-
vious year figure of € 648.043 million (+25.3%);

*Net interest income come to € 38.857 million
for 2017 increased from € 36.281 million for 2016
(+71%);

eNet trading/hedging income amounts to
€ 4748 million compared to € 3.676 million on
same period last year (+29.2%);

eDividends from equity investment and
AFS amount to € 0.638 million against € 0.527
million (+21.2%);

With respect to the Operating costs:

ePayroll and related costs amount to €
171.846 million compared to € 137919 million for
2016 (+24.6%);

e Production costs come to € 111196 million
against € 91.045 million of the same period of
last year (+22.1%);

¢ICT costs amount to € 218140 million com-
pared to € 186151 million for the previous year
(+172%):

¢ General expenses amount to € 48170 million
against € 37580 million of the same period of
last year (+28.2%);

eOther net operating expenses/income
amounts to € 5046 million compared to
€ 3.280 million for 2016 (+539%);

e Net accruals for risks and charges amount
to € 7695 million against € 11.820 million for
2016 (-34.9%):

Operating costs thus come to € 552.001 million
compared to € 461.235 million for the same peri-
od of the last year (+197%).



EBITDA thus come to € 303944 million com-
pared to € 227291 million for 2016 (+33.7%,).

The depreciation and amortization amount
to € 57301 million compared to € 36.643 million
for 2016.

The amortisation of depository services cus-
tomer contracts amount to € 10.523 million.

The share of gains of investees amounts to
€24.372 million.

The following other negative non-recurring
components amount to € 157172 and million in-
cluding:

ecost of transformation program Advisory of
€ 39949 million;

e |osses of investees of € 3.899 million;

eincentive for voluntary redundancy and Soli-
darity Fund of € 85.246 million;

e registration taxes on operations of M&A of
€16984 million;

e brand € 5485 million;
e hiring fee € 3.870 million;

e other negative items € 1.739 million.

These components led to a pre-tax profit of
€103.320 million compared to € 124.852 million
for 2016.

After income tax expense of € 24.854 million
and the profit to non-controlling interests of
€ 0.626 million, the Group Net profit amounts
to € 79.092 million.

Forecast development of
management

During 2018, the Nexi Group will be able to ben-
efit from a general, albeit moderate, economic
recovery, although the level of interest rates re-
mains extraordinarily low.

The Nexi Group will leverage the initiatives pro-
vided for in the new 2017-2021 Business Plan, ap-
proved on 9 February 2017 aimed at maintaining
a sustainable level of profitability over time, max-
imizing the value of the Group’s components
and maintaining an increasingly efficient cost
structure.

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MNEXI

Impairment of assets

It is specified that the Explanatory Notes pro-
vide information regarding the asset valuation
process subject to verification of any impair-
ment (impairment test) on the subject of basic
assumptions, methodologies and parameters
used.

In addition, and in relation to disclosure, the Ex-
planatory Notes report fundamental informa-
tion on the following elements:

Definition of cash generating units (CGU);
Allocation of goodwill to each CCU;

lllustration of the criterion used to estimate the
recoverable value when the latter is based on
value in use;

lllustration of the criterion used to estimate the
recoverable value when the latter is based on
the fair value;

Description of the sensitivity analysis of the im-
pairment test results with respect to changes in
the underlying assumptions;

Remarks on the potential presence of external
indicators of impairment and in the absence of
write-downs of assets following the impairment
procedure.

Information on
financial risks

Information on the nature and extent of finan-
cial risks to which the Group is exposed is pro-
vided below.

Credit risk

Refer to the same section of the individual finan-
cial statements for the exposure of the Nexi Par-
ent Company as a “second level bank” to this risk.

Nexi Payments, instead, is exclusively exposed
to credit risk in relation to the issue of cards un-
der “Direct Issuing” and in connection to which
there is an actual lending process and continu-
al oversight over credit risk. The other types of
credit originate from operational anomalies in
the following activities:
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Issuing Bank where there may be debits on
blocked cards and for which the bank, following
the reporting of the block, is no longer exposed
to the relative credit risk;

Acquiring, e.g. re-debiting to merchants follow-
ing disputes or the failure to pay commissions on
the part of the merchants.

Market risk

Since this risk is present exclusively in the Par-
ent Company, exposure to this risk is illustrated
in the same section of the individual financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity is managed in a centralized manner by
Nexi for all the Group companies, for which the
exposure to liquidity risk is illustrated in the same
section of the individual financial statements.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is managed in a centralized
manner by Nexi for the entire Banking Group, so
that exposure to this risk is illustrated in the same
section of the individual financial statements.

Business continuity

Considering the following indicators pertaining to
the Parent Company and the Group companies:

Financial indicators

No situation involving a capital deficit or net
negative working capital;

No loans with fixed or upcoming expiration
dates without positive prospects of renewal or
reimbursement; there is not an excessive de-
pendency on short-term loans to finance long-
term activities;

No indications of cessation of financial support
from financing entities and other creditors;

No past or pro-forma financial statements re-
porting negative cash flows;

Primary economic-financial indices are not neg-
ative;

No significant operational losses or significant
impairments of assets generating cash flows;

No omission or discontinuity in the distribution
of dividends;

Capacity to pay debts on expiration dates;

Capacity to comply with the contractual clauses
of loans;

Management indicators

No situation involving a capital deficit or net
negative working capital;

No loans with fixed or upcoming expiration
dates without positive prospects of renewal or
reimbursement; there is not an excessive de-
pendency on short-term loans to finance long-
term activities;

Other indicators

No share capital decreases below legal limits or
which were not in compliance with other legal
norms;

No legal and fiscal disputes which, in the case of
a loss, could result in obligations of reimburse-
ment that the companies of the Group are not
capable of respecting;

No legislative changes or government policies
which could result in unfavourable effects to the
companies of the Group,

The Directors confirm the reasonable expecta-
tion that the Group will continue its operations
in the near future and that, as a result, the fi-
nancial statements for the year 2017 have been
drafted from the perspective of business conti-
nuity. Thus, no symptoms have been identified
within the assets and financial structure of the
group and in the operational trends that could
constitute cause for uncertainty on business
continuity.



Rating

The rating agency Standard & Poor’s confirmed,
during the 2017 financial year, the long-term rat-
ing of Nexi S.p.A. and Nexi Payments S.p.A. at
BB-, with stable outlook.

Similarly, the rating agency Moody’s confirmed
a “Corporate Family Rating” CFR with a stable
outlook.

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements MNEXI

Significant events after the
reporting period

On 8 February 2018, the Bank of Italy initiated an
inspection with regard to Nexi Payments, aimed
at assessing compliance with the law on the
transparency of transactions and the correct-
ness of relations with clients.

Milan, 21 March 2018
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Consolidated financial statements
as at 31 December 2017

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(€000)
ASSETS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
10. Cash and cash equivalents 3,243,281 1,798,784
20. Financial assets held for trading 17,424 13,193
40. Available-for-sale financial assets 2,710,491 3,357,912
50. Held-to-maturity investments 4,966 15,933
60. Loans and receivables with banks 835,116 747,676
70. Loans and receivables with customers 2,910,913 2,844,529
100. Equity investments 12,102 10,105
120. Property, equipment and investment property 217,658 185,112
130. Intangible assets 1,889,309 1,165,327
including goodwill 1760,623 1064,160
140. Tax assets 103,732 78,149
a) current 45,402 22985
b) deferred 58,330 55,164
including convertible into tax assets (Law no. 214/2011) 40,253 40,344
160. Other assets 648,390 445,378
Total assets 12,593,382 10,662,098
LIABILITIES 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
10. Due to banks 1,692,051 1,567,113
20. Due to customers 7,789,484 6,255,341
40. Financial liabilities held for trading 6,722 8,067
60. Hedging derivatives 5,520 -
80. Tax liabilities 50,004 56,062
a) current - 16,732
b) deferred 50,004 39330
100. Other liabilities 919,308 646,141
110. Post-employment benefits 22,567 20,596
120. Provision for risks and charges 51,903 37,317
a) pension and similar obligations 881 940
b) other provisions 51022 36,377
140. Valuation reserves 90,429 65,863
170. Reserves 1,690,553 1,698,454
180. Share premium 148,242 148,242
190. Share capital 42,557 42,557
200. Treasury shares (-) -32 -32
210. Equity attributable to non-controlling interests (+/-) 4,982 12,379
220. Profit for the period (+/-) 79,092 103,998

Total liabilities and equity 12,593,382 10,662,098
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2017

2016
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INCOME STATEMENT
(€000)
10. Interest and similar income
20. Interest and similar expense
30. Net interest income
40. Fee and commission income
50. Fee and commission expense
60. Net fee and commission income
70. Dividends and similar income
80. Net trading income
90. Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting
100. Profit (loss) on disposal or buy-black of:
b) available for-sale financial assets
120. Total income
130. Net impairment losses on:
a) loans and receivables
b) available-for-sale financial assets
140. Net financial income
180. Administrative expenses:
a) personnnel expenses
b) other administrative expenses
190. Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges
Depreciation and net impairment losses on property, equipment and
200. investment property
210. Amortisation and net impairment losses on intangible assets
220. Other operating income, net
230. Operating costs
240. Share of profits of investees
270. Net gains on sales of investments
280. Pre-tax profit from continuing operations
290. Income taxes
300. Post-tax profit from continuing operations
320. Profit for the period
330. Profit for the period attributable to non-controlling interests
340. Profit for the period attributable to the owners of the parent

72,732
-33,718
39,014
1,078,507
-592,824
485,683
1,494
3,764
999

7,01
701
537,965
-6,695
-2,796
-3899
531,270
-757,582
-261849
-495,733
2,522

-29,246
-38,578
377,574
-445,31
17,367
-7
103,320
-24,855
78,466
78,466
626
79,092

65,095
-28,119
36,976
984,073
-573,587
410,486
né
3,672
300

300
451,550
-4,458
-2,246
-2,212
447,092
-557,545
-155,608
-401937
-2,981

-23,328
-23,838
285,434
-322,258
18
124,852
-19,268
105,584
105,584
-1,586
103,998
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(€000)

CAPTIONS 2017 2016
10. Profit for the period 78,466 105,584
Items, net of tax, that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

40. Defined benefit plans -35 501
Items, net of tax, that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

100. Available-for-sale financial assets 24,950 -3,608
130. Other comprehensive income (expense), net of tax 24,915 -3,107
140. Comprehensive income (10 +130) 103,381 102,477
150. Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests -277 1,635

160. Comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent 103,658 100,842
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

(€000)
ALLOCATION CHANGES FOR THE YEAR
YEAR PROFIT
EQUITY TRANSACTIONS w wOo
‘;’ Q in' FELS
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Share capital:
a) ordinary shares 45045 - 45045 - - 4139 - - - - - - - - 42557 1,349
b) other shares - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Share premium 148,356 - 148,35 - - -46 - - - - - - - - 148,242 68
Reserves:
a) income-related 632,850 - 632,850 2,380 - 1,062,159 - - - - - - - - 1,687606 9782
b) other 10,848 - 10,848 - - - - - - - - - - - 10,848 -
Valuation reserves 237918 - 237918 - - -168,898 - - - - - - - 3107 65,863 50
Equity instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Interim dividend - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Treasury shares 32 - 32 - - - - - - - - - - - 32 -
Profit for the year 95,206 - 95206 2380 -92,826 -455 - - - - - - - 105584 103998 1130
Equity attributable to the
owners of the parent 1,144,559 - 1,144,559 - -90,363 904,047 - - - - - - 100,842 2,059,084 -
Equity attributable to
non-controlling interests 25,633 - 25633 - 2463 -12426 - - - - - - - 1,635 - 12379
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(€000)
ALLOCATION CHANGES FOR THE YEAR
YEAR PROFIT
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Share capital:
a) ordinary shares 43906 - 43906 - - 305 - - - - - - - - 42,557 1,654
b) other shares - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Share premium 148,310 - 148,310 - - 4 - - - - - - - - 148,242 72
Reserves:
a) income-related 1,697,389 - 1697389 39 - 14,240 - - - - 1,679,705 3,483
b) other 10,848 - 10,848 - - - - - - - - - 10,848
Valuation reserves 65913 - 65,913 - - - - - - - - - 24915 90,429 400
Equity instruments - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Interim dividend - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Treasury shares 32 - -32 - - - - - - - - - 32
Profit for the year 105,128 - 105128 -39 -105,089 - - - - - - - 78,466 79,092 -626
Equity attributable to the
owners of the parent 2,059,084 - 2,059,084 - -103,982 7917 - - - - - 103,658 2,050,841
Equity attributable to

non-controlling interests 12,379 - 12,379 - 1007 -6013 - - - - - - - -277 4982
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Indirect method)

(€000)
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1. Operations 174,250 176,002
- profit for the year 79,092 103,998
- net gains on financial assets held for trading and 106 37

financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - -

- net impairment losses 6,695 4,458
- net impairment losses on property, equipment and investment property and intangible assets 67,824 47166
- net accruals to provisions for risks and charges and other costs/revenues -2,522 2,981
- unpaid taxes and duties 24,855 19,268
- other adjustments -1,800 -1,906
2. Cash flows generated by financial assets 337,056 406,319
- financial assets held for trading -4,337 5,509
- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 209,225
- available-for-sale financial assets 617,830 -615,642
- loans and receivables with banks: on demand -85,931 80,010
- loans and receivables with banks: other - -
- loans and receivables with customers -69,132 690,123
- other assets -121,374 37094
3. Cash flows used by financial liabilities 1,598,745 1,254,874
- due to banks: on demand 42,930 -73,454
- due to banks: other - -
- due to customers 1,522,385 1,708,114
- securities issued - -
- financial liabilities held for trading -1,345 3,160
- financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - -
- other liabilities 34,775 -382,946

Net cash flows generated by (used in) operating activities A 2,110,051 1,837,195
B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Cash flows generated by - -

- sales of equity investments -1,888 -
- dividends from equity investments - 415
- sales/repayments of HTM investments 11,000 16,000
- sales of property, equipment and investment property - 2,731
- sales of subsidiaries and business units 16,390 -

2. Cash flows used to acquire - -
- equity investments - -
- HTM investments -

- property, equipment and investment property -22,287 -26,481
- intangible assets -41,478 -41,556
- subsidiaries and business units -624,828 -

Net cash flows used in investing activities B -663,091
C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- issue/repurchase of treasury shares

- issue/purchase of equity instruments
- dividends and other distributions -2,463 -11,910
Net cash flows used in financing activities C -2,463 -11,910

NET CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR D=A+/-B+/-C 1,444,497 1,776,395
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RECONCILIATION
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Financial statements captions

Opening cash and cash equivalents 1,798,784 22,389
Net cash flows for the year 1,444,497 1,776,395
Closing cash and cash equivalents G=E+/-D+/-F 3,243,281 1,798,784
key

(+) generated
(-) used
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

Part A - ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.1- GENERAL PART

SECTION 1 - Statement of compliance

Pursuant to Regulation (EC) no. 1606 of 19 July 2002, the NEXI Group has prepared these consolidated financial statements at
31 December 2017 in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Ac-
counting Standards Board (IASB) and endorsed by the European Commission. They were introduced into Italian law with Legis-
lative decree no. 38/2005.

The group applied the IFRS enacted at 31 December 2017 and Bank of Italy’s instructions about financial statements issued in its
Measure of 22 December 2005, the related Circular no. 262 and subsequent amendments, pursuant to art. 43 legislative decree
no. 136/2015.

It did not make any departures from the IFRS.

SECTION 2 - Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2017 comprise a statement of financial position, an income statement, a
statement of comprehensive income, a statement of changes in equity, a statement of cash flows and these notes.

They are accompanied by a directors’report which comments on the group’s performance, its results of operations and financial
position.

The group’s presentation currency is the Euro and the amounts shown in the consolidated financial statements and these notes
are in thousands of Euros.

The group has applied the recognition and measurement criteria established by the IFRS endorsed by the European Commis-
sion and the general assumptions in the Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements issued by the
IASB.

The following paragraphs illustrate the amendments made to several accounting standards issued by the IASB and validated by
the European Commission, which were applicable on a mandatory basis from FY 2017:

e Reqgulation (EU) no. 1989 of 9 November 2017 -“Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses (Amendments to IAS
12)” amends IAS 12 Income Taxes to address diversity in practice around the recognition of a deferred tax asset that is related to
a debtinstrument measured at fair value that has arisen because of uncertainty about the application of some of the principles
in IAS 12.

e Reqgulation (EU) no. 1990/2017 of 9 November 2017 “Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7)” amends IAS 7 Statement of
Cash Flows to clarify that entities shall provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities.

e Regulation (EU) no. 2018/182 of 7 February 2018 “Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014—2016 Cycle”, amends IFRS 1 First-
time adoption of IFRS, IFRS 12 Disclosure of investments in other entities and 1AS 28 Investments in associates and joint ventures.
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Regarding to the amendment of IAS 28, the IASB clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an in-
vestment in an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other qualifying entity,
is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition

The application of the above-illustrated amendments did not have any significant impact on the Financial Statements.

The following table shows the new standards or amendments with the related endorsement regulations. Their application is
mandatory from 1January 2018 (for entities whose reporting period is the calendar year) or subsequently.

ENDORSEMENT
REGULATION NAME STANDARD/INTERPRETATION YEAR OF APPLICATION
2016/2067 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 2018
2017/1988 Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 2018
4 Insurance Contracts
2016/1905 IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 2018
2017/1987 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Con- 2018
tracts with Customers
2017/1986 IFRS 16 Leases 2019
2018/182 Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of 2018
IFRS Standards 2014-2016 International Financial Reporting Standards, (forthe IFRS 1
Cycle IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and IAS 28
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint amendments)
Ventures

0 000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000 6000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssesessesesnsscsssosscscsnse

With reference to IFRS 9, Nexi Group, during 2016 and 2017, has conducted a project in order to identify the main areas of impact
and to establish the reference method framework for the classification, measurement and impairment of financial assets.

The project scope has included the design and the approval of IFRS 9 application quidelines by the Board of Director and the
subsequent udpate of internal accounting policy.

In particular, for the classification and measurement of debt financial instruments, the analysis highlighted the following:

- Business Model: the Business Models have been defined and approved by the Board of Directors and the internal accounting
policy have been updated. We also proceeded to allocate the financial instruments in the Defined Business Model Portfolio; in
particular, the trading and the loan portfolios will not change and will be allocated respectively in the IFRS 9 "Other” and "Held
to collect” (HTC) portfolios. The portfolio of debt instruments classified in the 1AS 39 portfolio of instruments available for sale
will be allocated in the business model "Held to collect or sale” (HTCS).

- SPPI (Sole payment of Principal and Interest) test: the internal accounting policy has been updated and a market solution has
been purchased to perform the SPPI test. Furthermore, an analysis was carried out on the current stock of financial assets
classified in the HTC and HTCS portfolios, which showed that some instruments classified in the HTCS portfolio didn’t passed
the SPPI test. Since under IAS 39 standard these instruments are classified in the Available For Sale portfolio, the transition to
the new IFRS9 standard needs to reclassify the difference between fair value and carrying amount as at 31 December 2017, from
the Valuation Reserve to “Retained Earnings’, without any impact on the total Net Equity. The subsequent valuations will be
recognized to profit and loss.

With reference to the classification of the equity instruments in the portfolio, we have highlighted the following:

- Instruments held for trading purposes: there are no impacts because these instruments are already measured at fair value
through the income statement for I1AS 39 purposes;

- Capital instruments other than the previous: for these instruments, classified in the portfolio of instruments available for sale
for IAS 39 purposes, the decision taken by the Bank to use the option envisaged by IFRS 9 that allows the measurement of these
instruments at fair value against Shareholders' equity and does not generate any impact on the Bank's net equity. The treat-
ment mentioned before need to reclassify the accumulated losses on the portfolio’ instruments from the Retained Earnings
to the Valuation Reserve.

Regarding to the Impairment rules, a simulation was carried out over to the portfolio at 31 December 2017. The simulation
shows that there are very limited impacts because the Group's loan portfolio mainly consists of current account related to
the services provided by the Group, short term loans related to the e-money services, that are almost fully guaranteed by the
bank partners, and by the short-term trade receivable. No substantial differences were found between the valuation model
with Probability of Default to 1year (for loans classified in stage 1) and with probability of default life time (for loans classified
in stage 2). The model in use is already based on the probability of default to 1year and the changes aforementioned did



48- NE@XI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

not generate impacts. The analyses carried out with reference to the inclusion of looking forward variables have shown the
absence of significant impacts, considering the characteristics of the loan portfolio and the low amount of the provision
recorded for performing loans by the Group.

With reference to the amendments of Hedge accounting rules, Visa shares hedging relationships, started in September 2017 is the
only transaction that falls in this accounting model. Consequently, the Group decided to apply IFRS9 instead of maintaining IAS 39.

Since this hedging relationships is qualified for hedge accounting in accordance with I1AS 39 and also for IFRS 9, is regarded as
continuing hedging relationships, with the requirement to rebalance the IAS 39 hedge ratio if necessary and recognize any
impacts in the income statement. No rebalancing is necessary as at 31 December 2017, because the hedge ratio calculated in
accordance with IAS 39 is the same as that calculated for IFRS 9 purposes.

Therefore, the transition to IFRS 9 will not have any impact on the Group's shareholders' equity but only the reclassification of
the "Hedging Result" from the Retained Earnings to the Valuation Reserve, as a result of the fair value valuation of the object
hedged against equity.

The changes related the accounting treatment of "own credit risk" will not have any impact because this cases are not present in
the consolidated financial statements of Nexi Group.

With reference to IFRS 15, Nexi Group decided to apply the prospective implementation with cumulative effect. Consequently,
the transition date to the new standard is 1January 2018. The impacts have been determined with reference only to the contracts
that have not been completed as the date of first implementation.

The analysis conducted with reference to January 1, 2018, highlighted the following:

- Identification of contracts with customers: no significant impacts were identified.

- Contracts with multiple performance obligations: Performance obligations, in the majority of cases refer to routinary or re-
curring services. For this reason it’s applicable the exception envisaged by IFRS 15 that consider the individual contractual
obligations, such as a single performance obligation. The only impact relates to some up front fee that under IFRS 15 should
be included in the total consideration of the service provided and the revenues from sale of software are considered as a
transfer of right of access that should be recognized straight line basis in relation to the useful life of the underlying contracts.
The change in accounting treatment requires to reverse from the Retained Earnings as at 1January 2018 revenues and costs
that for IFRS 15 purposes are attributable to subsequent financial years.

- Determination of the transaction price: The group has analysed the potential impact arising from “variable consideration”. In
particular existing contracts in some limited cases, include bucket considerations or periodic adjustments according to the
volumes billed for services. The frequency of accounting of the adjustments, generally, does not exceed the solar year. There-
fore, this variable consideration does not affect the annual financial statements of Nexi Group.

- Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations: The contracts including more performance obligations
generally refer to recurring services, for which, there is not the application of significant rebates and consequently there are
no significant impacts.

- Revenue recognition: There are no significant impacts due to the nature of Nexi Group revenues.

Following the summary of the estimates up to date relating to the impacts on the Net Equity of Nexi Group as at 31 December
2017 due to the application of the accounting standards applicable from 1January 2018. These estimates are on going in particu-
lar with reference to Bassilichi Group, acquired during the year.

ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ESTIMATED

AS REPORTED ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENRS ADJUSTED OPENING

AT 31 DECEMBER DUE TO ADOPTION DUE TO ADOPTION BALANCE AT

(€/million) 2017 OF IFRS 9 OF IFRS 15 T1JANUARY 2018
Valuation Reserves 90.3 (0.3) 0.0 90.0

Retained Earnings 1,690.5 0.3 (4.4) 1,686.5

Shareholders Equity 2,050.7 ! 2,046.3
NCI 5.0 0.0 (0.0) 5.0
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With reference to IFRS16, the project has been started at the end of 2017 and will continue in 2018.
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The group applies the measurement criteria assuming that it will continue as a going concern and in accordance with the prin-
ciples of accruals, materiality and significance of the financial data and the principle of substance over form.

The consolidated financial statements and the notes present corresponding prior year figures.

The directors’ report and these notes include all the information required by the IFRS, the law and Bank of Italy, as well as addi-
tional disclosures which are not mandatory but are deemed useful to give a true and fair view of the group’s financial position
and results of operations.

Basis of presentation of the consolidated financial statements

Statement of financial position, income statement and statement of comprehensive income

They comprise captions, subcaptions and additional information. Revenue is shown without a plus sign while costs are shown
with a minus sign in the income statement.

Statement of changes in equity

This statement shows changes in equity during the year split between share capital, equity-related reserves, income-related
reserves, valuation reserves and the profit (loss) for the year. Treasury shares are offset against equity. The parent has not issued
equity instruments other than ordinary shares.

Basis of presentation of the notes

These notes include the information required by Bank of Italy’s Circular no. 262/2005 and the additional information required
by the IFRS.

The accounting policies described below have been adopted to disclose all the information in the consolidated financial state-
ments.

SECTION 3 — Basis of consolidation

The group has established the consolidation scope in accordance with IFRS 10 - Consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the concept of control is fundamental to consolidation of all types of entities. It exists when the investor concurrently:

- has power over the investee

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee;

- has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Therefore, the group consolidates all types of entities when all three control elements exist.
When an entity is directed mainly through exercise of voting rights, control exists when the investor holds more than half the
voting rights.

In other cases, the assessment of control is more complex and requires the greater use of judgement as it is necessary to con-
sider all the factors and circumstances that give control over the investee (de facto control).

In the case of the Nexi Group, all the consolidated entities are directed mainly through voting rights. Accordingly, the group
did not have to exercise special judgements or make significant assumptions in order to establish the existence of control over
subsidiaries and significant influence over associates.

The financial statements at 31 December 2016 of the parent and consolidated companies were used for consolidation purposes,
after being reclassified and adjusted to comply with the consolidation requirements and the IFRS.
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Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated by combining the captions of the statement of financial position and income state-
ment on a line-by-line basis, making the following adjustments:

(a) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary are eliminated;

(b) the equity and profit or loss attributable to non-controlling interests are recognised separately.

Positive differences arising from the above adjustments are recognised as goodwill in caption “130 Intangible assets” at the date of
first consolidation after allocation to the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities. Any negative differences are recognised in profit or loss.

Intragroup assets and liabilities, off-statement of financial position transactions, income and expense and profits and losses
among the consolidated companies are eliminated.

The income and expenses of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.
The income and expense of a subsidiary that is sold are included in the income statement up to the sales date, i.e,, until the date
when the parent ceases to control the subsidiary.

Pursuant to IAS 28, the consolidated financial statements also include the results of associates, i.e., entities over which the group has signif-
icant influence and the power to participate in directing its financial and operating policies without having control or joint control. These
investments are measured using the equity method which entails the initial recognition of the investment at cost and its subsequent meas-
urement using the equity method. The group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss is recognised separately in the income statement.

The difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the group’s share of its equity is included in the investment’s
carrying amount.

If there is indication of impairment, the group estimates the investment’s recoverable amount, considering the discounted
future cash flows that the investee may generate, including the investment’s costs to sell. When the recoverable amount is less
than the investment’s carrying amount, the difference is recognised in profit or loss.

At present, the group is not a party to joint arrangements as defined by IFRS 11in the form of joint ventures (the ventures have
rights to the arrangement’s net assets).



Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Part A - Accounting policies NE€XI -5

1. Investments in fully controlled subsidiaries

TYPE OF INVESTMENT
COMPANY OPERATING REGISTERED RELATIONSHIP «++eecceeerrenmmmmnimunnieeeeeeennnunnnnn VOTING
NAME OFFICE OFFICE 1) INVESTOR INVESTMENT % RIGHTS % (2)
1. Oasi-Diagram S.p.A.  Milan Milan 1 Nexi S.p.A. 100.00 100.00
2. Nexi Payments S.p.A.  Milan Milan 1 Nexi S.p.A. 98.74 98.74
Cividale del Friuli ~ Cividale
3. Help Line S.p.A. / Milan del Friuli 1 NexiS.p.A. 98.74 98.74
Florence/Bologna/ Milan
Siena/Sassari/
Rome/ Milan/
4, Bassilichi S.p.A. Padova 1 Nexi S.p.A. 100.00 100.00
5. Consorzio Padova
Triveneto S.p.A. Padova 1 NexiS.p.A. 26.09 26.09
Bassilichi S.p.A. 64.26 64.26
6. Moneynet S.p.A. Palermo Palermo 1 Bassilichi S.p.A. 61.00 61.00
Consorzio
Triveneto S.p.A. 39.00 39.00
7. Bassmart S.r.l. Florence Florence 1 Bassilichi S.p.A. 95.00 95.00
8. Bassilichi CEE Beograd
Belgrado Beograd 1 Bassilichi S.p.A. 80.00 80.00
9. Ars Blue Beograd Beograd 1 Bassilichi CEE 51.00 51.00
10. Bassilichi CEE
Banja Luka Banja Luka BanjaLuka 1 Bassilichi CEE 100.00 100.00
11. Bassilichi Podgorica ~ Beograd Beograd 1 Bassilichi CEE 100.00 100.00
Key

(1) Type of relationship:

1= majority of voting rights at ordinay shareholders' meetings

2 =dominant influence at ordinary shareholders' meeting

3 =shareholder agreements

4 = othe forms of control

S =single management as per art.26.1 of Legislative decree no.87/92
6 =single management as per art.26.2 of Legislative decree no.87/92

(2) Voting rights at ordinay shareholders' meetings, differenttiating between effective and potential voting rights

The Nexi banking group includes the following companies:

e NexiS.p.A,;

e Oasi Diagram - Outsourcing Applicativo e Servizi Innovativi S.p.A., operating company;
e Help Line S.p.A, operating company;

e Nexi Payments S.p.A,, financial company included in the register of payment institutes as per article 114-septies of the Conso-
lidated Banking Act.

e Bassilichi S.p.A,, operating company;
e Consorzio Triveneto S.p.A., operating company;

e Moneynet S.p.A, financial company included in the register of payment institutes as per article 114-septies of the Consolidated
Banking Act.

e Bassmart Srl., operating company;

e Bassilichi CEE Belgrado, operating company;;
o Ars Blue, operating company;

e Bassilichi CEE Banja Luka, operating company;
e Bassilichi Podgorica, operating company.

As well as the above consolidated banking group companies, the group includes the following associates at 31 December 2017:

o HI-MtfS.p.A., in which the parent has a 25% interest;

e Unione Fiduciaria S.p.A., in which the parent has a 24% interest;
e Win Join in which the parent has a 24% interest;

e Rs Record store in which the parent has a 30% interest;

o |CT Logistica in which the parent has a 33% interest;

® BASSNET SrL in which the parent has a 49.67% interest;

© CONSORZIO ENGBAS in which the parent has a 50% interest;
o ALFAZERO S.p.A. in which the parent has a 39.74% interest;

e K Red in which the parent has a 50% interest.
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2. Significant judgements and assumptions applied to define the consolidation scope
As stated above and given the group’s current structure, where control is principally based on voting rights held, there were
no situations that would have made it necessary to make specific judgements or make significant assumptions to define the

consolidation scope.

This is also true for the associates, where significant influence is basically attributable to the voting rights held by the group.

3. Investments in consolidated companies with significant non-controlling interests

3.1 Non-controlling interests, their voting rights and dividends distributed to them

COMPANY NAME INVESTMENT % VOTING RIGHTS % (1) DIVIDENDS

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000s 6000csesesssscsesssssscscsnsacses

1. Help Line Spa 30% 30% -

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000s 6000csesesssscsesssssscscsnsacses

(1) Availability of votes at ordinary shareholders’ meetings

3.2 Investments with significant non-controlling interests: financial information

(Euro)
OTHER
PROPERTY, com-
EQUIPMENT PRE-TAX PREHENSI-
AND INVEST- PROFIT VE INCOME, Com-
MENT PRO- FROMCON-  POST-TAX  PROFIT  NETOF PREHENSIVE
com- CASHAND PERTY AND NET TINUING PROFITFROM  FORTHE  INCOME INCOME (3)
PANY TOTAL CASHEQUI- FINANCIAL INTANGIBLE FINANCIAL INTEREST ~ TOTAL OPERATING  OPERA- CONTINUING YEAR TAXES =
NAME ASSETS ~ VALENTS  ASSETS ASSETS LIABILITIES EQUITY EXPENSES EXPENSES COSTS TIONS OPERATIONS (1 2 M+(2)
1. Help
LineSpa 23302272 488 6,522,672 2,888,839 793 793 7437200 7437991 -5656,724 -5656,724 75823 -5,580,901

000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesscssccscrssoccscsoscs

4. Significant restrictions

There are no significant restrictions to the exercise of voting rights for the investments in subsidiaries and associates.

5. Other information

Given the group’s structure, there is no other information that needs to be disclosed.

— Events after the reporting period

No events took place after the reporting date that would have had a significant effect on the group’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows or that would have required adjustments to the financial statements captions.

— Other aspects

There is no other information that needs to be disclosed, including with respect to the Bank of Italy/Consob/IVASS document
no. 6 of 8 March 2013.
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A.2 - KEY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CAPTIONS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

Accounting policies
1- Financial assets held for trading
Classification

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:
e acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term;

e part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;

e 3 derivative (except for a derivative that is an effective hedging instrument).

Derivatives are recognised under assets when they have a positive fair value and under liabilities when they have a negative fair
value.

Recognition

Debt and equity instruments are recognised at their settlement date while derivatives are recognised at their trading date.
Financial assets held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, which is usually the transaction price, net of any directly
attributable transaction costs.

Measurement

After initial recognition, financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value. Any resulting fair value gains or losses are
recognised in caption 80 “Trading income (expense)” of the income statement. Interest accrued on these assets is recognised
in caption 10 of the income statement “Interest and similar income”, although interest and/or other income and expense on
trading derivatives are recognised in caption 80 “Trading income (expense)” of the income statement.

Section 17 - Other information provides information on the calculation of fair value of listed financial instruments. Equity in-
struments and derivatives hedging equity instruments are maintained at cost when it is not possible to calculate their fair value
reliably.

Derecognition

Financial assets or parts of financial assets are decognised when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are transferred,
transferring substantially all the related risks and rewards.

2 - Available-for-sale financial assets

Classification

This category includes non-derivative financial assets that are not classified as loans and receivables, financial assets held for
trading, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Recognition

They are initially recognised at the settlement date and measured at fair value, which includes the directly related transaction costs.



54- NE@XI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

Measurement

AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with recognition of amortised cost in profit or loss and the fair value
gains or losses in a specific equity reserve until the asset is derecognised or an impairment loss is recognised. Gains or losses rec-
ognised in equity are reclassified to profit or loss when the asset is sold. The interest coming from the application of amortized
cost are accounted to profit and loss.

Realised gains or losses are recognised in caption 100 “Net profit (loss) on sale or repurchase” of the income statement.
Fair value is calculated using the same criteria applied to financial assets held for trading.

Equity instruments included in this category and derivatives hedging equity instruments are maintained at cost when it is not
possible to calculate their fair value reliably.

The group tests its assets for impairment at each reporting date. When there is a significant or prolonged decline in fair value, the
group recognises it in profit or loss as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount (acquisition cost net of impairment
losses already recognised in profit or loss) and fair value. Fair value losses are significant when they exceed 20% of the cost and
prolonged if they have existed for over nine months.

If the fair value of a debt instrument increases in a subsequent period and this increase is objectively due to an event that took
place in a period after that in which the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed and the
related amount is recognised in the same income statement caption. The reversal may not generate a carrying amount higher
than that which would have been obtained by measuring that asset at amortised cost had the loss not been recognised. Impair-
ment losses on shares, recognised in profit or loss, cannot be reversed through profit or loss but only directly through equity.

Derecognition

Financial assets or parts of financial assets are decognised when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are transferred,
transferring substantially all the related risks and rewards.

3 - Held-to-maturity investments
Classification

This category includes debt instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the group has the ability
and intention to hold to maturity. If it is no longer appropriate to maintain an asset as classified as held to maturity following a
change in the group’s intentions or ability, it is reclassified to “AFS financial assets”.

Recognition
HTM investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the amount traded, including any directly related costs
and income.

Measurement

After initial recognition, HTM investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Fair value gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the investments are derecognised.

At each reporting date, the group tests the HTM investments for impairment. The impairment loss, if any, is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted using the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When the reasons for impairment are no longer valid as a result of an event
that took place subsequent to recognition of the impairment loss, it is reversed through profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets or parts of financial assets are decognised when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are transferred,
transferring substantially all the related risks and rewards.
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4 - Loans and receivables
Classification

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market.

Recognition

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at the agreement signing date, which is usually the disbursement date, based
on the financial instrument’s fair value, which usually equals the amount disbursed including transaction costs or revenue at-
tributable to the individual loan or receivable and determinable from the transaction start date, even when they are disbursed
subsequently. The initially recognised amount does not include costs that, despite having the above characteristics, are to be
reimbursed by the counterparty or that are administrative costs.

Measurement
After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest is recognised in caption 10 “Interest and similar income” of the income statement.

Loans and receivables are tested for impairment at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment due to events subsequent to initial recognition. Indication of impairment is based on one or more events that took
place after initial recognition that have an impact on the estimate of future cash flows of a financial asset or a group of financial
assets that can be measured reliably.

Loans and receivables tested individually for impairment include positions classified as non-performing, doubtful or restruc-
tured as per the Bank of Italy regulations. Assets not tested individually or for which impairment has not been identified are
tested collectively.

The individual impairment test measures the difference between the carrying amount and present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the position’s original effective interest rate.

Estimated cash flows include guarantees securing the debtor’s exposure and their probable enforcement. When enforcement
of the guarantees is unlikely, the group uses their present value, while if it is probable that they will be enforced, the group con-
siders their realisable value net of the costs to be incurred for enforcement.

Impairment losses are recognised in caption 130 “Net impairment losses” in the income statement.

Loans and receivables are reinstated to their original value in subsequent periods when the reasons for impairment are no
longer valid, as long as this assessment is objectively linked to an event that took place after recognition of the impairment loss.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the income statement and may not exceed the position’s amortised cost had
the impairment loss not been recognised.

Loans and receivables that are not tested individually for impairment are tested collectively. They are grouped into categories
based on their risk and the related impairment loss percentages are estimated considering historical data, based on elements
observable at their measurement date, so as to estimate each category’s unrealised loss. The impairment test considers the
counterparty’s country risk. Collective impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets or parts of financial assets are decognised when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are transferred,
transferring substantially all the related risks and rewards.
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7 - Equity investments
This caption includes equity-accounted investees as described in section 3 — Basis of consolidation.

Investments in entities other than subsidiaries and associates are classified as AFS financial assets and treated accordingly
(see point 2).

8 - Property, equipment and investment property
Classification

This caption includes land, owner-occupied property, investment property, furniture and fittings and all equipment. It also com-
prises assets under finance lease.

Recognition

Assets acquired on the market are recognised as assets when the main risks and rewards of title are transferred. Initial recogni-
tion is at cost, which includes all directly related charges.

Land is recognised separately, including when it is purchased together with the building, using the component approach. It is
separated from the building based on third party appraisals.

The cost of extraordinary maintenance that increases the item’s future economic benefits is capitalised while other ordinary
maintenance costs are expensed.

Measurement

Property, equipment and investment property are subsequently measured at cost adjusted by accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses/reversals of impairment losses.

The depreciable value of property and equipment equals their cost as the residual value after depreciation is not deemed signif-
icant. Depreciation is charged systematically on a straight-line basis over the assets” estimated useful life to reflect their techni-
cal-economic life and residual use.

The useful life of the main categories of property, equipment and investment property is as follows:

- furniture and fittings: 8 years;

- owner-occupied buildings: maximum 33 years;

- investment property: maximum 33 years;

- POS and ATM, classified as electronic equipment, are depreciated over three and seven years, respectively, as these periods
are held to reflect their useful lives.

Land is not depreciated as it has an indefinite life nor are works of art as their useful lives cannot be estimated and their value
usually increases over time.

The group tests the assets for impairment at every reporting date. If there is indication of impairment, it compares the asset’s
carrying amount to its recoverable amount being the higher of fair value and value in use.

Derecognition

Property, equipment and investment property are derecognised when sold or when no future economic benefits are expected
from their continued use or sale.
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9 - Intangible assets
Classification

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance able to generate future economic benefits
controllable by the entity.

Recognition

Intangible assets are recognised at cost when the principal risks and rewards are transferred, only when it is probable that the
related future economic benefits will materialise and cost can be measured reliably. Otherwise, cost is expensed in the period
inwhich it is incurred.

Measurement

All intangible assets other than goodwill are considered to have finite useful lives and are amortised in line with their cost and
related useful lives.

In particular:

- technology related intangibles, such as software acquired and software development cost, which are amortised on the basis
of their expected technological obsolescence and over a maximum period of five years. In particular, the costs incurred for
the development of software projects are considered as intangible assets and are recognised under assets only when all the
following conditions are met: i) the cost attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be measured reliably,
(ii) there is the intention, the availability of financial resources and the technical ability of making the intangible asset available
for use or sale, (i) the future economic benefits to be generated by the asset can be demonstrated. Software development
capitalised costs only comprise the costs directly attributable to the development process;

- intangible assets relating to the Depositary services, recorded following the acquisition of contracts or business units, have an
estimated useful life of ten years depending on the contractual terms.

Their residual value is taken to be nil.

At least once a year, the Group perform the impairment test of goodwill for impairment with the comparison between Carrying
Amount and Recoverable Amount.

For the intangible assets different from the goodwill, the Group tests the assets for impairment at every reporting date. If there
is indication of impairment, it compares the asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount being the higher of fair value and
value in use.

Derecognition

The group derecognises intangible assets when they are sold or when it does not expect to receive future economic benefits
from their continued use or sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on business combinations is the difference between the consideration paid, including related costs, and fair
value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the transaction date. If the difference is positive, it is recognised as
an asset (goodwill), being a payment by the acquiree for future economic benefits to be generated by assets that cannot be
identified individually or recognised separately. If the difference is negative, it is recognised directly in profit or loss (excess cost).
Goodwill is recognised at cost, net of accumulated impairment losses. It is not amortised.

It is tested annually for impairment even if there are no indicators of impairment.

Impairment losses on goodwill are recognised in caption 260 “Impairment losses on goodwill” of the income statement.
They are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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11 - Current and deferred taxes
The group estimates current and deferred taxes.

Current taxes not yet paid in whole or in part at the reporting date are recognised as tax liabilities in the statement of financial
position. If payments on account in the current or previous reporting period exceed the related tax expense, the difference is
recognised as a tax asset.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in caption 290 “Income taxes” of the income statement unless they relate to gains or
losses on AFS financial assets and actuarial gains and losses, which are recognised directly in the valuation reserves, net of tax.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position without offsetting as “Tax assets” and “Tax
liabilities”, respectively.

The income tax expense is calculated on the basis of an estimate of the current and deferred tax expense and income. Specifi-
cally, deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities and their tax bases. The group recognises deferred tax assets (in caption 140.b) for deductible temporary differences
and carryfoward tax losses that will reverse in subsequent periods when it is probable that it will make a taxable profit in the same
period, according to its business plans, against which it can offset the deferred tax asset.

Deferred tax liabilities are calculated on all taxable temporary differences, excluding only reserves taxed upon distribution as, given
the amount of the taxed available reserves, the group does not expect to undertake transactions that would require their taxation.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated using the tax rates expected to be enacted in the period in which the deferred
tax asset will be recovered or the deferred tax liability extinguished, based on the ruling tax laws.

They are remeasured reqgularly to reflect any changes in the tax laws or rates or any subjective situations that not allow the re-
coverability.

12 - Provisions for risks and charges
Pension and similar provisions

Internal pension plans are considered to be defined benefit plans. The group calculates the related liabilities and current service
cost using actuarial assumptions and the projected unit credit method. This method projects future payments using historical
figures and the demographic curve and discounts these flows using a market interest rate. The discount rate is the average
market rate at the measurement date. The present value of the group’s liability at the reporting date is also adjusted by the fair
value of any plan assets.

Other provisions

The group recognises provisions for risks and charges when:
e it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event;

e it is probable that an outflow of resources will be necessary to settle the obligation;
and

o the liability can be reliably estimated.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted using the current market rates at the closing
date. Accruals and increases due to the time factor are recognised in profit or loss. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.
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13 - Liabilities and Securities issued
Classification

An issued financial instrument is classified as a liability when, based on the substance of the contractual agreement, the group
has a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another party.

Due to banks and customers include funding obtained on the interbank market and from customers, including through repur-
chase agreements and the placing of bonds and certificates of deposit.

They also include finance lease liabilities.

Recognition

Amounts due to banks are recognised at the contract agreement date, which is usually when the bank receives the funds and
issues the debt instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, which is normally the amount received or the issue price, plus the directly
related costs/income. Internal administrative costs are excluded.

Measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest is recognised in caption 20 “Interest and similar expense” of the income statement.

Derecognition

Financial liabilities, or parts thereof, are derecognised when they are extinguished, i.e, when the obligation is complied with,
cancelled or has expired.

They are also derecognised when previously issued securities are repurchased. The difference between their carrying amount
and the amount paid to repurchase them is recognised in profit or loss.

If the repurchased security is subsequently placed on the market again, this is treated as a new issue and is recognised at the
new placement price.

14 - Financial liabilities held for trading

This caption includes derivatives held for trading with negative fair values.

All financial liabilities held for trading are measured at fair value and the fair value gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The measurement and recognition criteria are identical to those used for financial assets held for trading.

15 - Hedging transactions

Classification

Asset and liability items include financial hedging derivatives, which at the date of the financial statements or interim report
showed a positive and negative fair value, respectively.

Hedges seek to neutralise potential losses recognisable on a given financial instrument or a group of financial instruments, attri-
butable to a specific risk, by offsetting them with the gains recognisable on a different financial instrument or group of financial
instruments in the event that said risk should actually materialise.
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With reference IAS 39 hedges model, Company’s hedging transcations only relate to a single fair value hedges transaction, which
seek to hedge exposure to changes in the fair value of a specific financial asset, attributable to exchange rate and price risk.

As states by IFRS 9 the derivative instruments is designated as hedges provided that the hedging relationship between the hed-
ged instrument and the hedging instruments is formally documented, and it is effective at the time of origination of the hedge
and prospectively throughout its entire life. The hedge effectiveness is assessed at each balance sheet date or interim reporting
date, using:

e prospective tests, that justify the application of hedging accounting in that they demonstrate its expected effectiveness;

e retrospective tests, demonstrating the hedge’s actual effectiveness achieved over the period being examined.

Recognition

The hedging derivative instrument is recognised at a value equal at the transaction date.

Measurement

Hedging derivatives are designated at fair value and the changes in fair value of the hedged element are offset by the changes in
fairvalue of the hedging instrument. Said offsetting is recognised by charging the changes in value referring both to the hedged
element (referring to the changes generated by the underlying risk factor), as well as to the hedging instrument to the income
statement, in the caption “hedging result”. Any resulting difference, which represents the partial ineffectiveness of the hedge,
represents the net effect on the income statement.

If the hedging transaction is discontinued, the hedged instrument returns to being measured based on the criteria in use in its
original category.
Derecognition

If hedging effectiveness test failed, the hedging transaction is discontinued and the derivative instrument is classified within
trading transactions.

Moreover the hedging transaction is discontinued when:
e the derivative instrument expires;

e the hedging instrument is derecognized.

16 - Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition

Upon initial recognition, a foreign currency transaction is translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rate
ruling at the transaction date.

Subsequent measurement

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are retranslated into Euros at each subsequent reporting date using the following criteria
- monetary items are retranslated using the closing rates;

- non-monetary items measured at historical cost are retranslated using the transaction-date exchange rates;
- non-monetary items measured at fair value are retranslated using the closing rates.
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Exchange rate differences arising from the settlement of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise; exchange rate differences on non-monetary items are recognised in equity or in profit or loss in line with the method
used to recognise the gains or losses that include this component.

Foreign currency costs and revenue are translated at the exchange rate ruling on their recognition date or, if they have not been
realised, at the closing spot rate.

18 - Other information

Post-employment benefits

The Italian post-employment benefits (TFR) are a form of deferred remuneration paid to employees when they leave the group.
They accrue over the employment term and are recognised under personnel expense.

Following the Italian supplementary pension reform introduced with Legislative decree no. 252 of 5 December 2005, benefits ac-
cruing from1January 2007 are calculated without using an actuarial approach as the group’s liability is limited to its contribution
defined by the Italian Civil Code (defined contribution plan as per IAS 19).

Post-employment benefits vested up to 31 December 2006 continue to be considered defined benefit plans under IAS 19,
Accordingly, the related obligation is subject to actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. This method projects
future payments using historical statistics and the demographic curve and discounts these flows using a market interest rate.
The rate used to discount the post-employment benefit obligation (both funded and unfunded) varies from country to country.
It is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The term of
the corporate bonds is consistent with the estimated term of the post-employment benefit obligations.

Specifically, the amount recognised as a liability in caption 120.a) equals the net balance of the obligation’s present value at the
reporting date, the sum of any actuarial gains or losses, less any pension costs for past service not yet recognised and the current

value of plan assets, if any, at the reporting date that will be used to directly extinguish the obligation.

Starting from the 2013 consolidated financial statements, the group has recognised actuarial gains and losses in the statement
of comprehensive income as required by the revised IAS 19.

Before that, they had been recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Interest accrued on the net liability continues to be recognised.

Treasury shares

Repurchased treasury shares are directly offset against equity. No gain or loss on the repurchase, sale, issue or extinguishment of
these shares can be recognised in profit or loss. Any amounts paid or received for these shares are recognised directly in equity.

The group has set up the specific reserve as per article 2357-ter of the Italian Civil Code.

Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is measured using the financial market prices in the case of instruments listed on active
markets or by using internal measurement models for other financial instruments.

An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

The closing date bid price and ask price are used for financial assets and financial liabilities respectively.
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The fair value of financial instruments not quoted on active markets is determined using prices of recent market transactions of
instruments with similar characteristics or by using valuation techniques based mainly on discounting cash flows. These techni-
quesinclude all the factors that the market considers to set the price. Accordingly, the models consider the time value of money
measured using the risk-free interest rate, default risks, the prepayment risk and the volatility of the financial instrument price,
as well as, if applicable, foreign currency exchange rates.

The valuation model adopted for a financial instrument is the same over time, adjusted only in the case of significant changes in
market conditions or subjective changes affecting the issuer.

Valuation models based on market parameters are used for bonds and derivatives. The calculation method also considers the
need to include the credit risk of both counterparties.

Specifically, bonds are measured by discounting the expected future cash flows of the contractual plan, adjusted for the issuer
credit risk.

This method is also used for derivatives, being interest rate swaps (IRS), overnight interest rate swaps (OIS) and options.

A fair value hierarchy has been developed for shares and an application order for the measurement methods which considers
any significant transactions involving the share in a sufficiently short time period compared to the measurement period, com-
parable transactions carried out by companies operating in the same sector and the application of financial, income and equity
analytical valuation methods.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost is disclosed in the notes and is determined as

follows:

- for non-current financial assets and liabilities, the discounted cash flow method is mainly used;

- for on demand assets and liabilities, with a short term or undetermined maturity, the carrying amount net of a collective/indi-
vidual impairment loss is deemed to reasonably reflect fair value as it reflects changes in interest rates and the issuer credit risk;

- for floating-rate and current fixed-rate securities issued, the carrying amount is deemed to adequately reflect fair value, for
the reasons set out above;

- for non-current fixed-rate liabilities, the discounted cash flow method, without considering changes in its credit spread, given
its immateriality, is used.

Measurement of fair value of non-financial assets

The fair value of investment property is only calculated for disclosure in the notes. The group uses third party appraisals consi-
dering transactions at current prices in an active market for similar real estate assets in the same location and condition and that
have the same lease and other contractual terms.

Determination of impairment losses on goodwiill

Impairment losses on goodwill are determined using the discounted cash flow method.

Guarantees issued

Guarantees issued, credit derivatives and similar instruments as per IAS 39 and subsequent impairment losses are recognised in
caption 100 “Other liabilities”.
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Income statement

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense and related income and expense relate to cash and cash equivalents, non-derivative financial as-
sets and liabilities held for trading, AFS financial assets, HTM investments, loans and receivables, liabilities and securities issued.

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss on all instruments measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Fee and commission income and expense
They are recognised on an accruals basis.

Specifically, trading commissions on securities are recognised when the service is rendered.

Fees and commissions included in amortised cost to calculate the effective interest rate are excluded as they are recognised
under interest.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss when their distribution is approved.

Other income and costs
They are recognised on an accruals basis.

Business combinations

Assets and liabilities deriving from business combinations are recognised at their acquisition-date fair value. After allocating the
acquisition price to the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent liabilities to obtain their fair value, any positive diffe-
rence is recognised as goodwill. After initial recognition, goodwill is tested for impairment.

If the allocation of the acquisition cost to the assets acquired, liabilities assumed (and contingent liabilities) gives rise to a nega-
tive difference, this is taken to profit or loss.

Utilisation of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
The consolidated financial statements captions are measured using the policies set out above.

Application of these policies sometimes involves the adoption of estimates and assumptions that may have a significant effect
on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The use of reasonable estimates is an essential part of the preparation of financial statements but must not affect their reliability.

The financial statements captions affected to a greater extent by the use of estimates and assumptions are:

e measurement of financial assets not listed on active markets;

e measurement of intangible assets and equity investments;

e quantification of accruals to provisions for risks and charges;

e quantification of deferred liabilities.

A change in an accounting estimate may occur due to changes in the circumstances on which the estimate was based or as a
result of new information or more experience. The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognised prospectively by

including it in profit or loss of the period of the change and, if the change affects future periods, also in future periods.
No significant changes to the accounting estimates were made in 2016.
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A.3 Transfers between portfolios of financial assets

A.3.1Reclassified financial assets: carrying amount, fair value and effects on comprehensive income

INCOME OR EXPENSE
TYPE OF PORTFOLIO TO CARRYING IF TRANSFER HAD NOT INCOME OR EXPENSE
FINANCIAL ORIGINAL WHICHTRAN- AMOUNTAT  FAIR VALUE TAKEN PLACE FOR THE YEAR
INSTRUMENT PORTFOLIO  SFERIS MADE 31.12.2016 AT 31.12.2016 (BEFORE TAXES) (BEFORE TAXES)
FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE
GAIN/LOSS OTHER GAIN/LOSS OTHER
™ 2) 3) @) (O] (6) (0] 8) ©9)
Avai-
Financial  lable-for-sale
1. Debt assets held financial
instruments for trading assets - - 152 -

0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesesesosssssoscsssscsssscsse

A.3.2 Reclassified financial assets: effects on comprehensive income before transfer
No transfers among portfolios took place during the year.

A.3.3. Reclassified financial assets: effects on comprehensive income before transfer

In 2011, as the rare circumstances provided for by IAS 38 arose, the group reclassified Italian treasury credit certificates from the
HFT portfolio to the AFS portfolio.

These rare circumstances related to the international sovereign debt crisis of June 2011 and the continuously widening spread
of the German bund.

A.4 Fair value disclosure
The IFRS require that financial products classified in the HFT or AFS portfolios be measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between mar-
ket participants (i.e., not a forced liquidation or distress sale) on the principal market at the measurement date. Fair value is a
market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. An entity shall measure the fair value of an asset or a liability
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

IFRS 13 establishes a hierarchy for measuring fair value of financial instruments depending on the entity’s use of discretion, pri-
oritising the use of relevant observable inputs that reflect the assumptions that market participants would use to price assets/
liabilities.

The fair value hierarchy has three input levels:

e | evel 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measu-
rement date;

e [ evel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level Tthat are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (pri-
ces) or indirectly (derived from prices);

e [ evel 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The decision about which level to use is not optional as they are to be applied in hierarchical order. Highest priority is given to
official prices available on active markets for the assets or liabilities to be measured (level 1) or assets and liabilities measured
using techniques based on parameters observable on the market other than prices (level 2) and the lowest priority is given to
assets and liabilities whose fair value is calculated using techniques that are based on unobservable inputs and which are, there-
fore, more discretional (level 3).

The group uses the reporting date market price for instruments listed on active markets (level 1).
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The fair value of financial instruments not listed on active markets is measured using techniques mainly based on discounting
cash flows. These techniques consider all the factors that the market uses to set the price which are mainly inputs observable
on the market (level 2). Specifically:

e bonds are measured by discounting the expected future cash flows of the contractual plan, adjusted for the issuer credit risk;

e derivatives, including IRSs and OISs, and options are measured using the market models that mainly use market rates as their
input, adjusted to reflect counterparty risk. This risk includes changes in the counterparty’s credit standing and in the issuer’s
credit standing (own credit risk), if material;

e 3 fair value hierarchy has been developed for shares and an application order for the measurement methods which considers
any significant transactions involving the share in a sufficiently short time period compared to the measurement period, com-
parable transactions carried out by companies operating in the same sector and the application of financial, income and equity
analytical valuation methods.

The valuation model adopted for a financial instrument is the same over time, adjusted only in the case of significant changes in
market conditions or subjective changes affecting the issuer.

The group did not have at the reporting date, nor did it trade in during the period, level 3 financial instruments, except for im-
material amounts.

Qualitative disclosure

A.4.1Levels 2 and 3: valuation techniques and inputs used
As noted above, the group does not have nor did it trade in level 3 financial instruments, except for immaterial amounts.

It measured level 2 financial instruments (mainly Swap, DCS and stock options) using market interest rates and volatility. Given
the bank’s limited operations in the unlisted derivatives segment, its transactions mainly with Italian institutional counterparties
and, with the most relevant of them, its guarantees mitigating risk, the adjustments made to the level 2 instruments to reflect
counterparty risk were immaterial.

A.4.2 Measurement processes and sensitivity
As noted above, the group does not have nor did it trade in level 3 financial instruments, except for immaterial amounts.

A.4.3 Fair value hierarchy
Transfers between the fair value levels are made to reflect changes in the instruments or its market.

Transfers from level 1to level 2 are made when there is an inadequate number of contributors or a limited number of investors
that hold the outstanding float.

Conversely, instruments that are illiquid when issued and have a small number of trades classified in level 2 are transferred to level

1when an active market exists.

A.4.4 Other disclosures
The group did not avail of the exception under IFRS 1348 to measure the net positions of groups of assets and liabilities managed
on a net basis.

The group does not hold assets, the current use of which differs from their highest and best use.
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Quantitative disclosure

A.4.5 Fair value hierarchy
A.4.5.1 Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: breakdown by fair value level

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssnscsossesssscsscscssse

1. Financial assets held for trading 15,944 1,480 - 11,445 1,748 -
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

3. Available-for-sale financial assets 2,502,243 208,248 - 3,170,102 187,810 -
4. Hedging derivatives

S. Property, equipment and investment property

6. Intangible assets

Total 2,518,187 209,728 = 3,181,547 189,559 =
1. Financial liabilities held for trading 1 6,721 - 438 7,629 -
2. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

3. Hedging derivatives
Total 1 6,721 - 438 7,629 =

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssnscsossesssscsscscssse

Key

L1=level
L2 =level 2
[3=level 3

The group did not transfer assets and liabilities between level 1and level 2 during the period.

Given the group’s limited operations in the unlisted derivative segment, the fact that it solely works with Italian institutional
counterparties and the existence of guarantees that mitigate counterparty risk, the above fair value is not significantly influ-
enced by adjustment factors for counterparty risk (credit value adjustments and/or debit value adjustments).

A.4.5.2 Changes in assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis (level 3)

FINANCIAL
ASSETS AT PROPERTY,
FINANCIAL FAIR VALUE AVAILABLE-FOR- EQUIPMENT AND
ASSETS HELD THROUGH SALE FINANCIAL HEDGING INVESTMENT INTANGIBLE
FOR TRADING PROFIT OR LOSS ASSETS DERIVATIVES PROPERTY ASSETS
LOPEMINGDAANCE, | e e e e s e s
2. Increases
2.1 Purchases
2.2 Gains recognised in:
2.2.1 Profit or loss
- including gains on
sales
2.2.2 Equity X X
2.3 Transfers from other levels
2.4 Other increases
3. Decreases
3.1Sales
3.2 Repayments
3.3 Losses recognised in:
3.3.1 Profit or loss
- including losses on
sales
3.3.2 Equity X X

3.4 Transfers to other levels

3.5 Other decreases

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsesscsssssocsscsscscsssscse

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsesscsssssocsscsscscsnsscse
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A4.54 Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value or measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis: breakdown by fair value level

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES NOT
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE OR
MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE ON
A NON-RECURRING BASIS CA L1 L2 L3 CA L1 L2 L3
1. Held-to-maturity investments 4,966 4,966 - 15,933 15,933 -
2. Loans and receivables with banks 835,116 - 835,116 - 747,676 - 747,676 -
3. Loans and receivables with customers 2,910,913 - 2,910,522 391 2,844,529 - 2,844138 391
4. Investment property 69,979 - 76,130 - 71,569 - 75,320 -

5. Non-current assets held for sale
and disposal groups - - - -

6. Intangible assets - - - - - - - .

3,820,974 3,821,768 391 3,679,707 15,933 3,667,134
1. Due to banks 1,692,051 - 1,692,051 - 1,567,113 - 1,567113 -
2. Due to customers 7,789,484 - 7,789,484 - 6,255,341 - 6,255341 -

3. Securities issued - -
4. Liabilities associated with assets
held for sale - - - - - - - -

Total 9,481,535 - 9,481,535 7,822,454 - 7,822,454

000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000008000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scssosscsssssoscscscsscsssesce

Key:

CA = carrying amount
L1=levell

12 =level 2

3=level3

A.5 Information on “day one profit or loss”

Pursuant to IFRS 728 and IAS 39.AG 76, a financial instrument shall be initially recognised at an amount that is equal to its fair va-
lue, which is generally considered to be the price paid/collected from its trading. In practice, there could be a difference betwe-
en the two values. In these cases, the standard stipulates that a financial instrument can be recognised at a fair value different
from the amount paid/collected only if it is measured:

e using prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument;

e Using valuation techniques exclusively based on observable market date as the variable factors.

In other words, I1AS 39 states that the presumption that the fair value is equal to the price paid/collected can be rebutted only if
it is determined using objective evidence that the price paid/collected does not represent the real market value of the financial
instrument being traded.

The objective evidence shall be obtained using the most objective method available, i.e, reducing valuation discretion to the
minimum.

The difference between fair value and the negotiated price, when the above conditions are met, is called the “day one profit or
loss” and is immediately taken to profit or loss.

The group did not recognise transactions of this kind in the period.
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Part B- NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

SECTION 1- Cash and cash equivalents - Caption 10

1.1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: BREAKDOWN

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

a) Cash 516 470
b) Demand deposits with central banks 3,242,765 1,798,314

Total 3,243,281 1,798,784

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

SECTION 2 - Financial assets held for trading - Caption 20

2.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Seecececcecese0sesecseces0000000000000000000000000s 0000000000000 000c0c0ces0s0s0c0s0sseseceseses0s0000e
00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesssssosscsscsnsscsncsce

A. Assets

1. Debt instruments 15,896 - - 1,406 - -
1.1 Structured instruments 182 - - 314 - -
1.2 Other instruments 15,714 - - 11,092 - -

2. Equity instruments 30 - - 13 - -

3. OEIC units 18 - - 26 - -

4. Financing - - - - - -
4.1 Reverse repurchase agreements - - - - - -
4.2 Other - - - - - -

Total A 15,944 - - 1,445 5 -
B. Derivatives

1. Financial derivatives - 1,480 - - 1,748 .

1.1 Trading - 1,480 - R 1,748 B

1.2 Associated with fair value option - - - - . -

1.3 Other - - - - - -

2. Credit derivatives: - - - - - .

2.1 Trading - - - B, _ _

2.2 Associated with fair value option - - - - , R

2.3 Other - - - - - R

Total B 1,480 = 1,748

Total (A +B) 15,944 1,480 = 11,445 1,748 =

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesssssosscsscsnsscsncsce
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2.2 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD FOR TRADING: BREAKDOWN BY DEBTOR/ISSUER

CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS 31.12.20717 31.12.2016

A. Assets
1. Debt instruments
a) Governments and central banks 312 190
b) Other government agencies 1,348 92
¢) Banks 1,697 10,212
d) Otherissuers 2,539 912

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

2. Equity instruments
a) Banks 6
b) Other issuers: 24 4
- insurance companies - -
- financial companies - -
- non-financial companies 24 4

- other - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

3. OEIC units 18 26

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

4. Financing
a) Governments and central banks - -
b) Other government agencies - -
c) Banks - -
d) Other - -
Total A 15,944 1,445
B. Derivatives
a) Banks 1,094 1,598
- Fair value 1,094 1,598
b) Customers 386 150
- Fair value 386 150
Total B 1,480 1,748

Total (A +B) 17,424 13,193

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

SECTION 4 - Available-for-sale financial assets - Caption 40
4.1 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Seecececcecesecsesecsecessecesecsesecsesesecseseses 0000000000 cececesececesesececes0scscscsssses0sRses

CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS L1 L2 L3 L1 L2 L3

1. Debt instruments 2,501,990 - - 3,169,903 - -
1.1 Structured instruments - - - - - -
1.2 Other instruments 2,501,990 - - 3,169,903 - -

2. Equity instruments 253 187,332 - 199 147,575 -
21 FVTPL 253 104,158 - 199 99,992 -
2.2 Cost - 83,174 - - 47,583 -

3. OEIC units - 20,916 - - 40,235 -

4. Financing - - - - - -

Total 2,502,243 208,248 - 3,170,102 187,810 -

000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesnssssssscsssscsscsssse
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4.2 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS: BREAKDOWN BY DEBTOR/ISSUER

CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

1. Debt instruments
a) Governments and central banks 2,501,990 3,169,903
b) Other government agencies - -
c) Banks - -
d) Other issuers - -

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

2. Equity instruments
a) Banks 336 352
b) Otherissuers: 187,249 147,423
- insurance companies - -
- financial companies 88,531 48,540
- non-financial companies 98,718 98,844

- other instruments - 39

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

3. OEIC units 20,916 40,235

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

4. Financing - -
a) Governments and central banks - _
b) Other government agencies - R
c) Banks - R
d) Other - -

Total 2,710,491 3,357,913

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

SECTION 5 - Held-to-maturity investments - Caption 50

5.1 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 ©0000000000000000000000000s0sesesssssscscsecssssscscscsnsscscs
secsesesesscscscsesesscscsesesecssscsesssenn e secesecesecsesesecscsesesecscstsesssecsesnsnne

CA LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 CA LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

0000 0000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesssnsosssscscsscscsssscse

1. Debt instruments

- structured
instruments 4966 4916 - - 4,948 4,948 - -

- other instruments - - - - 10,985 10,985 - -

2. Financing - - - - _ - _ _

Total 4,966 4,916 = = 15,933 15,933 = =

0000 0000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesssnsosssscscsscscsssscse

FV = fair value
CA = carrying amount

The decrease is due to the repayment of matured securities.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Part B - Notes to the statement of financial position NE€XI -71

5.2 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS: BREAKDOWN BY DEBTOR/ISSUER

TYPE OF OPERATIONS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

1. Debt instruments
a) Governments and central banks - -
b) Other government agencies - -
¢) Banks 4,966 15,933

d) Otherissuers - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

2. Financing - -
a) Governments and central banks - -
b) Other government agencies - -
c) Banks - -
d) Other - -

Total 4,966 15,933

Total fair value 4,966 15,933

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

SECTION 6 - Loans and receivables with banks - Caption 60

6.1 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH BANKS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000sesesesesssssssscssscscscscsesnsoce

FV

TYPEOFOPERATIONS/ P P PR NY R R PR PR RY
AMOUNTS CA LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 CA LEVEL1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3

A. Loans and receivables
with central banks 179,264 - 179,264 - 170,519 - 170,519 -

1. Term deposits - X X X - X X X
2. Minimum reserve 179,264 X X X 170,519 X X X

3. Reverse repurchase
agreements - X X X - X X X

4. Other - X X X - X X X

B. Loans and receivables
with banks 655,851 - 655,851 - 577,158 - 577,157 -

1. Financing 651,625 - - - 573,103 - - -

1.1 Current accounts and
demand deposits 330,297 X X X 180,698 X X X

1.2 Term deposits 2,460 862
1.3 Other financing: 318,868 391,543

- Reverse repurchase
agreements 136,217

X
x
x
x
x
x

x
x
X
x
x
x

231,707
- Finance leases - -

- Other 182,651
2. Debt instruments 4,226

2.1 Structured
instruments - X X X - X X X

2.2 Other instruments 4,226 X X X 4,055 X X X

159,836
4,055

X X X X
X X X X
X X X X
X X X X
X X X X
X X X X

Total (carrying amount) 835,116 747,676

000 0000000000000000000000000000000 6000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscscsscssse

Key
FV = fair value
CA=carrying amount
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SECTION 7 - Loans and receivables with customers - Caption 70

7.1 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s 00000000000 0000000000000000sscssesesssscsesesssscscsssscscsccnssces
600 000000000000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000s 000000000000 00000000000000000000000000 e Sescecsseseces s s 00 e e

TYPE OF NON -PERFORMING NON -PERFORMING
OPERATIONSI escccccccccssssscccccce eeessssssccccccccccnnoe
AMOUNTS PERFORMING PURCHASED OTHER L1 L2 L3 PERFORMING PURCHASED OTHER L1 2 L3

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0ssscsesssssscssososssssscsscs

Financing 2,910,137 - 776 - 2910,137 776 2,843,429 - 1]00 - 2,843,429 1,100
1. Current accounts 1,427 - 391 X X X 117,650 - 391 X X X

2. Reverse repurchase

agreements 204,548 - - X X X 207517 - -
3.Loans - - - X X X - - -
4. Credit cards,

personal loans and

salary backed loans 2,318,430 - 170

5. Finance leases - - _

2,236,874 - 151

6. Factoring - - -
7. Other financing 345,732 - 215

Debt instruments - - -

<X X X X
X X X X
<X X X X
<X X X X
X X X X
<X X X X

281,388 - 558

8. Structured instru-
ments - - - X X X - - - X X X

9. Other instruments - - - X X X - - - X X X

2,910,137 776 - 2910137 776 2,843,429 1,100 - 2,843,429 1,00

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0ssscsesssssscssososssssscsscs

“Other financing” mainly relates to guarantee deposits.

7.2 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS: BREAKDOWN BY DEBTOR/ISSUER

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Seecececcecese0sesecseces0000000000000000000000000s 0000000000000 000c0c0ces0s0s0c0s0sseseceseses0s0000e
secessccesscsesscsesscscssccecne o seesececsesscsesscsesscsesscsene o

TYPE OF OPERATIONS/AMOUNTS PERFORMING PURCHASED OTHER PERFORMING PURCHASED OTHER

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesssssosscsscsnsscsncsce

1. Debt instruments - - - - - -
a) Governments - - - - - _
b) Other government agencies - - - - - -
¢) Other - - - _ - _
- non-financial companies - - - - - -
- financial companies - - - - - -
- insurance companies - - - - - -

- otherissuers - - - - - -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesssssosscsscsnsscsncsce

2. Financing to: 2,910,137 - 776 2,843,429 - 1,100
a) Governments - - - - - -
b) Other government agencies 1 - - - - -
c) Other 2,910,136 - 776 2,843,429 - 1,700
- non-financial companies 144,736 - 215 33,554 - 558
- financial companies 435,962 - 391 572,812 - 391
- insurance companies 10,721 - - 50 - -
- other 2,318,717 - 170 2,237,012 - 151

Total 2,910,137 = 776 2,843,429 = 1,100

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sesssssosscsscsnsscsncsce
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SECTION 10 - Equity investments - Caption 100

10.1 Investments in equity-accounted jointly-controlled entities and associates

10.1 EQUITY INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT

REGISTERED OPERATING +++v+evsesesesacacaceasasssnsacacaanasnsnnes VOTING

COMPANY NAME OFFICE OFFICE INVESTOR INVESTMENT % RIGHTS %
BAssoaates e eteeatietattetattaeamatat aeatetartataraenttaeasnteaeaenttaentesmateronteasnttaensnatremesrastrsentenasntenat
1. Hi-Mtf Sim Spa Milano Milano Nexi Spa 25 25

2. Unione Fiduciaria Milano Milano Nexi Spa 24 24
3. Win Join Lecce Lecce Bassilichi SpA 24 24
4. Rs Record store Piacenza Piacenza Bassilichi SpA 30 30
S.ICT Logistica Empoli Empoli Bassilichi SpA 33 33
6. BASSNET SrL Monteriggioni Monteriggioni Bassilichi SpA 49.68 49.68

7. CONSORZIO ENGBAS Firenze Firenze Bassilichi SpA 50 50
8. ALFAZERO SpA Firenze Firenze Bassilichi SpA 39.74 39.74

9. K.Red Milano Milano Bassilichi SpA 50 50

0 00000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000esscrscssssssccesssssnsesesce

10.2 SIGNIFICANT EQUITY INVESTMENTS: CARRYING AMOUNT, FAIR VALUE AND DIVIDENDS
RECEIVED

COMPANY NAME CARRYING AMOUNT FAIR VALUE DIVIDENDS RECEIVED

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

B. Associates

1. Hi-Mtf Sim Spa 1,523
2. Unione Fiduciaria 8,690 363
3. Win Join 48
4. Rs Record store 1,364
5.ICT Logistica 258

6. BASSNET SrL -
7. CONSORZIO ENGBAS -
8. ALFAZERO SpA -
9. K.Red 219

X X X X X X X X X

Total 12,102 = 363

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e
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10.5 EQUITY INVESTMENTS: CHANGES

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

A.Opening balance 10,105 106,417

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

B. Increases
B.1 Purchases
B.2 Reversals of impairment losses
B.3 Fair value gains 492 18
B.4 Other increases 1,890 24,094

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

C.Decreases
C.JSales
C.2 Impairment losses
C.3 Other decreases 385 120,424

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

D.Closing balance 12,102 10,105

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

E. Total fair value gains

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

10.6 Significant assumptions used for the assessment of the existence of joint control or signifi-
cant influence

None.

10.7 Commitments for interests in jointly controlled entities

None.

10.8 Commitments for investments in associates

None.

10.9 Significant restrictions

None.

10.10 Other information

None.
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SECTION 12 - Property, equipment and investment property - Caption 120

12.1 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS MEASURED AT COST

ASSETS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

1. Owned
a) land 18,804 18,804
b) buildings 66,091 48,816
¢) furniture 1,410 2,022
d) electronic systems 54,551 42,270
e) other 4,601 1,631

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

2. Under finance lease - -
a) land - R
b) buildings - -
c) furniture - a
d) electronic systems 1,294 -
e) other 928 -

Total 147,679 113,543

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

12.2 INVESTMENT PROPERTY: BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS MEASURED AT COST

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000sesesesesssssssscssscscscscsesnsoce

FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE
CARRYING P P PR NY CARRYING R R PR PR RY
ASSETS/AMOUNTS AMOUNT L1 L2 L3 AMOUNT L1 L2 L3

000 0000000000000000000000000000000 6000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscscsscssse

1. Owned
a) land 39,898 - - - 39,898 - - -
b) buildings 30,080 - - - 31,671 - - -

000 0000000000000000000000000000000 6000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscscsscssse

2. Under finance lease - - - - - - - -
a) land - - - - - - _ R
b) buildings - - - - - - - -

Total 69,979 = 76,130 = 71,569 = 75,320 =

000 0000000000000000000000000000000 6000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscscsscssse
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12.5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT: CHANGES

ELECTRONIC
LAND BUILDINGS FURNITURE SYSTEMS OTHER TOTAL

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese

A. Gross opening balance 23,453 96,760 8,710 204,516 42,571 376,011
Al Total net impairment losses 4,649 47944 6,689 162,246 40,941 262,470
A.2 Net opening balance 18,804 48,816 2,022 42,270 1,631 13,543

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese

B. Increases - 20,085 817 36,455 6,291 63,647
B.1 Purchases - 25 774 21,786 1,529 24,114
B.2 Capitalised improvement costs - - - - R R
B.3 Reversals of impairment losses - - - . - B
B.4 Fair value gains recognised in: - - - - - _

a) equity - R B B ) )
b) profit or loss - - - R . R
B.5 Exchange rate gains - - - - - _
B.6 Transfers from investment property - - - - . -
B.7 Other increases - 20,060 42 14,669 4,763 39,534
- including business combinations - 20,060 - 14,669 4,640 39,369
- other changes - - 42 R 123 165

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese

C. Decreases - 2,810 1,427 22,881 2,393 29,511
C.1Sales - - 1,210 497 19 1,825
C.2 Depreciation - 2,805 217 22,384 2,249 27,656
C.3 Impairment losses recognised in: - - - - . -

a) equity - . - _ _ }
b) profit or loss - - i _ i ;
C.4 Fair value gains recognised in: - - - - , -
a) equity - . - _ _ i}
b) profit or loss - - - R B B
C.5 Exchange rate losses - - - . - i,
C.6 Transfers to: - - - B - B
a) investment property - - . - ) _
b) disposal groups - - _ - _ R
C.7 Other decreases - 5 - R 25 30

- business combinations - - - - - -

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese

D. Net closing balance 18,804 66,091 1,41 55,844 5,529 147,679
D. Total net impairment losses 4,649 50,754 8,116 185,127 43,334 291,981
D.2 Gross closing balance 23,453 116,845 9,527 240,971 48,863 439,660

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsossesesssscssescsnsnsosnsosese
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12.6 INVESTMENT PROPERTY: CHANGES

TOTAL

Secececesecsesesecscsesesecscscsesesecscsesesssscsesessssesese e

LAND BUILDINGS

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

A. Opening balance 39,898 31,671

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

B. Increases - -
B.1 Purchases - -
B.2 Capitalised improvement costs - -
B.3 Fair value gains - -
B.4 Reversals of impairment losses - -
B.5 Exchange rate gains - -
B.6 Transfers from property and equipment - -

B.7 Other increases - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

C. Decreases - -
C.1Sales - -
C.2 Depreciation - 1,590
C.3 Fair value losses - -
C.4 Impairment losses - -
C.5 Exchange rate losses - -
C.6 Transfers to other portfolios - -

a) property and equipment - -
b) non-current assets held for sale - -

C.7 Other decreases - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

D. Closing balance 39,898 30,081

E. Fair value 76,130

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

Investment property is covered by IAS 40 and includes property held to earn rental and/or obtain appreciation of invested ca-
pital.

Investment property is measured at cost, net of depreciation.

The bank’s investment properties granted under operating leases are listed below:

- building in via Verziere 11, Milano;

- building in via Cavallotti 14, Milano;

- building in via Zurigo 3, Milano;

- building in via Broletto 37 Milano;

- building in Corso Europa 18, Milano;

- building in Strada Uno Milanofiori, Assago;

- building in via Nazionale 3, San Giovanni al Natisone.

At the reporting date, there are no:

- restrictions to the sale of investment property or the collection of lease payments;
- obligations/contractual commitments to purchase, build, develop, repair or maintain owner-occupied property.
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SECTION 13 - Intangible assets - Caption 130

13.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS: BREAKDOWN BY ASSET

ASSETS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

FINITE LIFE INDEFINITE LIFE FINITE LIFE INDEFINITE LIFE

000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s000scscscsesesssesnsscnsns o

A.1Goodwill - 1,760,623 - 1,064,160

A1 attributable to the owners
of the parent - 1,760,623 - 1,064,160

A.1.2 attributable to non-con-
trolling interests - - - -

A.2 Other intangible assets - - - -
A.2.1 Assets measured at cost: - - - -

a) Internally generated
assets - - - -

b) Other 128,686 - 101,167 -

A.2.2 Assets measured at fair
value: - - - -

a) Internally generated
assets - - - -

b) Other - - - -
Total 128,686 1,760,623 101,167 1,064,160

000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s000scscscsesesssesnsscnsns o
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13.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS: CHANGES

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS:
INTERNALLY GENERATED OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS ASSETS: OTHER

Gececsccesscsesscsessccecscsecse s eececsccecscsecscsecscsesscsetne o

GOODWILL FIN. IND. FIN. IND. TOTAL

A. Opening balance 1,064,160 - - 218,228 - 1,282,388
Al Total net impairment losses - - - 117,060 - 117,060
A.2 Net opening balance 1,064,160 - - 101,168 - 1,165,328

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

B. Increases 696,463 - - 67,137 - 763,600
B.1 Purchases - - - 48,524 - 48,524

B.2 Increase in internally generated
assets - - - - - -

B.3 Reversals of impairment losses - - - - - R
B.4 Fair value gains recognised in: - - - - - -
- equity - - - - - -
- profit or loss - - - _ _ }
B.5 Exchange rate gains - - - - R _
B.6 Other increases 696,463 - - 18,613 - 715,076
- including business combinations 696,463 - - 18,613 - 715,076

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

C. Decreases - - - 39,619 - 39,619
C.JSales - - - . - -
C.2 Impairment losses - - - - - i,

- Amortisation - - - 38,578 - 38,578

- Fair value losses - - - . _ -
+equity - - - - - -

+ profit or loss - - R - _ _

C.3 Fair value losses recognised in: - - - - - R
- equity - - - - - -

- profit or loss - - - _ _ _

C.4 Transfers to non-current assets
held for sale - - - - - -

C.5 Exchange rate losses - - - - - _
C.6 Other decreases - - - 1,041 - 1,041

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

D. Net closing balance 1,760,623 - - 128,686 - 1,889,309
D.1 Total net impairment losses - - - 39,619 - 39,619

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

E. Gross closing balance 1,760,623 - - 168,305 - 1,928,928

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

0 60000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscsocesscsscsscscsacssses

Key
FIN .= finite life
IND.=indefinite life
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Impairment test
Nexi Group has performed the impairment test on the intangible asset with an indefinite useful life.

The impairment test has been performed for the following CCUs (cash-generating unit) that, except from 2017 changes in the
Group/business perimeter, have not been changed in respect to test performed for 2016 Financial Statements:

GOODWILL
CGUS €min
Ccucards7897
MPS Acquiring 517.0
DB Acquiring 41.5
CGU Payment 200.7
CGU Securities Services 459
CGU Outsourcing 27.8
Bassilichi - Triveneto 1379

Total 1,760.5

P Y PR R Py R P PP PR PP PR PP PP

The recoverable amount a CGU is the higher of its:
- Fair value less costs of disposal;
- Value in Use.

The estimate of Value in Use has been carried out by applying the Dividend Discount Model in its Excess Capital version which
was developed starting from Nexi Group 2017-2021 Business Plan, which has been approved by the Board of Director (BoD) of the
Parent Company on February 9th, 2017 The Business Plan will be applied on a pro-forma basis to take into account the updates
approved by the BoD, the changes in the Group perimeter and the items included in the Budget 2018.

As regards the Fair Value determination, it was applied the trading multiples method, using the median P/E adjusted multiple of
a panel of comparable companies.

The main parameter used to estimate the cost of Capital in the calculation of the Value in Use are the follows:

CARDS/
MPS/DB/ SECURITIES
COST OF CAPITAL (KE) BASSILICHI PAYMENTS SERVICES OUTSOURCING
Risk free rate 31.12.2017 1.97% 197% 1.97% 1.97%
Equity Risk Premium 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Beta 112 115 115 096
Ke 8.15% 8.32% 8.27% 7.24%

000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s000scscscsesesssesnsscnsns o

They have been determined as follows:

- Risk free: gross yield of Italian BTP 10Y at December 31 2017 (Source: Info provider);

- Beta used on consolidated DDM: weighted average of median betas of listed comparable companies identified for each CGU;
- Equity Market Risk Premium: in line with the best professional valuation praxis.

In order to determine the Terminal Value of the CGUs:
- g rate: 2.0%, in line with ECB's target for the inflation rate of the Euro Zone.
- a prudential add-on of 100 bps to the discount rate has been applied.

The Distributable dividends during the explicit projections period and sustainable dividend for Terminal Value calculation have
been determined considering the compliance with a minimum CET 1target of 14.0% as established by Bank of Italy. CET1 of 14%
is a target ratio for Nexi Group to be calculated on the basis of Mercury UK HoldCo consolidation perimeter.
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Valuation activities on goodwill submitted to impairment test resulted in any indication of impairment loss.
It was carried out a sensitivity analysis, for each CGU, to assess the change of the value in use at consolidated level, respect the

changes in valuation parameters Ke and g (+/- 25 bps). The analysis, except in some cases and in some extreme scenarios, did
not show any critical situation.

- Tax assets and liabilities - Caption 140 of assets and Caption 80 of liabilities

14.1 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS: BREAKDOWN

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
IRAP
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables 308 337
Provisions 210 190
Substitute tax on goodwill 3,505 3,543
Amortisation/depreciation 1,459 1,272
Fair value reserve 16 81
Other 309 3
IRES
Net impairment losses on loans and receivables 1,156 12,183
Provisions 8,377 7128
Substitute tax on goodwill 17,307 17,490
Impairment losses on intangible assets, P&E and investment property 12,811 11,460
Fair value reserve 77 398
Other 2,795 1,080
14.2 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES: BREAKDOWN

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
IRAP
Building revaluations 3,757 3,894
Other 2,651 858
Fair value reserve 1,314 1,594
IRES
Building revaluations 19,590 19,931
Other 13,949 5,185

Fair value reserve 8,743 7,868

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e
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14.3 CHANGES IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

1. Opening balance 53,766 52,108

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

2. Increases
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year
a) related to previous years
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) reversals of impairment losses
d) other 5,675 6,457
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3 Otherincreases 1,143 616

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

3. Decreases

3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year
a) reversals 3,267 5,127
b) impairment due to non-recoverability
c) change in accounting policies
d) other

3.2 Decrease in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases
a) conversion into tax credits as per Law no. 214/2011
b) other 288

4. Closing balance 57,317 53,766

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

14.3.1 Change in deferred tax assets as per Law no. 214/2011
(recognised in profit or loss)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

1. Opening balance 40,344 40,560

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

2. Increases 1,304 1,323

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

3. Decreases
3.1 Reversals 1,395 1,539
3.2 Conversions into tax assets
a) arising from the loss for the year
b) arising from tax losses

3.3 Other information

4. Closing balance 40,253 40,344

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses
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14.4 CHANGES IN DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

1. Opening balance 29,857 26,128

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

2. Increases
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year
a) related to previous years
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) other 10,647 8,591
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3 Other increases

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

3. Decreases
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year
a) reversals 567 4,862
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) other
3.2 Decrease in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases

4. Closing balance 39,937 29,857

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

14.5 CHANGES IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (RECOGNISED IN EQUITY)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

1. Opening balance 1,398 1,008

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

2. Increases
2.1 Deferred tax assets recognised in the year
a) related to previous years
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) other 2,697
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3 Other increases

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

3. Decreases
3.1 Deferred tax assets derecognised in the year
a) reversals 385 2,307
b) impairment due to non-recoverability
¢) due to changes in accounting policies
d) other
3.2 Decrease in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases

4. Closing balance 1,013 1,398

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e
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14.6 CHANGES IN DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (RECOGNISED IN EQUITY)

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

1. Opening balance 9,472 26,031

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

2. Increases
2.1 Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the year
a) related to previous years
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) other 2,019 8,460
2.2 New taxes or increases in tax rates

2.3 Other increases

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

3. Decreases
3.1 Deferred tax liabilities derecognised in the year
a) reversals
b) due to changes in accounting policies
c) other 1,424 25,019
3.2 Decrease in tax rates

3.3 Other decreases

4. Closing balance 10,067 9,472

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

SECTION 16 - Other assets - Caption 160

16.1 OTHER ASSETS: BREAKDOWN

ASSETS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

Withholding taxes paid on interest charged to customers and other tax assets 89,809 89,286
Negotiated cheques to be cleared 34,844 1,644
Matured securities and accrued interest to be collected 4,855 70
Commissions and other income to be charged 239,580 160,534
BIREL, transfers, SETIF, received messages to be charged, e-money 195,080 139,310
Sundry and residual items 84,222 44,535

Total 648,390 445,378

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses



Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Part B - Notes to the statement of financial position NE€XI -85

LIABILITIES

SECTION 1 - Due to banks - Caption 10

1.1 DUE TO BANKS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

TYPE OF OPERATIONS / GROUP' COMPONENTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1Duetocentra|banks1,774 362
2. Due to banks 1,690,277 1,566,251

2.1 Current accounts and demand deposits 878,371 818,979
2.2 Term deposits 124,428 215,440
2.3 Financing 387,228 212,982
2.3.1 repurchase agreements - -
2.3.2 other 387,228 212,982
2.4 Commitments to repurchase own equity instruments - -
2.5 Other liabilities 300,250 318,850
Total 1,692,051 1,567,113
Fair value - level 1
Fair value - level 2 1,692,051 1,567,113

Fair value - level 3

Total fair value 1,692,051 1,567,113

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

SECTION 2 - Due to customers - Caption 20

2.1 DUE TO CUSTOMERS: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

TYPE OF OPERATIONS / GROUP' COMPONENTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
‘|Currentaccountsanddemanddep05|ts6,848,314 5153539
2. Term deposits 174 209
3. Financing 341,448 231,676
3.1 repurchase agreements 340,792 231,676
3.2 other instruments 656 -

4. Commitments to repurchase own equity instruments - -

5. Other liabilities 599,048 869,918
Total 7,789,484 6,255,341
Fair value - level 1

Fair value - level 2 7,789,484 6,255,341

Fair value - level 3

Total fair value 7,789,484 6,255,341

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e
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SECTION 4 - Financial liabilities held for trading - Caption 40
4.1 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING: BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000 0000000000srsesssscsesssscscsesssscscsnsnnss

FV FV
TYPEOFOPERATIONS/ eesccsccsececsccseceseccsccsccecenen o eeccscececcscsscecsscscsscsscsces o
GROUP' COMPONENTS NA L1 L2 L3 FV* NA L1 L2 L3 FV*

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscscsscssccssscesscssossnss

A. Financial liabilities
1. Due to banks - - - - - 69 90 - - -
2. Due to customers 1 1 - - - 302 348 - - -
3. Debt instruments - - - - - - . - R _

3.1Bonds - - - - - - - _ R i
3.1.1 Structured - - - -
3.1.2 Other - - - -

xX X
!

3.2 Other securities - - - - - - - - R .
3.2.1 Structured - - - -
3.2.2 Other - - - - X - - - _ X

>
!
!
>

Total A 1 1 - - 371 438 - -
B. Derivatives
1. Financial derivatives - - - - . - _
1.1 Trading X - 6,721 - X X - 7,629 - X

1.2 Associated with
fair value option X - - - X X - . - X

1.3 Other - - - - - _ _
2. Credit derivatives - - - - - - i
2.1 Trading X - - - X X - . - X

2.2 Associated with
fair value option

X X X
2.3 Other X - - - X X - - - X
X X X

Total B

= 6,721 = 7,629

00 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssscsscsssssssssosse

Total (A +B) X L 6,721 = X 371 438 7,629 = X

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscscsscssccssscesscssossnss

Key!

FV = fair value

NA = nominal or notional amount

FV* = fair value calculated by excluding changes in value due to changes in the issuer's credit standing compared to the issue date
L1=level

12 =level 2

3 =level 3
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SECTION 6 - Hedging derivatives - Caption 60

6.1. HEDGING DERIVATIVES: BREAKDOWN BY TYPE OF HEDGE AND LEVEL

FAIR VALUE 31.12.2017 FAIR VALUE 31.12.2016

TYPEOFDERIVATIVESI P R T IY VN D Y T LY VN
UNDERLYING ASSETS L1 L2 L3  31.12.2017 L1 L2 L3 31.12.2016

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 00000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000soscsssssssscsscscsnsscse

A.Financial derivatives - - - - - - - -
1) Fair value - - - - - - - _
2) Cash flows - - - - - - R -
3) Foreign investments - - - - - - R R

B. Credit derivatives - - - - - - - -
1) Fair value - - - - - - - _
2) Cash flows - 5,520 -

Total - 5,520 -

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 00000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000soscsssssssscsscscsnsscse

6.2. HEDGING DERIVATIVES: BREAKDOWN BY HEDGED PORTFOLIO AND TYPE OF HEDGE

FAIR VALUE CASH FLOW

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscscs s0scscscscscscsccscscsese

SPECIFIC

seesecesecsccesecesecsesesesssscsesesscscsesesecscsesesssecsesee

FOREIGN
INTEREST EXCHAN- CREDIT PRICE VARIOUS FOREIGN
OPERATIONS/TYPE OF HEDGE RATE  GERISK RISK RISK RISK GENERIC SPECIFIC GENERIC INVESTM

1. Financial assets available
for sale - - - 5,520 - X -

2. Loans - - - X -
3. Investments held to maturity X
4. Portafolio X X X X X X

5. Other transactions - - - - - - R _

!
=
!

X X X X

Total assets - - - 5,520 = o - - -
1. Financial liabilities - - - - - _ X X
2. Portfolio X X X X X - X -

Total liabilites
1. Forecast transactions X X X X X X - X X

2. Financial assets and liabilities
portfolio X X X X X - X - -

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssoscsssssssscsscscsesse

SECTION 8 - Tax liabilities - Caption 80

See section 14 of Assets.
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SECTION 10 - Other liabilities - Caption 100

10.1 OTHER LIABILITIES: BREAKDOWN

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

Tax liabilities, withholding taxes and other amounts to be paid 33,820 24,080
Cheques, cheque truncation flows to be credited 18,540 1,314
Securities, currency and premium transactions paid for options to be credited 1,934 1,757
Due to employees 95,536 25,906
Other liabilities for expenses, commissions and interest to be paid 257,724 163,987
Prepaid debit cards 45,554 56,769
Currency differences on portfolio transactions 5,264 17,202
BIREL, transfers, payment flows to be credited 367,244 277,868
Sundry and residual items 93,692 67,259

Total 919,308 646,141

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

SECTION 11 - Post-employment benefits - Caption 110

11.1 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS: CHANGES

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

A. Opening balance 20,596 21,677

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

B. Increases
B.1 Accruals 276 231
B.2 Other increases 6,916 18
- including business combinations 6,916

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

C. Decreases
C.1 Payments 4,629 577
C.2 Other decreases 592 753
Post-employment benefits 22,567 20,596

Total 22,567 20,596

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

11.2 OTHER INFORMATION

MAIN DEMOGRAPHIC AND ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS USED TO MEASURE POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
Mortality among aged pensioners Rates relating to Italians broken down by age and gender, published
by ISTAT in 2000 and reduced by 25%.

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Mortality among total and permanent disability pensioners Rates inferred from the invalidity tables currently used by the reinsu-
rance practice, broken down by age and gender.

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Annual rate of advances 1,72%

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Turnover annual 1,65%

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Retirement Rate based on the satisfatiction of the first requirement for the man-
datory general insurance.

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Inflation 1,5%

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s

Annual discount rate "1.30% inferred, in accordance with par. 83 of IAS 19, the index Iboxx
Corporate AA 10+ duration detected at the measurement date. To this
end it was decided the performance with a duration comparable to
the duration of the collective of the evaluated employees.

0000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssssssscsesssosssssssscscses s
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Sensitivity analysis

As required by IAS 19, the group carried out a sensitivity analysis of the liability for post-employment benefits with reference to
the most significant actuarial assumptions. It aimed at showing how much the carrying amount of the liability would be affected
by reasonably possible variations in each of the assumptions. Specifi cally, the following table sets out the change in the liability
for post-employment benefits assuming that the main assumptions used increase or decrease.

CHANGE IN CHANGE IN

POST-EMPLOYMENT POST-EMPLOYMENT

BENEFITS IN BENEFITS IN

€'000 ABSOLUTE TERMS PERCENTAGE TERMS

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

Change in actuarial assumptions:

- Discount rate:

-0.50% 1,397 611%
0.50% -1,284 -5.62%

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

SECTION 12 - Provisions for risks and charges - Caption 120

12.1 PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES: BREAKDOWN

CAPTIONS/COMPONENTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

1. Internal pension plans 881 940
2. Other provisions for risks and charges 51,022 36,377
Total 51,903 37,317

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

12.2 PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES: CHANGES

TOTAL

CAPTIONS/COMPONENTS PENSION PLANS OTHER PROVISIONS

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

A. Opening balance 940 36,377

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

B. Increases
B.1 Accruals - 5,509
B.2 Discounting 8 -
B.3 Changes due to variations in discount rate - -
B.4 Other increases 6 18,550

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

C. Decreases - -
C.1 Utilisations 68 8,154
C.2 Changes due to variations in discount rate 5 -
C.3 Other decreases - 1,260

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

D. Closing balance 881 51,022

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

12.3 DEFINED BENEFIT INTERNAL PENSION PLANS

1. Description and related risks
The liability for defined benefit internal pension plans includes the accruals made for the group’s obligation to its former employees.

2. Changes in the plans
The present value of the defined benefit liability at 31 december 2016 leave for manager amounts to € 940 thousand. The group
paid benefits totalling €68 thousand during the year.
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3. Fair value of plan assets
There are no plan assets.

4. Cash flow amount, timing and uncertainty
The plan is based on the latest remuneration.

SECTION 15 - Equity - Captions 140, 160, 170, 180, 190, 200 and 220

15.1 “SHARE CAPITAL” AND “TREASURY SHARES”: BREAKDOWN

CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

1. Share capital 42,557 42,557
2. Share premium 148,242 148,242
3. Reserves 1,690,553 1,698,454
4. (Treasury shares)
a) parent -32 -32
b) subsidiaries
5. Valuation reserves 90,429 65,863
6. Equity instruments
7. Profit for the year 79,092 103,998
Total 2,050,841 2,059,082

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

15.2 SHARE CAPITAL - NUMBER OF SHARES: CHANGES

CAPTIONS/TYPES ORDINARY OTHER

A. Opening balance
- fully paid-in 14,185,790
- not fully paid-in

A:20utstanding shares: opening balance, .......oiicininisnnncnisnnincsisneneniennn o MBI e
B. Increases -
B.1 New issues -
- against consideration: -
- business combinations -
- bond conversions -
- exercise of warrants -
- other -
- bonusissues: -
- to employees -
- to directors -
- other -
B.2 Sale of treasury shares -
C. Decreases -
C.1 Cancellations -
C.2 Repurchases of treasury shares -
C.3 Disposals of equity investments -
D. Outstanding shares: closing balance 14,110,599
D. Treasury shares (+) 75,191
D.2 Closing balance 14,185,790
- fully paid-in 14,185,790
- not fully paid-in

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

The outstanding and fully paid-in shares number 14,185,790, while treasury shares in portfolio amount to 75,191,
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SECTION 16 - Equity attributable to non-controlling interests - Caption 210
16.1 CAPTION 210 “EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS"

COMPANY NAME 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

Investments in consolidated companies with significant non-controlling

interests:

- Help Line 867 2,553
- Nexi Payments 3,004 9,826
- Bassilichi 1,m

Total 4,982 12,379

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

16.2 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS: BREAKDOWN AND CHANGES

CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1. Share capital 1,654 1,349
2. Share premium 72 68
3. Reserves 3,483 9,782

4. (Treasury shares)
5. Valuation reserves 400 50
6. Equity instruments

7. Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests -627 1,130
Total 4,982 12,379

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

Other disclosures

1. GUARANTEES AND COMMITMENTS

OPERATIONS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
1)F|nanc|a|guarantees,ssued2,421 322
a) Banks 2,421 322

b) Customers - -

2) Commercial guarantees issued M 1,093
a) Banks - 83

b) Customers M 1,010

3) Irrevocable commitments to disburse funds 179,145 110,930
a) Banks 129,402 1,247

i) certain use 129,402 1,247

ii) uncertain use - -

b) Customers 49,743 109,683

i) certain use 9,052 2,934

ii) uncertain use 40,691 106,749

4) Commitments underlying credit derivatives: protection sales - -
5) Assets pledged as collateral for third party commitments - -

6) Other commitments - -

Total 182,477 112,345

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e
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2. ASSETS PLEDGED AS GUARANTEE FOR LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

PORTFOLIOS 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

1. Financial assets held for trading - -
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - -
3. Available-for-sale financial assets 102,100 98,288
4. Held-to-maturity investments - -
5. Loans and receivables with banks - -
6. Loans and receivables with customers - -

7. Property, equipment and investment property - -

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

5. MANAGEMENT AND TRADING ON BEHALF OF THIRD PARTIES: BANKING GROUP

TYPE OF SERVICES 31.12.2017 31.12.2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

1. Execution of customer orders

a) Purchases

1. settled 24,954,867 21,844,663
2. unsettled - -
b) sales - -
1. settled 24,355,604 22,076,792
2. unsettled - i,

2. Asset management
a) individual - -
b) collective - -
3. Securities custody and administration

a) third party securities held as part of depository bank servics (excluding

asset management) 51,546,933 48,247 564
1. securities issued by the consolidated entities - -
2. other securities 51,546,933 48,247 564
b) third party securities on deposit (excluding asset management): other 65,791,721 72,051,407
1. securities issued by the consolidated entities 39,694 39,694
2. other securities 65,752,027 72,011,713
) third party securities deposited with third parties 100,324,138 103,822,347
d) securities owned by the group deposited with third parties 2,471,922 3,116,743

4. Order collection and transmission

a) Purchases

1. settled 1,604,579 1,277,278
2. unsettled - -
b) Sales - -
1. settled 1,457,839 1,372,114
2. unsettled - -

- Placement of secured and unsecured securities - -
a) Placement of unsecured securities 461,790 506,738
b) Placement of secured securities 6,500 3,803

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses
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Part C - Notes to the income statement

SECTION 1 - Interest - Captions 10 and 20

T1INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME: BREAKDOWN

DEBT
CAPTIONS/CATEGORIES INSTRUMENTS FINANCING OTHER 2017 2016
1. Financial assets held for trading 443 - - 443 396
2. Available-for-sale financial assets 27,697 - - 27,697 26,240
3. Held-to-maturity investments 131 - - 131 337
4. Loans and receivables with banks 195 7705 1,720 9,620 6,136
S. Loans and receivables with customers - 1,466 21,573 23,039 24,964
6. Hedging derivatives - - - - -
7. Other assets - - 11,802 11,802 7,021
Total 28,466 CAVA 35,095 72,732 65,095

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s00scsesesnsssscsscsssscsscsssse

1.4 INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE: BREAKDOWN

CAPTIONS/CATEGORIES LIABILITIES SECURITIES OTHER 2017 2016

000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsssscsscsnssesse

1. Due to central banks - - - - -
2. Due to banks 19,061 - - 19,061 20,141
3. Due to customers 4,101 - - 4,101 1,872
4. Securities issued - - - - -
5. Financial liabilities held for trading 60 - - 60 41
6. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - - - -
7. Other liabilities and provisions - - 10,496 10,496 6,065
8. Hedging derivatives - - - - -

Total 23,222 = 10,496 33,718 28,119

000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsssscsscsnssesse
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SECTION 2 - Fees and commissions - Captions 40 and 50

2.1 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME: BREAKDOWN

TYPE OF SERVICES/AMOUNTS 2017 2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

a) guarantees issued 177 65
b) credit derivatives - -
¢) management, brokerage and consultancy services: 70,673 67,806
1. trading in financial instruments 10,556 10,452
2. foreign currency transactions - -

3. asset management - -

3.1individual - -

3.2 collective - -
4. securities custody and administration 5,086 4,889
5. depository services 51,449 48,779
6. securities placement 1,482 1,861
7. order collection and transmission 1,863 1,618
8. consultancy services 237 207

8.1 concerning investments - -

8.2 concerning financial structure 237 207

9. distribution of third party services - -
9.1 asset management - -
9.1.1individual - -

9.1.2 collective - -

9.2 insurance products - -

9.3 other products - -

d) collection and payment services 906,421 815,466
e) servicing services for securitisations - -
f) services for factoring transactions - -
g) tax collection services - -
h) management of multilateral trading systems - -
i) keeping and management of current accounts - -
j) other services 101,235 100,736

Total 1,078,507 984,073

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses
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2.2 FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE: BREAKDOWN

SERVICES/SECTORS

2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

a) guarantees received
b) credit derivatives
c) management and brokerage services:
1. trading in financial instruments
2. foreign currency transactions
3. asset management:
3.1 own portfolio
3.2 third party portfolios
4. securities custody and administration
5. placement of financial instruments
6. securities settlement
d) collection and payment services
e) agents' commissions

f) other services

Total

50

5,780
1,695
1,924
560,227

3,515
573,587

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

SECTION 3 - Dividends and similar income - Item 70

3.1 DIVIDENDS AND SIMILAR INCOME: BREAKDOWN

Secececesecsecesecesscsecesecscsesecesscseses secesecsesesecesecsesesecsssesesssecssseseee

INCOME FROM
OEIC UNITS

INCOME FROM
OEIC UNITS

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ecrscssssosccesssssnsesesce

2017
CAPTIONS/INCOME DIVIDENDS
A. Financial assets held for trading 17
B. Available-for-sale financial assets 1,453
C. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -
D. Equity investments 24

Total 1,494

2017
55
513
64
6,166
1,293
1,743
579,605
3,385
592,824
2016

DIVIDENDS

4

12

116

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ecrscssssosccesssssnsesesce
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SECTION 4 - Net trading income - Caption 80

4.1 NET TRADING INCOME: BREAKDOWN

TRADING TRADING NET TRADING
OPERATIONS/EARNING GAINS INCOME LOSSES LOSSES INCOME
COMPONENTS (A) (B) ©) (D) [(A+B)- (C+D)]

1. Financial assets held
for trading

1.1 Debt instruments 143 3,116 235 363 2,661
1.2 Equity instruments - 662 3 414 245
1.3 OEIC units - - 0 13 -13
1.4 Financing - - - - -
1.5 Other - - - - -

2. Financial liabilities
held for trading - - - - -

2.1 Debt instruments - - - - i
2.2 Liabilities - - - - _
2.3 Other - - - - i,

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scrscscssssosccsscnsnsesce

3. Other financial assets and
liabilities: net exchange rate
gains X X X X 1,086

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scrscscssssosccsscnsnsesce

4. Derivatives
4] Financial derivatives:

- On debt instruments and
interest rates - - - - -

- On equity instruments
and equity indexes 80 8,116 63 8,446 -313

- On currencies and gold - R R _ B

- Other 98 i ; B 08

4.2 Credit derivatives - - _ R }
Total 321 11,894 301 9,236 3,764

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scrscscssssosccsscnsnsesce

SECTION 5 - Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting - Caption 90

5.1 FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS IN HEDGE ACCOUNTING: BREAKDOWN

EARNING COMPONENTS/AMOUNTS TOTAL 2017 TOTAL 2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

A.Income from:
A fair value hedge derivatives
A.2 financial assets hedged (fair value) 999 -
A.3 financial liabilities hedged (fair value)
A4 cash flow hedge: derivatives

A.5 currency assets and liabilities

Total income from hedging (A) 999 -
B. Expenses for:

B.1 fair value hedge derivatives

B.2 financial assets hedged (fair value)

B.3 financial liabilities hedged (fair value)

B.4 cash flow hedge: derivatives

B.5 currency assets and liabilities

Total expense from hedging (B) - -
C. Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting (A - B) 999 -

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses
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SECTION 6 - Gain (loss) from sales/repurchases - Caption 100

6.1 NET GAIN (LOSS) FROM SALES OR REPURCHASES: BREAKDOWN

2017 2016
CAPTIONS/EARNING NET GAIN NET GAIN
COMPONENTS GAIN LOSS (LOSS) GAIN LOSS (LOSS)

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

Financial assets
1. Loans and receivables with banks - - - - R _

2. Loans and receivables with

customers - - - - - -
3. Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - B
3.1 Debt instruments - - - - - -
3.2 Equity instruments 210 - 210 300 - 300
3.3 OEIC units 6,800 - 6,800 - - -
3.4 Financing - - - - - R
4. Held-to-maturity investments - - - - - _
Total assets 7,010 = 7,010 300 = 300
Financial liabilities
1. Due to banks - - - - - .
2. Due to customers - - - - - -
3. Securities issued - - - - - R
Total liabilities - - - - = -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

SECTION 8 - Net impairment losses - Caption 130

8.1 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON LOANS AND RECEIVABLES: BREAKDOWN

REVERSALS OF
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
m (2)
e NDIVIDUAL ... INDIVIDUAL  COLLECTIVE
OPERATIONS/EARNING DERECO- 2017 2016
COMPONENTS GNITION OTHER COLLECTIVE A B A B (3)=(1)-(2) (3)=(1-(2)

A. Loans and receivables with
central banks

- Financing - - - _ )
- Debt instruments - - - - -

2. Loans and receivables with

customers - - - - -
Impaired loans acquired - - - - -
- Financing - - - X X - -
- Debt instruments - - - X X X X
Other - - - - -
- Financing - - 2,796 2,796 2,246
- Debt instruments - - - - -

0000000000000 000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scscssssscsscscsnsscse

Key
A=from interest
B =other reversals

Portfolio value adjustments are mainly related to credit card debt and revolving loans.
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8.2 NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS: BREAKDOWN

REVERSALS OF
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
INDIVIDUAL INDIVIDUAL
OPERATIONSIEARNING teeecceccsccescesccccsscssccscsessssseeee seecccscsscssssssssessesstee o 2017 2016
COMPONENTS DERECOGNITION OTHER A B (3=M-2 @)=(M-(2)
ADebtmstruments_ e
B. Equity instruments - 3,899 - - 3,899 2,212
C. OEIC units - - - - - -
D. Financing to banks - - - - - -
E. Financing to customers - - - - - -
F. Total - 3,899 - - 3,899 2,212
Key
A =from interest
B =other reversals
SECTION 11 - Administrative expenses - Caption 180
11.1 PERSONNEL EXPENSE: BREAKDOWN
TYPE OF EXPENSE/SECTORS 2017 2016
'|)Emp|oyee5 Ceeteecersattatetsnttacessnsnnes
a) wages and salaries 157,766 110,873
b) social security charges 33,174 26,815
c) post-employment benefits 1,849 785
d) pension costs 161 196
e) accrual for post-employment benefits 227 236
f) accrual for pension and similar provisions: - -
- defined contribution plans | -
- defined benefit plans - -
g) payments to external supplementary pension funds: - -
- defined contribution plans 7,945 7,633
- defined benefit plans - -
h) costs of share-based payment plans - -
i) other employee benefits 57,310 5,064
2) Other personnel 117 1,743
3) Directors and statutory auditors 2,184 2,263
4) Retired personnel - -
5) Cost recoveries for employees seconded to other companies -5 -
6) Cost reimbursements for third party employees seconded to the bank 80 -

Total 261,849 155,608

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses
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11.2 AVERAGE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES PER CATEGORY

2017 2016
a)managerswss
b) junior managers 635 610
c) other employees 944 1,030
11.5 OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES: BREAKDOWN
TYPE OF EXPENSE 2017 2016
_dataprocessmgssou 94758

- post office, valuables transportation and couriers 21,717 23,523
- external services 16,865 18,834
- interbank network traffic 8,134 1,412
- IT connections and automation costs 4,057 3,923
- access to markets 2,212 2,145
- professional services 42,823 41,776
- agents' commissions 1,503 1,446
- bank draft books 71 124
- maintenance and lease 43,374 36,837
- building running costs, leases, heating and lighting 5,886 5,660
- stationery and printed matter 644 574
- insurance 1,793 1,687
- telegraph, telephone and telex 5,333 5,421
- card processing 36,342 31,493
- membership fees 1,477 1,481
- surveillance and cleaning 832 857
- other 141,754 62,618
- taxes and duties 75,869 57,368
Total 495,733 401,937
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The fees paid in 2017 to the independent auditors engaged for the legally required audit pursuant to Legislative decree no. 39 of
27 January 2010 are detailed below:

TYPE OF SERVICE SERVICE PROVIDER €000
Audit of the parent’s financial statements KPMG SPA 390
Audit of the subsidiaries’ financial statements KPMG SPA 360
In addition 750

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

The fees reported include the audit of the separate and consolidated financial statements, the limited review of the interim
financial statements and the procedures required by tax legislation to the independent auditors.
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SECTION 12 - Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges - Caption 190

12.1 NET ACCRUALS TO PROVISIONS FOR RISKS AND CHARGES: BREAKDOWN

TYPE OF EXPENSE 2017 2016
Accruals to provisions -2,522 2,981
Total -2,522 2,981

.........................................................................................................................................................

SECTION 13 - Depreciation and net impairment losses on property, equipment and invest-
ment property - Caption 200

13.1 DEPRECIATION AND NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND INVEST-
MENT PROPERTY: BREAKDOWN

REVERSALS OF
IMPAIRMENT IMPAIRMENT CARRYING
DEPRECIATION LOSSES LOSSES AMOUNT
ASSETS/EARNING COMPONENTS (A) (B) ©) (A+B-C)
A. Property, equipment and investment property -
A1 Owned -
- Property and equipment 26,972 26,972
- Investment property 1,590 1,590
A.2 Under finance lease -
- Property and equipment 684 684
- Investment property -
Total 29,246 - - 29,246

.........................................................................................................................................................

SECTION 14 - Amortisation and net impairment losses on intangible assets - Caption 210

14.1 AMORTISATION AND NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON INTANGIBLE ASSETS: BREAKDOWN

REVERSALS OF
IMPAIRMENT IMPAIRMENT CARRYING
AMORTISATION LOSSES LOSSES AMOUNT
ASSETS/EARNING COMPONENTS (A) (B) ©) (A+B-C)
A. Intangible assets -
A1 Owned -
- Generated internally -
- Other 38,578 - 38,578

A.2 Under finance lease -

.........................................................................................................................................................



Notes to the consolidated financial statements - Part C - Notes to the income statement NEXI -101

SECTION 15 - Other operating expense and income - Caption 220

15.1 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE: BREAKDOWN

31.12.2017 31.12.216
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Transfer of revenue from services 18,212 19996
Other costs 7,634 11,140

Total 25,846 31,136
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15.2 OTHER OPERATING INCOME: BREAKDOWN

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

Lease income 854 901
Services 251,192 238,877
Recoveries of stamp duties from customers and post office expenses 71,069 70,586
Otherincome 80,305 6,205

Total 403,420 316,570
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SECTION 16 - Share of profits (losses) of investees - Caption 240

16.1 SHARE OF PROFITS OF INVESTEES: BREAKDOWN

EARNING COMPONENTS/SECTORS 2017 2016

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000sscsesesssscsesssscscsocnse e

1) Jointly-controlled entities

A.Income

1. Fair value gains
2. Gains on sales
3. Reversals of impairment losses
4. Otherincome
B. Costs
1. Fair value losses
2. Impairment losses
3. Losses on sales

4. Other costs
Net profits (losses)

2) Associates

A.Income
1. Fair value gains
2. Gains on sales
3. Reversals of impairment losses
4. Other income

B. Costs
1. Fair value losses
2. Impairment losses
3. Losses on sales
4. Other costs

Net losses

13,230
14,590

470

10,923

17,367 =

= 18

0000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s 0000000ssscsesssscsscsesssscscses

Total

17,367 18
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SECTION 19 - Gains (losses) on sales of investments - Caption 270

19.1 NET GAINS ON SALES OF INVESTMENTS: BREAKDOWN

EARNINGS COMPONENTS/SECTORS 2017 2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

A. Property
- Gains on sales
- Losses on sales
B. Other assets
- Gains on sales - -
- Losses on sales 7 -

Net gains -7 -
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SECTION 20 - Income taxes - Caption 290

20.1 INCOME TAXES: BREAKDOWN

EARNINGS COMPONENTS/SECTORS 2017 2016

1. Current taxes -19,459 -22,489
2. Change in current taxes from previous years (+/-) 2,274 537
3. Decrease in current taxes for the year (+)

3. bis Decrease in current taxes for the year due to tax assets as per
Law no. 214/2011 (+)

4. Change in deferred tax assets (+/-) 2,408 -596
S. Change in deferred tax liabilities (+/-) -10,078 3,280
6. Tax expense for the year (-) -24,855 -19,268
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20.2 RECONCILIATION BETWEEN THE THEORETICAL AND EFFECTIVE TAX EXPENSE

2017 2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

Reconciliation between the theoretical and effective tax rate

Theoretical tax rate 331% 331%
Tax exempt income and other decreases -21.6% -34.7%
Non-deductible costs 12.7% 17.0%
Effective tax rate 24.2% 15.4%
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SECTION 22 - Profit for the year attributable to non-controlling interests - Caption 330

22.1 CAPTION 330 “PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS"

COMPANY NAME 2017 2016

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 60000scsesssscsesssssscscsnsscses

Consolidated investments with significant non-controlling interests

- Help Line 1,697 10
- Nexi Payments -1,046 1,576
- Bassilichi -25

Total 626 1,586
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Part D - Breakdown of comprehensive income

BREAKDOWN OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(€000)
GROSS INCOME NET
CAPTIONS AMOUNT TAX AMOUNT
10. Profit for the period X X 78,466

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
20. Property, equipment and investment property
30. Intangible assets
40. Defined benefit plans -51 16 -35
50. Non-current assets held for sale
60. Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investees
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
70. Hedges of investments in foreign operations
a) fair value gains (losses)
b) reclassification to profit or loss:
c) other changes
80. Exchange rate gains (losses)
a) fair value gains (losses)
b) reclassification to profit or loss
c) other changes
90. Cash flow hedges:
a) fair value gains (losses)
b) reclassification to profit or loss
c) other changes
100. Available-for-sale financial assets
a) fair value gains (losses) 25,931 -980 24,950
b) reclassification to profit or loss
- impairment losses
- gains/losses on sales
c) other changes
110. Non-current assets held for sale
a) fair value gains (losses)
b) reclassification to profit or loss
c) other changes
120. Share of valuation reserves of equity-accounted investees
a) fair value gains (losses)
b) reclassification to profit or loss
- impairment losses
- gains/losses on sales

c) other changes

130. Other comprehensive income (expense) 25,880 -965 24,915
140. Comprehensive income (expense) (10 + 130) 25,880 -965 103,381
150. Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests X X -277

160. Comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent X X 103,658
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Part E - Risks and related hedging policies

Introduction

Nexi Group attaches great importance to the management and risk control as conditions to ensure reliable and sustainable
value creation in a context of controlled risk.

The risk management strategy aims to achieve a comprehensive and coherent vision of the risks, considering both the mac-
roeconomic scenario and the Group's risk profile, fostering a culture of risk and strengthening a transparent and accurate rep-
resentation of the risks of Group portfolios.

This section includes information related to the Nexi banking group, which includes:

» Nexi S.p.A. (“Nexi” or the “parent”), holding, included in the banks register: as well as management, coordination and control
activities, NEXI provides the group companies with centralised financial, lending and administrative assistance services and the
market with payment and securities services;

» Nexi Payments S.p.A., financial company included in the register of payment institutes as per article 114-septies of the Con-
solidated Banking Act: it provides payment services in accordance with article 11.6.3/4/5 of Legislative decree no. 11 of January
27th, 2010 and related services;

 Help Line S.p.A. ("Help Line”), operating company: a contact centre business

- Oasi Diagram - Outsourcing Applicativo e Servizi Innovativi S.p.A. ("“Oasi”), operating company: it performs, inter alia,
data security and supervisory reporting activities on an outsourcing basis;

« Bassilichi S.p.A. (“Bassilichi”), operating company: in the Nexi Group since July 2017, it provides payment services and busi-
ness services market. The subsidiaries of Bassilichi and included in the Nexi Group are: Consorzio Triveneto, Moneynet, Bass-
mArt, BassilichiCEE e ArsBlue.

Risk Management at Nexi Group

The bank’s internal controls form a system designed to provide reasonable security about attainment of the efficiency and
effectiveness objectives for its operations, the reliability of financial statements disclosures and compliance with the ruling laws
and regulations. They include organisational, requlatory and methodological controls designed to efficiently and economically
ensure management and strategic control, operating and technical-operational activities.

The internal controls are organised on different levels:

« line controls, aimed at ensuring correct operating practices; these are hierarchical type controls performed by the same
production unit which are usually part of the same procedures or performed as back office activities;

- risk management controls, designed to define risk measurement methods, check compliance with their assigned limits by
the various operating units (second level controls) and check consistency of each production unit’s operations with their risk/
return objectives;

« compliance controls, to monitor risks of non-compliance with external and internal regulations;

« internal audit procedures, designed to identify irreqularities, violations of procedures, internal and external requlations and
to assess the overall working of the internal controls.

Non-operational, independent units carry out the risk management, compliance and internal audit activities.

Responsibility for the internal controls lies with the board of directors that establishes the risk appetite and, accordingly, provides
for the definition and approval of the risk strategies and management policies. The board of directors is also responsible for
ensuring the internal controls are consistent with the risk management policy.

The group monitors and manages the risks to which it is exposed using well-defined methods and processes, applicable
throughout the economic cycle.

The parent’s risk management unit monitors and controls the group’s risks, working closely with the boards of statutory auditors
and general managers of the parent and its subsidiaries. It reports to the group companies’ boards of statutory auditors and the
parent’s risk committee and managing director.

The risk management unit’s activities mainly consist of measuring, monitoring and reporting risks related to the business activ-
ities of all the group companies. It also checks the suitability of the parent’s and group’s own funds to cover the various types of
risks.
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The unit is specialised in the related reqgulations and provides assistance with the methods set out in the policy to manage
non-compliance risk approved by the board of directors.

As part of the internal controls, the bank has a Risk Policy, which sets out the principles, aims and methods to manage (method-
ology and tools) the main risks to which it is exposed. It also has a Risk Appetite Framework (RAF), which reconciles its strategic
planning and risk management as it defines the level and type of risk acceptable to the bank when pursuing its strategic objec-
tives.

In Risk Appetite Framework (RAF) of the Group, introduced in 2012 to ensure that the risk-bearing assets remain in line with the
expectations of shareholders and regulatory requirements, the risk-taking strategies are summarized. The general principles are
as follows:

« the Group's objective is not to eliminate risk, but to understand them and manage them in such a way as to guarantee an ade-
quate return in the face of risks taken, ensuring stability and continuity in the long term;

« the Nexi Group has a moderate risk profile where capital adequacy, earnings stability, strong liquidity position and strong rep-
utation are the cornerstones to preserve their current and future profitability;

« the Nexi Group intends to maintain a strong presence on the major specific risks (not necessarily related to macroeconomic
shocks) which the Group may be exposed;

« the Group attaches great importance on compliance risks and reputation. With regard to compliance risk, the Group aims to
respect the procedural and substantive rules in order to avoid sanctions and to maintain a solid relationship of trust with all its
stakeholders. With regard to the reputation risk, Bank of Italy circular 285 defines it as the current or prospective risk of a decline
in profits or capital deriving from a negative perception of the bank's image by customers, counterparties and shareholders of
the bank, investors or supervisory authorities. The Group pursues the active management of its image among all stakeholders
and aims to prevent and limit any negative effects on it, monitoring this risk through a specific "integrated Group framework
for the assessment and control of Reputation "which is divided into the following phases:

- Identification of the stakeholders deemed relevant, to which the potential impacts of reputation deriving from the analyzes
carried out are associated;

- Assessment of reputational risk by integrating the methods adopted within the Group in relation to ordinary activities and
events, as well as the continuous analysis of indicators ad hoc identified;

- Aggregation of assessments aimed at monitoring the perception of the Group's reputation;

- Management of deviations from the normal perception of the Group's reputation and identification, in the event that any
anomalous situations occur, of specific corrective actions to be implemented;

- Implementation of task forces in case of risk events with potential high impact on the Group's reputation.

The Risk Appetite Framework represents the overall framework within which it is intended to manage the risks taken by the
Group with the definition of the general principles of risk appetite and the subsequent articulation of the presidium:

« the overall risk profile;
« the Group's main specific risks.

The management of overall risk profile derived from the definition of the general principles and consists of a structure of limits
to ensure that the Group, even under severe stress conditions, respecting the minimum levels of solvency, liquidity and profita-
bility. It is also to ensure the required reputational risk and compliance profiles.

The framework defines parameters for each category that are the maximum risk limit the Group intends to assume, the best risk
limit (risk target) and an early warning level (risk trigger), which when breached, triggers contingency plans and/or mitigation
actions to avoid reaching the risk limit.

Given the importance of risk management to strategic planning, the bank also defined the operating methods in a specific
regulatory folder, which also sets out the roles and responsibilities of the internal units involved in identifying, assessing and
monitoring the most important transactions. Risk assessment based on the most important transactions consists of an assess-
ment of the consistency of the most important transactions’ risk profile with the bank’s risk appetite. The risk profile of these
transactions considers the risk appetite policies approved by the board of directors as well as the rules and regulations issued by
the regulators for supervised intermediaries.

The aforementioned Risk Policy and Regulatory Folder n. 157 also govern the Nexi Group ICAAP Process, which was carried out
taking into account the requirements of the Bank of Italy Circular No. 285 of December 17th, 2013 "Supervisory Provisions for
Banks" and subsequent updates, the EBA indications "Guidelines on ICAAP and ILAAP information collected for SREP purposes”
and the expectations of the European Central Bank on ICAAP and ILAAP published through a letter to the market of January 8th,
2016 sent to the so-called "Significant” banks.
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Responsibility for the capital adequacy assessment process lies with the board of directors that establishes the risk appetite and,
accordingly, provides for the definition and approval of the risk strategies and management policies.

The guidelines for the Group's risk, defined in the Risk Policy document are received by the Boards of Directors of the Group
companies. The guidelines are subject to annual review, or "per event" in case of significant changes at the organizational and /
or strategic level.

Nexi also analysed the activities performed, which are mainly related to the providing of products and services to banks and ma-
jor corporate customers, and identified operational risk as the main risk faced by it. In order to handle this risk and comply with
the capital requirement, the bank activated an operational risk framework, which is a specific process that identifies risk factors,
assesses the level of exposure to risks and the effectiveness of the actions taken to control and monitor these risks.

Finally, from 2075 it has been introduced an integrated stress test model in order to verify the simultaneous impacts of different
risk factors as a result of assumptions of exceptional but plausible events. Object of the integrated stress tests are two regulatory
indicators: the Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio - Ratio CETI - and the Liquidity Coverage Ratio - LCR (calculated according to the
QIS diagram).

For the purposes of stress, requlatory indicators have been broken down into their components calculation; the latter were then
broken down in turn in primitive variables, which represent the variables to stress.

The identified stress scenarios are primarily carried out through static shock and, in a second moment, through the Monte Carlo
simulation.

The Basel 3 rules

From January 1Ist, 2014 the reforms of the Basel Committee agreements ("Basel 3") were transposed into law of the European
Union with the objective to strengthen the capacity of banks to absorb shocks arising from financial and economic tensions,
regardless of their origin, to improve the risk management and governance, to strengthen the transparency and disclosure of
the banks.

Doing so, the Committee has maintained the three pillars approach, which was the basis of the previous capital agreement
known as "Basel 2", integrating and strengthening it to increase the quantity and quality of the capital base of the intermediaries,
as well as introducing countercyclical supervision tools and rules on the management of liquidity risk and on containment of
leverage.

At Community level, the contents of "Basel 3" were transposed into two legal instruments:

« Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 of June 26th 2013 (CRR), governing the prudential supervision of the First Pillar and public disclo-
sure rules (Third Pillar);

« Directive 2013/36 / EU of June 26th 2013 (CRD 1V), which deals, inter alia, the conditions for access to banking activity, the
freedom of establishment and the freedom to provide services, the process of prudential supervision, the additional capital
reserves.

In addition to the European Union legislation, the Bank of Italy Circular no. 285 of December, 17th 2013 collects the prudential
supervisory regulations applicable to Italian banks and banking groups, reviewed and updated to adapt domestic legislation to
the changes introduced in the international requlatory framework, particularly with respect to the new European Union frame-
work for banking supervision, as well as to take into account the needs identified in the exercise of the supervision of banks and
otherintermediaries.

The Group, in order to adapt to the rules laid down by Basel 3, has taken appropriate project initiatives in order to improve the
measurement systems and the related risk management systems.

The adequacy of the risk control system is also represented in the annual report of the supervisory review process for the pur-
pose of capital adequacy (ICAAP), which was approved and sent to the Bank of Italy in the month of April 2017

As part of the adoption of "Basel 3", the Group has published the document entitled "PUBLIC DISCLOSURE BY ENTITIES AC-
CORDING TO REGULATION (EU) No 575/2013", which is published annually on the website (www.nexi.it) and contains informa-
tions on capital adequacy, risk exposure and the general characteristics of the systems used to identify, measure and manage
these informations.
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SECTION 1 - Credit risk
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

General issues

Credit risk is the risk that an unexpected variation in a counterparty’s credit standing may lead to its default, generating unex-
pected losses on cash exposures or endorsement credits (risk of default), or that generates a related unexpected variation in the
asset’s market value (migration risk).

Lending is not the Nexi Group’s core business but it is an important part of its operations and mainly affects the Treasury unit, the
Securities Services BU and some business units of the parent, Nexi, and the subsidiary Nexi Payments.

In fact, the group’s core business is not to grant financing but it does grant credit facilities, mainly to third parties that, due to the
products/services provided to them and the operating/financial rules thereof, require credit facilities in the form of cash (credit
facilities) or commitments (endorsement credits).

With respect to the first level controls, the head of the Treasury unit and the head of the Securities Services BU check and mon-
itor that the lending transactions performed by the treasury and finance unit comply with the maximum operating limits and/
or caps. As part of the second level controls, the risk management unit checks compliance with the operating limits and large
exposures. It also calculates the exposure with related parties every day.

The risk management unit also assesses the correct monitoring of the individual credit exposures, the consistency of classifica-
tions, the adequacy of accruals and the adequacy and tracing of the recovery process.

Nexi Payments has a specific credit risk profile in respect of the direct issue of credit cards, which entails its exposure to its cus-
tomers.

The issue of credit cards only takes place after suitable investigations of the customers and Nexi Payments’ Fraud and Credit
Management unit continuously monitors credit risk over the period of the credit card’s validity (first level controls).

In order to strengthen controls over credit risk, relevant information about the credit exposure (amount of credit facilities, use
of credit facilities, overruns, any non-performing positions) is collected in a structured and organic manner by the various IT
procedures.

NEXI does not operate in innovative financial products such as credit derivatives.

Also because of the limited number of exposures normally taken on by the group, its credit risk measurement methods and the
related controls over credit risk trends are simple and lean; it does not use scoring systems or external and/or internal ratings.

Pursuant to the prudent reqgulations (Bank of Italy circular no. 285), the bank’s assessment of credit risk includes counterparty
risk, that is the risk that a counterparty to a transaction may default before the transaction’s cash flows have been finalised. This
latter risk is negligible considering the bank’s total weighted assets as it has always been below 1% of the total credit and coun-
terparty risk.

Organisational aspects

The group’s organisational structure ensures the proper monitoring and management of risks. With specific respect to credit
risk, the board of directors has the sole powers to make policies that affect the group’s operations. It approves the strategies and
risk management policies and the group’s organisational structure for internal controls. The proxy system provided for by an
internal policy approved by the board of directors attributes specific powers to some bodies and units for decisions about credit.
As required by the internal requlations, credit risk is managed and monitored by the:

« board of directors;

» managing director/general manager;

« Credit & Financial Committee;

« Credit and Branches unit.



108- N@XI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

Management, measurement and control systems

Credit management by Nexi

The parent is a “second level” bank, whose core business is the providing of products and services mainly in the sector of pay-
ment systems and administrative services for the custody, administration and settlement of securities.

Its lending policies are requlated by a specific requlation and it provides credit to:

« banks;

« stock brokerage companies;

« financial companies included in the lists covered by the Consolidated Banking Act;
« large corporate customers;

e OEICs;

« fund management companies.

Nexi only provides credit facilities to retail customers who are group employees and employees of the former NEXI (Equens)
Group in the form of current account overdrafts and personal loans. It does not provide loans.

The credit facilities offered by Nexi, diversified by type of customer, include:

« operating treasury facilities;

e intermediation caps in the Target 2 and E-Mid settlement system;

« syndicate loans;

« endorsement credits and other commitments for guarantees issued (sureties, letters of patronage);
« cash credit facilities;

« personal loans.

The lending approval procedure starts after receipt of a formal application from the customer by the relevant unit which is sent
to the Credit & Branches office. This stage includes the correct identification of the risk and an assessment of the customer’s
reliability, i.e, its ability to meet its financial commitments arising from the receipt and subsequent use of the financing.

Customers do not have to make specific applications for operating limits and/or intermediation caps. The preliminary investiga-
tion is initiated by the Treasury unit or the competent internal unit.

In order to monitor counterparties that operate in the retail intermediation services sector, the group has introduced specific op-
erating limits to monitor and check these parties’ operations. In certain cases, it asks for guarantees to mitigate any risks it takes on.

The group grants banks that provide issuing and acquiring services for the Nexi payment cards with appropriate overdrafts on
the accounts held for these activities in order to monitor its exposure to them.

All the applications for credit and allocations of operating limits are reviewed by the Credit office, together with the service manager
and then approved by the Credit & Financial Committee. If no obstacles are identified, the Credit & Financial Committee expresses its
assessment of the application, including about the guarantee acquired or to be acquired for the board of directors to take its decision.

A proxies structure, approved by the board of directors, allows the authorised parties to take decisions within set limits.

After the credit facility is provided, risks are checked and monitored as follows:

« periodic assessments of the customers and reviews of their positions;

« checks of overruns;

« checks of information from Bank of Italy’s credit information centre;

« identification of indications that the risk is more serious;

« periodic checks of the adequacy of the credit facilities used within the bank and the banking sector compared to equity for the
mutual fund sector (to check the legal limit imposed by Bank of Italy’s requlation).
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Management of overruns

The Credit office checks and analyses any overruns every day and informs the relevant units of all positions with overruns (cur-
rent accounts in Euro and foreign currency with and without credit facilities). The units firstly check the accounting entries and,
if necessary, make the relevant adjustments. They analyse the reasons for the overruns and invite the customers to immediately
rectify their positions if this is appropriate. They also inform the credit office and the risk management unit of their actions.

Positions with particular difficulties are subjected to the activation of the credit reclassification procedure, by means of an in-
struction of suitable practice for the resolution by the duly authorized bodies, with the consequent reports in the Central Credit
Register pursuant to Bank of Italy regulations.

In addition, following the introduction of Circular 285/2013, a structured process for continuous monitoring of impaired loans
has been defined and the perimeter of the Risk Management Service competence activities has been revised. The perimeter has
been enriched, among other things, of the credit quality monitoring: the results, from the second quarter of 2014, are included,
together with those of the credit risk monitoring, in a special section of the Tableau de Bord.

The examination of the data reported in the Tableau de Bord, sent on a quarterly basis to the Bank of Italy, shows a certain
variability of the entity of overruns, which may be relevant in the various surveys, due to the limited number of counterparties
entrusted, but however, it is very limited at the overall level compared to total credit lines.

Operating limits

The Treasury unit manager supervises and checks that all the financial transactions carried out by their unit comply with the
operating limits and/or approved caps. The risk management unit monitors compliance with the operating limits granted to the
banks on a daily basis as a second level control. These limits are granted on the basis of standard parameters and vary depending
on the nature of the instrument and its implicit volatility as well as the duration or residual life of the transaction.

The group has an application which performs the centralised check of the existing operating limits each day and issues general
alerts when the threshold is exceeded.

During 2017 there were 4 overruns of the assigned operating limit, of limited size and returned to the limits in the month in which
they are highlighted, for the most part due to the overlapping of operations performed by the various Desk.

Risk concentration limits

The risk management unit monitors compliance with the risk concentration limits (large exposures, requlated by the Bank of
Italy in Part Two, Chapter 10, of Circular 285 of December 17, 2013 and subsequent updates) on a daily basis, assisted by the level 1
controls already performed by the relevant units.

In the course of 2017 there were 2 overruns of the limit to the concentration of risks, both lasting one day, towards a bank coun-
terparty.

Limits to exposures to risk activities and conflicts of interest with related parties

Regulations covering the limits to risky transactions with related parties and parties related to them introduced exposure
limits for Nexi and the group (considering separate and group reqgulatory capital) vis-a-vis “Company personnel”, “Investors
exercising control or significant influence”, “Other investors” and “Parties subject to control or significant influence”.

Controls over the risky transactions take place daily together with the controls over large exposures, including positions with all
the group companies. Any excesses of the regulatory limits generate alerts for the various units involved.

In addition to the controls over exposures to the individual related parties, the group also calculates the overall exposure to all
the related parties and the parties related to them each day (this procedure was introduced in 2013) as a percentage of the con-
solidated regulatory capital. This is part of the RAF.

During 2017, the monitoring carried out showed, starting from the month of October, the exceeding of the limit of exposures
to related parties with Unione Fiduciaria, of which Nexi holds a significant shareholding (24%), and to which it does not there
are credit exposures, due to the reduction in the consolidated requlatory capital at the level of the Banking Group, which con-
sequently determined the proportional decrease in the regulatory exposure limit. no overruns of the limits for exposures to
related parties.
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Credit quality monitoring

The monitoring of the Nexi credit quality, reported for the first time in the Tableau de Bord of the first quarter of 2015, is per-
formed, in the absence of a significant number of non-performing loans, on the persistence and amount (at the reference
date of the end of the month) of negative balances of corporate accounts and banking accounts (besides the eventual credit
granted).

During the year 2017, the monitoring did not show exposures to banks, while, as far as corporate exposures are concerned, the
presence in all the surveys of the same non-performing position already present in previous years was recorded, as well as, dur-
ing the second quarter, the exceeding of part of a counterpart of the "'negative balance>€ 1 million plus credit for at least 30 days”
limit, partly determined by technical problems (suspended by regulation)).

Nexi payments’ credit management
Nexi Payments has a specific credit risk profile in respect of the direct issue of credit cards, which entails its exposure to its cus-
tomers.
The other receivables are generated by operating irregularities in the activities of:
« issuing through banks, when amounts can be debited to blocked cards for which the bank is relieved from the related credit
risk after the block has been communicated;
e acquiring, such as:
- recharges to merchants after complaints by cardholders or banks for any reason through the charge-back cycle;
- non-payment of commissions by the merchants.

These types of risks generated by operating irreqularities are operational risks.

Credit risk is monitored constantly, checking that the exposures are within the set budget limits at the beginning of each year.
Nexi Payments also carefully rates each new merchant or cardholder in the case of directly issued cards before agreeing new
contracts.

The risk management unit monitors credit risk trends and their effect on the risk policy and set range. The risk management unit
also monitors the compliance with the specific limits approved by the board of directors and described in the “Nexi Payments
S.p.A. risk quantification limits” document, annually prepared with the first level units and the risk management unit.

The document sets out the reference values and ranges for each first and second level indicator assigned to monitor Nexi Pay-
ments’ credit risks, calculated on the basis of analysis of historical series, projections about the company’s future performance
and that of the market and indications present in the group’s risk policy.

These values, calculated to contain risk, are approved by the parent’s Risk Committee and Nexi Payments’ board of directors.

The risk management unit reports on compliance with these values to the risk committee and to the Nexi Payments’ board of
directors and identifies any irreqularities or critical issues arising from controls of the first and second level limits.

The group has specific maximum gross and net insolvency limits and limits to the related cost to check and measure risk.
It monitors these limits constantly as well as expected losses compared to actual losses and losses incurred for business reasons.

This credit risk control consists of preliminary checks by the first level units, starting with the analysis of the credit application.
Itincludes:

« internal controls;

« consistency controls;

« positive and negative information from the credit bureau;

« credit scoring algorithms.

Another process relevant for credit risk is the monitoring and recovery of receivables from cardholders and merchants, in order

to contain the impact of risk events. The following controls are performed:

« daily monitoring of negative events (unpaid direct debits) using a flag to limit the card’s spending limit and possible revoke of
the banking counterparties;

« automatic checks of the use of cash advances in excess of the maximum contractual limits.
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The credit risk analysis model for directly issued cards uses the historical trends, starting from 2010, of recorded losses and esti-
mated losses (non-performing positions adjusted by the recovery percentage) normalised by the total exposure for the current
month. Its results are VaR and the annual expected and unexpected loss.

The operating management methods for prior years (before 2010) are not consistent with the currently used one and, therefore,
they cannot be used as a comparison.

Time series analysis is performed; the output is then processed, using Monte Carlo methodology for the calculation of the ex-
pected and unexpected losses on an annual basis.

The expected and unexpected losses, calculated using an annual confidence interval of 99%, are subjected to second level con-
trols described in the Quantitative risk limits document.

With respect to its servicing activities, Nexi Payments does not have risks related to receivables due directly from retail custom-
ers as it provides issuing servicing and acquiring servicing activities. Therefore, the related credit risk falls on the banks that have
the issuing and/or acquiring licences.

With two customer servicing banks, which are subject to supervision, the credit risk closes within 30 days (the time period be-
tween issue of one account statement and the next) with an average exposure of 15 days, while for all the others it lasted one
working day. This exposure is borne by NEXI, which carries out settlement with a compensated currency.

Credit risk mitigation techniques

In order to mitigate credit risk, the relevant bodies may decide to tie the granting of credit facilities to the receipt of suitable
guarantees, based on the results of the related credit facility application investigation. These guarantees may be collateral, such
as securities and/or cash deposits, contractual guarantees or endorsement guarantees.

The credit office and the Securities Services BU reqularly check at least once a year the quantitative and qualitative adequacy of
the guarantees given by customers. In the case of ascertained total or partial default, they request the customers integrate the
guarantees on a timely basis. If this does not take place, they immediately revise the position to comply with the identified risks.

The acquired guarantees do not have specific limits that could affect their legal validity.
There were no significant changes in the management of guarantees compared to the previous year.

Nexi does not make use of any guarantees granted by counterparties on 3112.2017 in order to mitigate the impact on the Internal
Capital of credit risk (so-called "Credit Risk Mitigation"). The only type of exposure for which the credit risk mitigation guaran-
tees are used is that relating to the balance cards issued by Nexi Payments in bank issuing mode, for which there is a contractual
guarantee by the issuing bank: the debit to the holder is made through SDD to act on the account of the holder at the issuing
bank, without the possibility of cancellation by the bank itself, and consequently no contractual or operational problems arise
when the guarantee is used.

Impaired financial assets

The Credit & Financial Committee regularly reviews all potentially irreqular positions and decides on the recovery activities to be
taken as well as changes in the position’s status, based on the relevant parameters. These decisions are reviewed by the board
of directors.

Classification of assets by debtor quality complies with the categories established by Bank of Italy.

With respect to impaired positions, impairment losses are recognised after the individual measurement of each position.

With respect to Nexi Payments, impairment losses are made collectively. Assets are tested for impairment by category and the
loss percentages are estimated considering historical figures that allow an estimate of possible losses.
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Country risk

Country risk is the risk of losses caused by events that take place in countries other than Italy. This concept is wider than that
for sovereign risk as it covers all exposures regardless of the type of counterparty involved, be they natural persons, businesses,
banks or public administrations.

The group includes country risk as part of credit risk and it is not a significant risk given that:

« most of weighted exposures to non-Italian subjects is the equity investment held in EquensWorldline. As Equens is a leading
international payment operator, we can reasonably assume its strong economic independence from the country of the main
office (the Netherlands);

« the other Nexi’s exposures are, for the most part, with parties that offer settlement and custody services, such as Clearstream
and Euroclear, or international banks (e.g., Barclays, BNP Paribas), that can reasonably be assumed to be very independent
economically of the country where their head office is;

« Nexi Payments’ exposures are solely with international circuits (Mastercard and Visa, both of which have their registered office
in the US) as part of the process to settle card transactions. Once again, it is reasonable to assume that they are very independ-
ent of the countries where their head office is in economical terms;

« the exposures are mostly with parties based in countries with high ratings;

« the exposures to subjects resident in Croatia (rating BB) are almost exclusively from Mercury Processing, which has its head-
quarters and part of its operations in Croatia, and which therefore can be considered to have sufficient responsiveness in the
event of problems inherent to its country;

« the capital requirement for credit risk is calculated without using the counterparty rating parameter but solely the rating of the
counterparty’s country of residence. Therefore, the capital requirement includes the country risk component.

Both for country and issuer risks, the risk management unit checks that the securities in portfolio have the characteristics indi-
cated in the financial requlation once a month and prepares a quarterly report for the manager of the relevant department and
the managing director.
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QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE
A. CREDIT QUALITY

A.IMPAIRED AND UNIMPAIRED LOANS: CARRYING AMOUNT, IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, PERFOR-
MANCE, BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION

A.1.1Breakdown of financial assets by portfolio and credit quality (carrying amount)

BANKING GROUP

NON- IMPAIRED OTHER UNPAIRED

PERFORMING PROBABLE PAST DUE IMPAIRED PAST DUE
PORTFOLIOS/QUALITY LOANS DEFAULTS LOANS EXPOSURES LOANS TOTAL
1. Available-for-sale financial assets - - - - 2,501,990 2,501,990
2. Held-to-maturity investments - - - - 4966 4,966
3. Loans and receivables with banks - - - - 835,116 835,116

4. Loans and receivables with

customers 391 385 - - 2,910,137 2,910,913

5. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - - - _ R -

6. Financial assets held for sale - - - - - -

Total at 31.12.2017 = 6,252,208 6,252,985

Total at 31.12.2016 391 709 = 1 6,776,940 6,778,041

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssscscssesssscssosssssse

A.1.2 Breakdown of financial assets by portfolio and credit quality (gross amount and carrying

amount)
IMPAIRED ASSETS UNIMPAIRED ASSETS
00 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000OF 0000000000000 00000000000000000CCCIOIOCOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOIOTEOIOOTEOIOTTOES TOTAL
PORTFOLIOS/ GROSS INDIVIDUAL CARRYING GROSS COLLECTIVE CARRYING (CARRYING
QUALITY AMOUNT IMPAIRMENT AMOUNT AMOUNT IMPAIRMENT AMOUNT AMOUNT)
1. Available-for-sale
financial assets - - - 2,501,990 - 2,501,990 2,501,990
2. Held-to-maturity
investments - - - 4966 - 4,966 4,966
3. Loans and
receivables with
banks - - - 835,116 - 835,116 835,116
4. Loans and
receivables with
customers 4,305 3,915 391 2,915,036 4,513 2,910,522 2,910,913
S. Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss - - - - - - -

6. Financial assets
held for sale - - - - - - -

Total at 31.12.2017 4,305 3,915 391 6,257,108 4,513 6,252,595 6,252,985

00 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000080000000000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s

Total at 31.12.2016 4,987 4,596 391 6,783,678 6,028 6,777,650 6,778,041

0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000600000800000000000860000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0sscsscsscsscscsscsse
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ASSETS WITH POOR CREDIT
QUALITY OTHER ASSETS
CUMULATED
IMPAIRMENT CARRYING CARRYING
PORTFOLIOS/QUALITY LOSSES AMOUNT AMOUNT

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

1. Financial assets held for trading 17,376

2. Hedging derivatives _
Total at 31.12.2017 = = 17,376

Total at 31.12.2016 - - 13,153

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

A.1.3 Banking group - Loans and receivables with banks on and off-statement of financial
position: gross amounts, carrying amounts and due dates

GROSS AMOUNT

Gecescscccscscscscscssscscscecscssscscssecscssecssssecssssecs e e

IMPAIRED ASSETS

ececececsecesecsccesesscsesesecscsesssscsesnses

FROM FROM 6
TYPE OF EXPOSURES/ UPTO3 3TO6 MONTHS AFTER1T UNIMPAIRED INDIVIDUAL COLLECTIVE CARRYING
AMOUNTS MONTHS MONTHS TO1YEAR YEAR ASSETS IMPAIRMENT IMPAIRMENT AMOUNT

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsscscssessesssscsssscsssace

A. ON-STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Non-performing loans - - - - R - R B

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

b) Probable defaults - - - - - - - R

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

c) Impaired past due loans - - - - - - - -

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

d) Unimpaired past due loans - - - - - - _ _

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

e) Other unimpaired
exposures - - - - 851,779 - - 851,779

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - -

Total A = = = = 851,779 = = 851,779

B. OFF-STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Impaired - - - - - - - -
b) Other - - - - 5,687 - - 5,687

Total B 5,687 = 5,687

Total A+B 857,467 857,467

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsscscssessesssscsssscsssace
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A .1.6 Banking group - Loans and receivables with customers on and off-statement of financial
position: gross amounts, carrying amounts and due dates

GROSS AMOUNT
IMPAIRED ASSETS
FROM FROM6
TYPE OF EXPOSURES/ UPTO3 3TO6 MONTHS AFTER1 UNIMPAIRED INDIVIDUAL COLLECTIVE CARRYING
AMOUNTS MONTHS MONTHS TO1YEAR YEAR ASSETS IMPAIRMENT IMPAIRMENT AMOUNT

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscssscsscsssscsnsscse

A. ON-STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Non-performing loans - - - 2,088 - 1,697 - 391

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - -

b) Probable defaults 3,010 - - - - 2,625 - 385

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

¢) Impaired past due loans - - - - - - - -
- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -
d) Unimpaired past due
loans - - - - - - - -
- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

e) Other unimpaired
exposures - - - - 5,418,214

'
—_
(o]
(o]
[ee]

5,416,326

- including: negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - -

Total A 2,088 5,418,214 5,417,102

B. OFF-STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

a) Impaired - - - R R R . _
b) Other - - - - 497983 - - 497983

Total B = 497,983 = 497,983

Total A+B 3,010 = = 2,088 5,916,198 4,322 1,888 5,915,086

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscssscsscsssscsnsscse
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A.1.7 Banking group - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers:
gross impaired positions

NON-PERFORMING PROBABLE IMPAIRED
PURPOSES/CATEGORIES LOANS DEFAULTS PAST DUE LOANS

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s00cscsescsesesesecnsscnsns o

A. Gross opening balance 4,987 4,820

- including: positions transferred but not derecognised

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s00cscsescsesesesecnsscnsns o

B. Increases
B.1transfers from performing loans 1,023 -
B.2 transfers from other impaired loan categories
B.3 Other increases 234 779

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s00cscsescsesesesecnsscnsns o

C. Decreases
CJtransfers to performing loans
C.2 derecognitions 1,251 2,132
C.3 collections 505 457
C.4 gains on sales
C.5losses on sales
C.6 transfers to other impaired loan categories
C.7 other decreases 182 -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s00cscsescsesesesecnsscnsns o

D. Gross closing balance 4,305 3,010

- including: positions transferred but not derecognised

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 s00cscsescsesesesecnsscnsns o
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A.1.8 Banking group - On-statement of financial position loans and receivables with customers:
changes in impaired positions

IMPAIRED PAST DUE
NON-PERFORMING LOANS PROBABLE DEFAULTS LOANS

00000000 00000000000000000000000000 0 0000000000000000000000000000000000 s s0s0cesesesessssssssrsesescsososse o

INCLUDING: INCLUDING: INCLUDING:
NEGOTIATED NEGOTIATED NEGOTIATED
PURPOSES/CATEGORIES TOTAL EXPOSURES TOTAL EXPOSURES TOTAL EXPOSURES

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

A. Opening balance 4,596 4,m

- including: positions transferred
but not derecognised

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

B. Increases
B.1 Impairment losses 495 968
B.2 losses on sales

B.3 transfers from other impaired
loan categories

B.4 other increases

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

C. Decreases
C.1fair value gains

C.2 reversals of impairment losses
due to collection

C.3 gains on sales 51
C.4 derecognitions

C.5transfers to other impaired
loan categories 1,126 2,454
C.6 other decreases

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse

D. Closing balance 3,914 2,625

- including: positions transferred
but not derecognised

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssssscsscsscsscsnssesse
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A.3 BREAKDOWN OF GUARANTEED EXPOSURE BY TYPE OF GUARANTEE

A.3.1 Guaranteed loans and receivables with banks

PERSONAL GUARANTEES (2)

R R P T R TP P PR P PP PRI

COLLATERAL (1) CREDIT DERIVATIVES ENDORSEMENT CREDITS

000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000s $000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s00000000cscscscsscscsssscscssscssssscss

OTHER DERIVATIVES

secescscscscscscscscscscscssscscsssns s

GOVERN-
PROPERTY MENT  OTHER GOVERN-  OTHER
MORT- UNDER OTHER AND  GOVER- MENTAND  GOVER-
NET GAGED  FINANCE SECURI- COLLATE- CENTRAL  NMENT CENTRAL  NMENT TOTAL
AMOUNT PROPERTY LEASE TIES RAL CLN BANKS AGENCIES BANKS OTHER  BANKS AGENCIES BANKS OTHER (1+2)

000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscscsscsssosssosossoss

1. Guaranteed
loans:

111ully guaran-
teed 136,217 - - 135,886 - - - - - - - - - - 135,886

-including:
impaired - - - - - - - - B - . N B _

1.2 partly gua-
ranteed - - - - - - - B B - _ ) B B

-including:
impaired - - - - - - - N . - - B . . N

000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscscsscsssosssosossoss

2. Off-statement of
financial position
guaranteed
loans:

21fully guaran-
teed - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

-including:
impaired - - - - - - - - - - _ 3 N ,

2.2. partly
guaranteed - - - - - - . - - ) _ _
-including:
impaired - - - - - - - - B . . N B

000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssscscsscsssosssosossoss
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A.3.2 Banking group - Guaranteed loans and receivables with customers

1. Guaranteed
loans:

111ully guaran-
teed
-including:
impaired
1.2 partly gua-
ranteed
-including:
impaired

NET

204,548

MORT-
GAGED
AMOUNT PROPERTY

COLLATERAL (1)

PROPERTY
UNDER

OTHER

FINANCE SECURI- COLLATE-
RAL CNL

0000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscssossssssossososssoss

LEASE

TIES

203,819

PERSONAL GUARANTEES (2)

R R TR R Py PR P P P Y T P P Y PP PP PR PP PRI

CREDIT DERIVATIVES
OTHER DERIVATIVES

tecesecssecscsesesscsccesecscscsesen e

GOVERN-  OTHER

MENTAND GOVER-

CENTRAL NMENT
BANKS AGENCIES BANKS

OTHER

ENDORSEMENT CREDITS

GOVERN-
MENT AND
CENTRAL
BANKS

00 00000000000000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000000000000000000000000000s s0000000csesscssesssscsesssscsssscscsnsse

OTHER
GOVER-
NMENT TOTAL
AGENCIES BANKS OTHER  (1+2)

- 203,819

0000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscssossssssossososssoss

2. Off-statement of
financial position
guaranteed
loans:

21fully guaran-
teed
-including:
impaired
2.2, partly
guaranteed
-including:
impaired

0000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000006000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscssossssssossososssoss
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B. BREAKDOWN AND CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT EXPOSURE

B.1 BANKING GROUP - BREAKDOWN OF LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS ON AND
OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT (CARRYING AMOUNT)

GOVERNMENTS OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCIES FINANCIAL COMPANIES

000 000000000000000000000000000000000000 s $00000000000000000000000000000000000000 0 0000000000rsesesssssssssscssscscscscsese

[ - [ [ [ =
O =z Sz O =z L=z O =z Sz
£ 32 gz gf gr pr g 32 B
%o S8 8% z3 28 %8 g3 88 gE
EH 5% 3 Zs 5% dg EH 58 3
<G Oqa oo g Oq oa g [~ oo
EXPOSURES/ v Zs 0= v Zs oS v Zs 0s
COUNTERPARTS
A. ON-STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL
POSITION
A1 Non-performing
loans - - - - - - 391 1,491 -
- including:
negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - - -
A.2 Probable defaults - - - - - - - - -
- including:
negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - - -
A.3 Impaired past due
loans - - - - - - - - -
- including:
negotiated
exposures - - - - - - - - -
A4 Unimpaired
exposures 2,502,302 - - 3,843 - 75 2,157,089 - -
- including:
negotiated
exposures - - - - - -

2,502,302 75 2,157,480 1,491

B. Off-statement of
financial position

B.1 Non-performing
loans - - - - - - - - -

B.2 Probable defaults - - - - - - - R _

B.3 Other impaired
assets - - - - - - - - -

B.4 Unimpaired
exposures 129,063 - - 263 - - 41,121 - -

Total B 129,063 = = = 41,121

00 000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csscscscsssssssssscscscsssscs

Vel ) 2,631,366 - - 4,105 - 75 2,198,601 1,491 -

AT 31.12.2017

00 000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csscscscsssssssssscscscsssscs

Total (A +B)
AT 31.12.2016 3,172,292 - - 1,852 - 45 1,800,809 1,491 -

0000 00000000000000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000c0ssscsossesssscscscssss
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INSURANCE COMPANIES NON-FINANCIAL COMPANIES OTHER

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000 0 ©000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000sescsesesesssesesssecssssscssses

AL
AL

CARRYING
AMOUNT
INDIVIDU
IMPAIRMENT
COLLECTIVE
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
INDIVIDU
IMPAIRMENT
COLLECTIVE
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
INDIVIDUAL
IMPAIRMENT
COLLECTIVE
IMPAIRMENT

EXPOSURES/
COUNTERPARTS

A. On-statement of
financial position

Al Non-performing
loans - - - - 206 - - 2,217 -

- including:
negotiated
exposures

A.2 Probable defaults - - - - - - 385 - 2,625
- including:
negotiated
exposures

A.3 Impaired past
due loans - - - - - - - - -

-including:
negotiated
exposures

A4 Unimpaired
exposures 10,866 - - 97,554 - - 644,672 - 1,813

- including:
negotiated
exposures

645,057

B. Off-statement of
financial position

B.1 Non-performing
loans - - - - - - - - -

B.2 Probable defaults - - - - - - - R _

B.3 Other impaired
assets - - - - - - - - -

B.4 Unimpaired
exposures 7128 - - 694 - - - - -

Total B 7,128 -

secesecesesecssecscscsesece sossecesesesesssescssscnne eesceccecscesesessececcscscsccssssecesnses

Ve L) 17,994 - 98248 206 2,217 4,438

AT 31.12.2017

00 000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000000000600000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsssescscscssssesscsscscsssscs

Total (A +B)
AT 31.12.2016

000000000000 000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000ssscsossscscsssscscsse

153 = = 2,033 257 - 1,149,444 2,848 5,983
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B.2 BANKING GROUP - BREAKDOWN OF LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS ON
AND OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT (CARRYING
AMOUNT)

OTHER EUROPEAN REST OF THE
ITALY COUNTRIES AMERICAS ASIA WORLD

000 0000000000000000000008 $000000000000000000000008 ©000000000000000000000008 $00000000000000000000000s se0c0s0ces0ces s 00000 s 00

CARRYING
AMOUNT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT

EXPOSURES/
GEOGRAPHICAL
AREAS

A. On-statement
of financial
position
A1 Non-
performing
loans 391 3,915 - - - - - - - -

A.2 Probable
defaults 385 2,625 - - - - - - - -

A.3Impaired past
due loans - - - - - - - - - -

A4 Unimpaired
exposures 5,231,057 1,813 76,577 - 107,824 831 - 37 -
Total 5,231,833 8,353 76,577 - 107,824 - 831 - 37 -
B. Off-statement

of financial
position

B.1 Non-performing
loans - - - - - - - - - -

B.2 Probable
defaults - - - - - - - - R _

B.3 Other impaired
assets - - - - - - - - - -

B.4 Unimpaired
exposures 178,236 - 18 - 16 - - - - -

Total 178,236 = =

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0scsssssssssssssscscs

Total at 31.12.2017 5,410,069 8,353 76,595 - 107,840 = 831 = 37 =

Total at 31.12.2016 5,996,533 10,579 60,396 68,280

0000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0ssssoscsscscscsnsosscs
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B.3 BANKING GROUP - BREAKDOWN OF LOANS AND RECEIVABLES WITH CUSTOMERS ON
AND OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT (CARRYING
AMOUNT)

OTHER EUROPEAN REST OF THE
ITALY COUNTRIES AMERICAS ASIA WORLD

CARRYING
AMOUNT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
CARRYING
AMOUNT
CARRYING
AMOUNT

EXPOSURES/
GEOGRAPHICAL
AREAS

A. On-statement
of financial
position

A1 Non-
performing
loans - - - - - - - - - -

A.2 Probable
defaults - - - - - - - _ - _

TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT
TOTAL
IMPAIRMENT

A.3 Impaired past
due loans - - - - - - - - - -

A4 Unimpaired
exposures 774,479 - 37,542 - 27,359 - 8,736 - 3,663 -

Total 774,479 - 37,542 - 27,359 - 8,736 - 3,663 -
B. Off-statement
of financial
position
B.1 Non-
performing
loans - - - - - - - - _ -
B.2 Probable
defaults - - - - - . - R _ _
B.3 Other
impaired
assets - - - - - . - - ; _

B.4 Unimpaired
exposures 4,633 - 1,055 - - - - - - -

Total at 31.12.2016 723,246

C. SECURITISATIONS OF ASSETS

The group has not undertaken these types of transaction.

D. DISCLOSURE ON STRUCTURED ENTITIES NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR ACCOUNTING PURPOSES (OTHER
THAN SECURITISATION VEHICLES)

D.1 CONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES
Nothing to report.

D.2 STRUCTURED ENTITIES NON CONSOLIDATED FOR ACCOUNTING PURPOSES
D.2.1Structured entities consolidated for supervisory purpose
Nothing to report.

The information of qualitative and quantitative nature referred to in this section are not to be provided by the banks that issue
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Circular 262 of the Bank of Italy.
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D.2.2 Other structured entities

DIFFERENCE

BETWEEN

EXPOSURE AT

CAPTION MAXIMUM  RISK TO LOSS

TYPE OF TOTAL TOTAL CARRYING EXPOSURE AT AND CARRYING

STRUCTURED RECOGNISED ASSETS RECOGNISED LIABILITIES AMOUNT RISKTO LOSS AMOUNT

ENTITY ASSETS (A) LIABILITIES (B) (C=B-A) (D) (E=D-C)
Available-for-sale

2. OEIC units financial assets 20,916 - - 20,916 75,000 54,084

0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000008000000000000000000060000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsscsssscsscsscssece

E. TRANSFERS
The group has not performed any transfers.

F. CREDIT RISK MEASUREMENT MODELS
The group does not have state-of-the-art tools to measure credit risk given its profile.

1.2 BANKING GROUP — MARKET RISKS
1.2.1Interest rate and price risk - requlatory trading book
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of incurring losses generated by operating on the market for financial instruments (requlatory trading
book), currencies and commodities, due to fluctuations in market factors or the issuer’s situation. This risk is applicable only to
Nexi as it manages financial instruments on the group’s behalf. Activities that generate market risk are performed by the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) Area, the Treasury unit and the Securities Services BU.

The finance requlation governs these activities and defines the operating limits for the subcomponents of market risk, such as
currency risk, interest rate risk on the trading book, issuer risk, country risk and counterparty risk. In addition, the regulation
sets operating limits for the various activities for the amounts involved, VaR, the stop loss as well as the criteria and methods to
monitor positions.

The governance model in place to manage and monitor risks is based on the segregation between the management processes
and the risk control processes on the one hand and, on the other, development of same processes in line with the group’s hier-
archical structure and by assigning proxies.

The first level controls are carried out by the CFO Area and the Securities Services BU for the activities related to them, while the
second level controls are performed by the risk management unit. This unit monitors market risk on a daily basis using the VaR
of the positions in securities and foreign currency. It also performs second level controls on compliance with assigned limits.

The risk management unit also checks and processes ex post the data related to the group’s total risk positions each day and
prepares the reports necessary to check the limits set by the finance requlation. It also performs specific tests to check the level
of existing risk scenarios or future scenarios for the current portfolio. If the VaR limits are exceeded, the risk management unit
manager promptly informs the relevant unit, its manager and the managing director. The risk management unit also informs the
Treasury unit and/or the Securities Services BU manager of situations that are close to exceeding their limits. The unit ensures
that sufficient information about transactions involving derivatives is provided in its reports.

It monitors positions in securities and foreign currency using VaR with a confidence interval of 99% and a time horizon of 10 days,
calculated using a parametric model. This test is performed on the entire portfolio, separating the Other portfolio from the HTC
portfolio and the HTCS portfolio, which are monitored directly by the board of directors.

The VaR, defined to obtain a reasonable estimate of potential losses in normal market conditions, is not designed to, nor does
it, include an analysis of extreme events. Stress tests are used to check the impact of extreme conditions on the portfolio and
violations of the assumptions underlying the model used by identifying the remaining risk and providing information comple-
mentary to VaR.

Daily stress tests are performed on the VaR of securities and currencies as well as the daily calculation of VaR.
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Basis risk

The basis risk is defined as the risk of losses caused by unmatched variations in the spot and future price that are similar but not
identical. This risk is especially pertinent to banks that calculate their capital requirements using standard methods by offsetting
positions in one or more equities included in an equity index with one or more future positions/other derivatives linked to this
index or that offset opposing positions in futures on equity indexes that do not have the same expiry date, composition or both.

The group is not exposed to this risk as it does not use futures/derivatives to hedge positions exposed to market risk and, there-
fore, these instruments are not included in the calculation of the capital requirement for market risk using the standard method.
The group’s operations in banking book derivatives is limited to trading in OTC options which, as per its internal regulations,
does not generate positions. The risk positions for other financial instruments are hedged by specular hedges.

General aspects about interest rate risk
This risk is inherent in the group’s core banking business as it is part of the process of change over time, space and form of finan-
cial resources and in the financial assets trading business.

The objectives and strategies underlying trading activities in place to manage the securities portfolio are designed to maximise
profitability and exploit investment opportunities as part of an approach to contain risks. This leads the group to have a bonds
portfolio with a relatively short duration.

The trading book includes financial instruments subject to regulatory capital requirements for market risk, as defined in the
supervisory communication regulations.

Interest rate risk management processes and measurement methods

Interest rate risk is calculated using the method already provided for by Circular 263/2006 and currently by Circular 285/2013 for
class 2 banks, revising, as required by the same legislation, the simplified assumptions concerning the estimate of the stable sha-
re (so-called "core component") and its distribution in the time bands, so as to make the calculation of risk more consistent with
its operations. This method requires that the exposure to interest rate risk related to the banking book is assessed “by referring
to the annual changes in interest rates recorded in a 6-year observation period, considering alternatively the st percentile (fall)
or the 99° (upside)".

General aspects about price risk

Price risk is the risk of fluctuations in the prices of financial instruments due to variations in market variables or specific factors of
the issuers or counterparties. It can be general, due to a change in the price of an equity instrument caused by fluctuations in the
reference market, or specific, caused by a change in the price of a specific equity instrument compared to its reference market
following changes in expectations about the financial soundness or future profitability of the issuer.

Management and measurement of price risk
Like for the other risks, the group’s strategy adopted to manage price risk is prudent.

This risk is monitored through specific reports and by calculating the VaR (which is performed daily by the risk management
unit).
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. REGULATORY TRADING BOOK: BREAKDOWN BY RESIDUAL MATURITY (REPRICING DATE)
OF ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND
DERIVATIVES -

CURRENCY: EURO
FROM3 FROM 6 FROM1 FROMS5
ON UPTO3 TO6 MONTHS TOS TO10 AFTER10 OPEN
TYPE/RESIDUAL TERM DEMAND MONTHS MONTHS TO1YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS TERM
1. Assets
1.1 Debt instruments
- with early repayment option - - - - 107 - 12 -
- other 1,016 3,707 1,409 2,248 4,402 1,024 130 -

1.2 Other assets - - - - - - R _

2. Liabilities
2.1 Repurchase agreements - - - - - - - R
2.2 Other liabilities - - - - - . - -

0000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssnscsossesssscscscssss

3. Financial derivatives

3.1 With underlying security

- Options
+long positions - - - 2 R - - R
+short positions - - - 2 - _ R _

- Other derivatives
+long positions 274 58,250 703 651 92,900 15,692 - -
+short positions 294 151,712 808 359 301 15,745 - -

3.2 Without underlying security

- Options - - - - - - - -
+long positions - - - - - - - -
+ short positions - - - - - - - -

- Other derivatives
+long positions - 37987 45,251 - - - - -
+short positions - 842,812 45,285 - - - - -

0000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sssnscsossesssscscscssss
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CURRENCY: OTHER

FROM3 FROMS6 FROM1 FROM 5
ON UPTO3 TO6 MONTHS TOS TO10 AFTER10 OPEN
TYPE/RESIDUAL TERM DEMAND MONTHS MONTHS TO1YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS TERM

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000800000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0scssscsossscssccssccscsse

1. Assets
1.1 Debt instruments
- with early repayment option 50 - - - 8 128 26 -
- other 169 1 - 174 547 196 268 -
1.2 Other assets - - - - - - - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000800000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0scssscsossscssccssccscsse

2. Liabilities
2.1 Repurchase agreements - - - - - - - -
2.2 Other liabilities - - - - - - 1 _

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000800000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0scssscsossscssccssccscsse

3. Financial derivatives
3.1 With underlying security
- Options
+long positions - - - - - - _ _
+short positions - - - - - _ _ _
- Other derivatives
+long positions - - - - - - R R
+short positions - - - - _ R _ _
3.2 Without underlying security
- Options
+long positions - - - . - _ R _
+short positions - - - - . . _ R
- Other derivatives
+long positions - 839,400 45,037 - - . _ _
+short positions - 37902 45,037 - - - - -

0 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000 0000000000000 00000000800000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0scssscsossscssccssccscsse

1.2.2 INTEREST RATE AND PRICE RISKS - BANKING BOOK

QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

A. General aspects, management and measurement of interest rate risk

The banking book’s interest rate risk is the risk of losses in its value due to potential changes in interest rates.

The main source of this type of risk is the repricing risk, i.e., the risk arising from the mismatch of maturity dates and repricing of
assets and liabilities, the main aspects of which are:

« yield curve risk, the risk arising from the group’s exposure to changes in the slope and shape of the return curve;

« basis risk, the risk arising from the mismatching of changes in interest rates paid and received on different instruments that
may have similar repricing characteristics.

This risk relates solely to the parent for its banking book.

The group’s funding and lending have historically mainly being obtained or granted through current accounts or with short-
term maturities (nearly all within three months). As most of the liquidity in current accounts is that in the giro accounts, which
are used for operating purposes and not for funding and/or lending transactions, the group’s actual exposure to this risk is rather
limited.

The risk management unit monitors this risk daily to assess its impact using a method based on the guidance set out in Annex
C of Title 111, Chapter 1 of Bank of Italy Circular no. 285, which assesses the absorption in terms of internal capital of a variation of
200 bp on the return curve on the banking book, weighing the various exposures depending on their residual life and adopting
an internal method to classify current accounts, as required by the above-mentioned supervisory regulations.
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With respect to Nexi Payments and its business, positions are concentrated in the “within one month” category with minimum
exposure. Moreover, the mismatching due to the issuing and acquiring activities solely relates to the settlement date and not to
the value date, which is the same for credit and debit movements.

With regard to monitoring interest rate risk, the Risk Management Service of NEXI carries out stress tests on interest rate risk,
assuming parallel movements of the rate curves and analyzing the consequent effects.

General aspects, management and measurement of price risk

The banking book’s price risk mainly refers to the equity investments held for the long term and financial instruments, mostly
Italian government bonds, which are not included in the trading book as they are also held for investment purposes.

The board of directors is the sole body responsible for the related internal controls for the latter instruments.

B. Fair value hedges
Not applicable.

C. Cash flow hedges
The group’s hedging strategies are generic and may also refer to the interest rate risk applicable to the on-demand items.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. BANKING BOOK: BREAKDOWN BY RESIDUAL MATURITY (BY REPRICING DATE) OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

CURRENCY: EURO

TYPE/RESIDUAL TERM

DEMAND MONTHS

FROM3

ON UPTO3 TO 6

MONTHS TO1YEAR

FROM 6 FROM1
MONTHS TOS5
YEARS

FROMS5
TO 10
YEARS

AFTER10
YEARS

OPEN
TERM

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscsssscsese

1. Assets
1.1 Debt instruments
- with early repayment
option
- other
1.2 Financing to banks
1.3 Financing to customers
- current accounts
- other financing
- with early repayment
option

- other

tesecececesecescscscssesesesesescscscs sessesssssee

2. Liabilities
2.1 Due to customers
- current accounts
- other payables
- with early repayment
option
- other
2.2 Due to banks
- current accounts
- other payables
2.3 Debt instruments
- with early repayment
option
- other
2.4 Other liabilities
- with early repayment
option
- other

Gececececesececesescsseseceseseseceses sesesseseseccsessesesescscsssesesesesene

3. Financial derivatives
3.1 with underlying security
- Options
+long positions
+ short positions
- Other derivatives
+long positions
+short positions
3.2 Without underlying security
- Options
+long positions
+short positions
- Other derivatives
+long positions
+ short positions

sesececesssecene

4. Other off-statement of
financial position transactions

+long positions
+short positions

781,194 4,966 15,897
270,122 480,215 -
1,746,450 - -
24,456 52,710 20,814
6,088,255 - -
20,159 344,421 -
1,401,430 - -
212,671 - -

- 1,014 -

- 7,083 -

essecescscscscscsseccsesescses

essecescscscscscsseccsesescses

- 1,709,124
2,460 -
- 391
53,219 97,714

ececescecssececscscscsssescsscscscscsssssssscscscscsssescsscscscssssecnse

essecescscccccs

essecescscccccs

esceccscscscscscesesecscsccnnece

esceccscscscscscesesecscsccnnece

esceccscscscscscesesecscsccnnece

- 6,069

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scsesescscsscsssscsssscsese



130- NE@XI - 2017 Reports and Financial Statements

CURRENCY: OTHER

TYPE/RESIDUAL TERM

DEMAND

ON UPTO3
MONTHS

FROM 3

FROM 6
TO6 MONTHS
MONTHS TO1YEAR

FROM

TOS
YEARS

1 FROM S5

TO 10
YEARS

AFTER
10 YEARS

OPEN
TERM

0000000000 000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0esoscsosesesssscsscscsssscsese

1. Assets

1.1 Debt instruments
- with early repayment

option

- other

1.2 Financing to banks

1.3 Financing to customers
- current accounts
- other financing

- with early repayment

option

- other

78,094

15,160

P R R N R R R R PR PR PR PP PPy P P PR TR

2. Liabilities

2.1 Due to customers
- current accounts
- other payables

- with early repayment

option

- other

2.2 Due to banks
- current accounts
- other payables
2.3 Debt instruments

- with early repayment

option

- other

2.4 Other liabilities

- with early repayment

option

- other

820,001

321

76,849

B R R R N T R R PP PP PP PR )

3. Financial derivatives

3.1 With underlying security

- Options

+long positions
+ short positions
- Other derivatives
+long positions
+short positions

3.2 Without underlying security

- Options

+long positions
+short positions

- Other derivatives
+long positions
+ short positions

sescecssececcscsisnse

4. Other off-statement of
financial position transactions

+long positions

+short positions

cecescscssececesessesescssesessescssesnne

ceececcscscccns

ceececcscscccns

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

esseccscscscccs

essesecscscssccce

essesecscscssccce

essesecscscssccce

0000000000 000000000000000000000000000 000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0esoscsosesesssscsscscsssscsese
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1.2.3 CURRENCY RISK

A. General aspects,management and measurement of currency risk

Currency risk arises on the mismatch between foreign currency assets and liabilities (cash and forward) for each currency, origi-
nating from positions taken on by the centres specialised in market risk, within the assigned limits and proxies.

Currency risk nearly entirely originates from trading activities on behalf of customers and / or from foreign currency trading
activities carried out through trading in various market instruments. The risk management unit monitors this risk constantly by
calculating the VaR while the Treasury unit performs the relevant first level controls.

The group’s exposure to currency risk, calculated using the net foreign currency positions and a method in line with the super-
visory regulations, is contained because every significant foreign currency transaction with institutional counterparties is usually
hedged on the market with an offsetting transaction. Transactions involving small amounts carried out on behalf of customers
or for trading purposes that generate a position open to exchange rate risk are monitored in real time by the Treasury unit in
compliance with the limits set by the current Rules.

It only maintains positions exposed to currency risk within very limited ceilings (which are always fully respected) set for the total
maximum exposure, for each currency and VaR.

B. Currency hedges
The trading book is completely hedged with spot forex positions.

The risk management unit checks that the VaR on existing positions is always within the limits set by the finance requlation every day.

Transfer risk
The transfer risk is defined as the risk that a bank, exposed to a party that finances itself in a currency different to that in which it
earns most of its income, makes losses due to the debtor’s difficulties in converting its currency into the currency of its exposure.

The group is potentially exposed to this risk due to its credit exposures in foreign currencies and Euro credit exposures of parties
based in countries with a legal tender that is not the Euro.

In both cases, these exposures mostly relate to the parent, as the other group and consolidation area companies’ exposures are
only in Euros (net of those of Mercury Processing denominated in its reference currency) and the counterparties (cardholders
and merchants) for Nexi Payments are parties with tax residence in Italy, for which it is presumed that they have liquidity in Euros.

A detailed analysis of these exposures shows that: 1) the overall exposure is mainly denominated in currencies of countries be-
longing to the EU that do not adopt the Euro, for which there are in fact no problems of conversion; 2) among the individual
exposures, over a quarter is with operators, such as Euroclear, Clearstream, BNP Paribs and Bank of New York, which operating as
multi-currency settlement houses currently have the possibility of converting currencies.

Therefore, the group’s transfer risk is very modest, especially if compared to the entire credit risk (of which it can be considered
to be an additional component). The amount and composition of exposures potentially exposed to transfer risk are monitored
to identify any changes.
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1.BREAKDOWN OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND DERIVATIVES BY CURRENCY

CURRENCY
POUND CANADIAN OTHER
CAPTIONS US DOLLAR YEN STERLING SWISS FRANC DOLLAR CURRENCIES
A. Financial assets
A.1 Debt instruments 1,598 - - - - -
A.2 Equity instruments 2,565 - - 23 - 153
A.3 Financing to banks 1,795 5,476 12,497 7,218 3,237 37,870
A.4 Financing to customers 15,030 - - - - 129
A.5 Other financial assets - - - - - -
B. Other assets 15 8 5 3 4 mn
C. Financial liabilities - - - - - -
C.1 Due to banks 46,380 1,241 224 6,870 1,426 11,809
C.2 Due to customers 476,603 134,987 12,327 18,095 18,062 61,022
C.3 Debt instruments - - - - - -
C.4 Other financial liabilities - - - - - -
D. Other liabilities - - - - - -
E. Financial derivatives - - - - - -
- Options - - - - - -
+long positions - - - - - -
+short positions - - - - - -
- Other derivatives - - - - - -
+long positions 524,840 181,802 100,093 24,037 16,297 37,368
+short positions 33,985 40,930 - 6,099 23 1,902

Total assets 555,842 187,286 19,537

Total liabilities 556,969 112,552

cecesececcses cecesecesesesesesesssessecssenne cesecscsscscse

Difference 43

00 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000sscsnssos

1.2.4 DERIVATIVES
The group’s operations in derivatives and foreign currency mainly relate to matching trades performed on behalf of its customers.

Nexi does not have innovative or complex financial instruments.

In addition, in order to hedge the risk of a reduction in the price and the exchange rate of the Visa C Class shares (which are
convertible into Visa Series A shares at a variable conversion factor according to the charges deriving from the potential liabilities
of the former Visa Europe, acquired by Visa Inc.) in the portfolio of Nexi Payments, a collar was stipulated on a number of shares
that does not take into account the discount applied in the balance sheet, but which has a strike such that, from an economic
point of view, the pay off the derivative, in the event of a reduction in the value in Euro of the Class A Shares below the book
value, is exactly equal to the reduction in the value of the security compared to the hedging target.
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A. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES

A1 REGULATORY TRADING BOOK: NOTIONAL AMOUNTS AT THE REPORTING DATE
AND AVERAGE AMOUNTS

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Secececesecsecesecesscsecesecscsesecesscseses secesecsesesecesecsesesecsssesesssecssseseee

OVER THE CENTRAL OVER THE CENTRAL
UNDERLYING ASSETS/TYPE OF DERIVATIVES COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

1. Debt instruments and interest rates
a) Options - - - -
b) Swaps - - - -
¢) Forwards - - - -
d) Futures - - - -
e) Other - - - -

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

2. Equity instruments and share indexes
a) Options 764 - - -
b) Swaps - - - _
¢) Forwards - - - -
d) Futures - - - -
e) Other - - - -

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

3. Currencies and gold
a) Options - - - -
b) Swaps 5,461 - 62,731 -
c) Forwards 822,399 - 1,101,122 -
d) Futures - - - -
e) Other - - - -

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

4. Commodities - - - R

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

5. Other underlying assets 12 - - _
Total 828,636 = 1,163,853 =

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse
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A.3 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES: GROSS POSITIVE FAIR VALUE - BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

POSITIVE FAIR VALUE

B R R R R P Py P P T P

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

B R R R P P P T PR PR PP RPN

OVER THE CENTRAL OVER THE CENTRAL
PORTFOLIOS/TYPE OF DERIVATIVES COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csessrscsesssescssscsossscssss o

A. Regulatory trading book
a) Options 382 - - -
b) Interest rate swaps - - - -
c) Cross currency swaps - - - -
d) Equity swaps - - - -
e) Forwards 1,094 - 1,374 -
f) Futures - - - -
g) Other 4 - 373 -

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csessrscsesssescssscsossscssss o

B. Banking book - hedging
a) Options - - - _
b) Interest rate swaps - - - -
c) Cross currency swaps - - - -
d) Equity swaps - - - _
e) Forwards - - R R
f) Futures - - _ _
g) Other - - - i,

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csessrscsesssescssscsossscssss o

C. Banking book - other derivatives
a) Options - - - _
b) Interest rate swaps - - - -
c) Cross currency swaps - - - -
d) Equity swaps - - - _
e) Forwards - - R R
f) Futures - - R R
g) Other - - - i,

Total 1,480 = 1,748 =

0000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000csessrscsesssescssscsossscssss o
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A.4 FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES: GROSS NEGATIVE FAIR VALUE - BREAKDOWN BY PRODUCT

PORTFOLIOS/TYPE OF DERIVATIVES

NEGATIVE FAIR VALUE

R R R R PR P P P P P R P P Y T R PR PP PP PP P PR

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Secececesecsecesecesscsecesecscsesecesscseses secesecsesesecesecsesesecsssesesssecssseseee

OVER THE CENTRAL OVER THE CENTRAL
COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES COUNTER COUNTERPARTIES

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

A. Regulatory trading book
a) Options
b) Interest rate swaps
c) Cross currency swaps
d) Equity swaps
e) Forwards
f) Futures
g) Other

382 - - -

5,240 - 7,350 -

48 - 278 -

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

B. Banking book - hedging
a) Options
b) Interest rate swaps
c) Cross currency swaps
d) Equity swaps
e) Forwards
f) Futures
g) Other

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse

C. Banking book - other derivatives
a) Options
b) Interest rate swaps
c) Cross currency swaps
d) Equity swaps
e) Forwards
) Futures
g) Other

Total

5,670 = 7,629 =

000000000000 0000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000ssssscssssssnsessse
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A.5 OTC FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES - REGULATORY TRADING BOOK: NOTIONAL AMOUNTS,
GROSS POSITIVE AND NEGATIVE FAIR VALUE BY COUNTERPARTY - CONTRACTS NOT
INCLUDED IN NETTING AGREEMENTS

CONTRACTS NOT

INCLUDED IN GOVERNMENTS OTHER

COMPENSATION AND CENTRAL GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL INSURANCE NON-FINANCIAL
AGREEMENTS BANKS AGENCIES BANKS COMPANIES COMPANIES COMPANIES OTHER

0000000000000 000000000000 600000000000 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000rsscsscsssosscscsscssse

1) Debt instruments
and interest rates

- notional amount - - - - . - _
- positive fair value - - : _ _ R ;
- negative fair value - - - - _ _ }
- future exposure - - - - _ R _

2) Equity instruments
and share indexes - - - - - - -

- notional amount - - 382 382 - - -
- positive fair value - - - 382 - - -
- negative fair value - - 382 - - - -
- future exposure - - - 57 - - -
3) Currencies and
gold - - - - - - -
- notional amount - - 782,824 45,037 - - -
- positive fair value - - 1,094 - - - -
- negative fair value - - 4,739 549 - - -
- future exposure - - 6,608 450 - - -
4) Other assets - - - - - - -
- notional amount 12 - - - - - -
- positive fair value 4 - - - - - -

- negative fair value - - - - _ _ _

- future exposure - - - R _ i R

Total 16 - 796,029 46,857 = = =
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A.9 RESIDUAL MATURITY OF OTC FINANCIAL DERIVATIVES: NOTIONAL AMOUNTS

UuPTO FROM1TO AFTERS

UNDERLYING/RESIDUAL TERM 1YEAR 5YEARS YEARS TOTAL
A. Regulatory trading book
A Financial derivatives on debt instruments and interest

rates - - - -
A.2 Financial derivatives on equity instruments and share

indexes 764 - - 764
A.3 Financial derivatives on currencies and gold 827,861 - - 827,861
A4 Financial derivatives on other assets - - 12 12
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B. Banking book - - - -

B.1 Financial derivatives on debt instruments and interest
rates - - - -

B.2 Financial derivatives on equity instruments and share
indexes - - - -

B.3 Financial derivatives on currencies and gold - - - -

B.4 Financial derivatives on other assets - - - -

Total at 31.12.2017 828,625 12 828,637
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Total at 31.12.2016 1,163,853 = = 1,163,853
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1.3 BANKING GROUP - LIQUIDITY RISK
QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE

General aspects, management and measurement of liquidity risk
Liquidity is the ability of a bank to finance the growth of its assets and to meet its payment obligations, without incurring unac-
ceptable losses or costs.

The liquidity risk is defined as the risk for which the bank is not able to meet its obligations when they expire, due to the inability
to raise funds or the presence of limits in the sale of assets. With reference to internationally agreed definitions, a distinction is
made between funding liquidity risk and market liquidity risk.

Funding liquidity risk means the risk that the bank will not be able to raise funds to meet its expected and unexpected current
and future cash outflows, without compromising the day-to-day operations of the bank itself.

Market liquidity risk means the risk that the bank will not be able to liquidate a financial asset without incurring capital losses due
to the lack of liquidity of the reference market or of unrest in it.

The two forms of liquidity risk are often correlated and can manifest themselves in the face of the same triggering factors.

It also distinguishes between:

« Mismatch liquidity risk: the liquidity risk implicit in the structure of the bank's assets and liabilities.

« Contingency liquidity risk: the risk that future events may require levels of liquidity much higher than those previously planned
by the bank; in other words, the risk of not being able to cope with sudden payment commitments in the short term.

Liquidity risk is borne by the parent that manages, as a bank, its liquidity and the liquidity requirements of various group compa-

nies. Regarding instrumental and marginal financing needs:

« Nexi Payments can access credit lines and loans granted by other entities, even for small amounts (less than 10%) of their own
needs.

« Bassilichi has autonomy as regards the lines of credit necessary to meet the financial needs; however, the Parent granted an
intragroup line that replaced most of the lines in place with the other banks.

» Mercury Payment can access the lines of credit and loans granted by Intesa Sanpaolo, of which it was part before the acquisi-
tion and which is still the primary customer of the company.

» Mercury Processing (a Croatian company) has an independent liquidity management, with no need for funding from the Par-
ent Company.

The group’s general liquidity risk management policy is characterised by modest risk appetite and prudently privileges a balance
between assets and liabilities as part of its strategy to increase profitability. Deadlines and amounts of its cash flows allow it to
limit liquidity risk with the balanced return of funds, notwithstanding the fact that the group is very capable of financing itself in
very short periods (one to three days).

The Parent Company's Board of Directors supervises the strategic management of the liquidity risk to which the Group is ex-
posed and ensures the adoption of the crisis management plans, ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of the solutions to
be undertaken. The Parent Company's Chief Executive Officer is responsible for defining the guidelines for the liquidity risk
management process and for implementing strategic guidelines, as part of maintaining an effective liquidity risk management
and control system. The Board of Statutory Auditors and the Risk Committee are responsible for overseeing the adequacy and
compliance of the liquidity risk management process with the requirements established by the requlations.

The management of liquidity, carried out by the Treasury Service, aims to ensure the Group's financial balance in the various
time buckets, maintaining an adequate dynamic relationship between liabilities and assets, in order to avoid pressure on current
and future sources of liquidity.The parent, Nexi, has regular and ongoing access to credit when the market is stable and liquidity
flow are normal.

Therefore, the group is not significantly exposed to liquidity risk. Its liabilities mainly consist of current accounts with banks or
customers set up to be used as part of its core business rather than for funding purposes. An analysis of its due dates does not
show any critical issues, given the nature of the underlying transactions. Moreover, with respect to its positions other than cur-
rent accounts, there are no critical issues relating to acceleration clauses or clauses requiring additional guarantees if the group
companies are downgraded; also the acquisitions made in the last few years and the consequent funding needs of the Group
companies did not entail and do not lead to problems in the matter.
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With regard to the coverage of intraday liquidity risk, rules are defined for the maintenance of a minimum portfolio of eligible
securities, functional to guarantee the intradayial and period refinancing needs at Central Banks.

The related “liquidity risk policy and contingency funding and recovery plan”’, approved by the parent’s board of directors, sets
the guidelines for liquidity management (liquidity policy) and the rules to be adopted in a liquidity crisis (contingency funding
plan). It incorporates the most recent requlatory updates (Bank of Italy Circular no. 285/2013) and the principles of the group’s
risk policy, thus integrating and completing the rules defined in the finance regulation.

The liquidity risk policy (LRP) defines the liquidity risk management process, which is aimed at ensuring over time the mainte-
nance of a sufficient amount of liquid instruments even in the presence of stress scenarios. It includes a vast range of indicators
to facilitate the monitoring of the bank’s liquidity profile and to promptly identify any deterioration caused by internal factors
or systemic factors.

The contingency funding and recovery plan (CFRP) on the other hand, is a tool to mitigate the potential impacts generated by
situations of strong liquidity drainage; the possible strategies to be implemented for crisis management and the procedures
for obtaining sources of financing are defined; the actions to be taken are indicated with reference to any contingent situation
on the market and to internal causes within the Group, in order to identify and describe the actions to be implemented to deal
promptly and effectively with emergency situations. The CFRP specifies the criteria for identifying the state of crisis and defines
the roles and responsibilities of the actors called to intervene so that the appropriate measures can be taken immediately and
the necessary information flow is guaranteed to the corporate governance bodies and those of control. The CFRP is drawn up
in accordance with the Recovery Plan.

Liquidity reserves

The holding of liquid assets reserves is one of the main instruments for mitigating liquidity risk. Bank of Italy Circular 285 defines
the reference criteria to be followed for the identification and determination of liquid reserves, giving the banks the respon-
sibility to evaluate "limitations or uncertainties of any kind regarding the use of a financial instrument in the scope of liquidity
reserves, its neqgotiability and the determination of its value .

The reserves are registered in specific portfolios under the direct management of the Treasury Service, which is the function
in charge of the centralized management of the Group's liquidity risk. The calculation of the reserves excludes securities that,
although having liquidity characteristics, are registered in the Other portfolio, precisely because they are not subject to the
control of the Treasury unit and related to the operations performed by other units.

Short-term liquidity monitoring
The short-term liquidity monitoring aims to ensure the ability to meet expected or unexpected cash payment commitments
over the four-month time horizon’.

For this purpose, and consistently with the approved maximum tolerance threshold for liquidity, and therefore also with the

nature, objectives and operational complexity of the Nexi Group, the limits and early warning system is divided into two indi-

cators aimed to monitoring in a complementary way the sustainability of the short-term equilibrium, both in normal business

conditions (on going) and in stress scenarios:

» Cumulative net balance "critical bucket” referring to the period with the greatest drainage of liquidity, ie the day before
the charge of the Nexi Payments transaction;

» Minimum cumulative net balance, referred to the weekly analysis of the time buckets up to four months, on the basis of the
Bank of Italy liquidity scheme.

The Risk Management unit monitors, on a daily basis, the cumulative balance relating to the daily situation which, for the typical
operating methods of the Nexi Group, has been assessed as the most critical, and refers to the day before the charge of the Nexi
Payments transaction (which occurs on the 15th of the month and, if it is a public holiday, on the first following working day), in
order to allow a timely intervention in case the liquidity position is worsening.

In addition, the Nexi Group is part of the panel of national banks that participate in the weekly monitoring of short-term liquidity
(3-month time horizon) activated by the Bank of Italy. The survey consists of three schemes: the first one analyzes the "Maturity
Ladder" compiled on the basis of expected cash flows, distinguishing by type of counterparty. The main categories of funding
are detailed in the second report, "Main Deadlines’, while the third report, "Assetable assets’, analyzes the property portfolio
composition, distinguishing between eligible / non-eligible assets and registered / non-recognized assets. The reports "Matu-
rity Ladder" and "Assetable assets" are ordinarily weekly, while the "Principal Deadlines" report usually requires a monthly update,
to be carried out concurrently with the first report of each month.
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3. The reference time horizon for short-term liquidity can be up to 12 months, but for the Nexi Group the relevance is up to four months, since the aggregates with higher maturities
are residual and only concern securities in the portfolio of properties that are due to expire
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Liquidity monitoring is carried out both in a normal "going concern” business and in a stress scenario. The results of stress tests

are used to verify:

« the ability of the Group to cope autonomously (time to survival) with unforeseen liquidity crises in the first period in which they
occur and before launching structural measures aimed at modifying the structure of assets / liabilities;

« if the level of limits / early warning determines the maintenance of liquidity reserves such as to allow the Group to cope with
the initial period of systemic or idiosyncratic stress;

« the effectiveness of management in the event of a crisis.

Structural liquidity monitoring
As mentioned above, for the Nexi Group almost all of the items are sold out over the four-month time horizon (with the excep-
tion of securities in the proprietary portfolio) and, therefore, it is not possible to monitor medium / long-term liquidity.

Therefore, it is more appropriate to evaluate the structural liquidity, understood as the financial equilibrium of the Group's struc-
ture, which is monitored on a quarterly basis using the Basel Ill Net Stable Funding Ratio as part of the Risk Appetite Framework.

Intra-day liquidity monitoring
The intraday liquidity risk derives from the temporal mismatch between payment flows (with settlement in daily cut-off or fol-
lowing provisions received from customers) and incoming flows (the latter being requlated to various intraday cut-offs).

To mitigate this risk, the Supervisory Authorities provide, inter alia, that the banks:

« have an appropriate intra-day reserve (consisting of eligible and easily liquidated securities) to meet their obligations (specific
risk), or a sudden illiquidity of the markets or the bankruptcy of a counterparty of the settlement system (systemic risk). To
this purpose, the Nexi Group holds, as an intraday reserve, government bonds and bank bonds eligible for an amount deemed
appropriate to the period’s specific operating needs, based on estimates of outgoing intraday flows;

« perform continuous monitoring and control of cash flows, providing reliable and timely forecasts of the aforementioned flows
within the individual working day. The cash flows monitoring and control, with an estimate of their performance within the
working day, is performed by the Treasury unit through a specific "Treasury Dashboard”, which reports the forecasts and then
the evidence of the aforementioned flows. The Dashboard also checks the ability to meet its commitments at various cut-off
deadlines with the available economic resources (stock in the management account, intra-day advances, etc.).

The Treasury unit also constantly monitors the liquidity situation on the account with the Central Bank in order to meet the
commitments deriving from the Target movements.

On a monthly basis, the Treasury unit also processes the indicators relating to intraday liquidity, in order to comply with the
provisions of the BCBS document "Monitoring tools for intraday liquidity management" of April 2013.

The TIT system

The liquidity risk governance and management tools used by the group include the TIT system (internal transfer of funds sys-
tem), introduced to comply with the provisions of Bank of Italy Circular no. 285 (title IV, chapter 6, section V). As the group’s only
bank, NEXIS.p.A. has used this system since 2012 and revises it annually.

Liquidity and risk appetite framework

The Risk Appetite Framework defines the level and type of risk that the Group is willing to bear in order to pursue its strategic
objectives, as defined in the Business Plan. The Risk Appetite Framework of the Nexi Group is divided into a selection of dimen-
sions, relevant for the Group and reflecting its operating reality.

With regard to liquidity, the metrics are as follows:

- Liquidity Coverage Ratio — LCR, i e, the ratio of liquid assets (HQLA - high quality liquid assets) to net cash flows in the 30
days of a very acute stress scenario;

« Net Stable Funding Ratio - NSFR, equal to the ratio between stable funding in relation to the composition of assets and
off-balance sheet transactions;

- Ratio between the minimum cumulative net balance "critical range"” and total assets, the ratio between the minimum
cumulative net balance (minimum weekly value of the quarter) and the total assets of the Group (last available data).

The framework defines parameters for each category that are the maximum risk limit the group intends to assume, the best risk
limit (risk target) and an early warning level (risk trigger), which when breached, triggers contingency plans and/or mitigation
actions to avoid reaching the risk limit.
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The liquidity risk tolerance threshold”, defined as the maximum risk exposure possible in a normal business situation (going
concern) integrated by a stress scenario, is the risk limit.

The risk limits associated with the three ratios are:

« Liquidity Coverage Ratio — LCR: 100%.
This ratio has been calculated assuming a severe stress scenario (combined idiosyncratic and market shock scenario simula-
tion) with a risk limit above the legal minimum®.
The group monitors the indicator using the monthly supervisory report, which requires the risk management unit to perform
own checks (consistency and performance) before the reporting unit sends it to Bank of Italy.

 Net Stable Funding Ratio: 100%.
The indicator is monitored starting from the detail items of assets and liabilities and of off-balance sheet items at the consol-
idation area level, integrated with data from other sources (eg LCR reporting data, data supplied by other Group companies
and of the scope of consolidation companies) for items that require further detail (eg in terms of duration, stability, type) with
respect to that shown in the balance sheet.

« Ratio of the cumulative net minimum balance and total assets: 7%.
The cumulated net minimum balance is the minimum amount recorded each quarter of the smaller liquidity situation com-
pared to a normal business scenario.
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4. See Bank of Italy Circular no. 285 and subsequent amendments

5. The LCR indicator became applicable in October 2015 with a minimum threshold of 60%, which increases to 70% from January 2016, 80% from January 2017 and 100% from
January 2018
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QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

1. BREAKDOWN OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY RESIDUAL CONTRACTUAL

MATURITY

CURRENCY: EURO

ON
CAPTIONS/TIME CLASSES DEMAND

FROM
1TO7
DAYS

FROM
7TO15
DAYS

FROM
15 DAYS
TO1
MONTH

FROM
1TO3
MONTHS

FROM3
TO

6 MON-
THS

FROM 6
MONTHS
TO
1YEAR

FROM
1TOS
YEARS

AFTERS
YEARS

OPEN
TERM
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Assets

A Government bonds -

20,015
1

148,815
3

—

1,624

40,119
209,984

1,273

60,870
42,805

105,000
957

20,819

2,253

2,460
53,228

2,117,020
15,672

98,105

140,131
1,840

179,264
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A.2 Other debt instruments 4,504
A3 OEIC units 20,934
A.4 Financing

- banks 301,331

- customers 2,169,790
Liabilities
B.1 Deposits and current

accounts

- banks 1,401,430

- customers 6,110,383
B.2 Debt instruments -
B.3 Other liabilities 644,407

20,014

15,298

108,622

224,764

80,913

14,710
174
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Off-statement of financial
position transactions

C.1Financial derivatives with
exchange of principal

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.2 Financial derivatives
without exchange of
principal

- long positions 4
- short positions -

C.3 Deposits and financing to
be received

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.4 Irrevocable commitments
to disburse funds

- long positions -
- short positions -
C.5 Financial guarantees issued -

C.6 Financial guarantees
received -

C.7 Credit derivatives with
exchange of principal

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.8 Credit derivatives without
exchange of principal

- long positions -

- short positions -

70,516
559,697

7,083
7,083

408,967

15

5,482
81

45,952
46,009

485
37

76,072
653

35,738
35,622
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CURRENCY: OTHER

ON
CAPTIONS/TIME CLASSES DEMAND

FROM
1TO?7
DAYS

FROM
7TO15
DAYS

FROM
15 DAYS
TO1
MONTH

FROM
1TO3
MONTHS

FROM
1TOS
YEARS

AFTER
5
YEARS

OPEN
TERM
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Assets
Al Government bonds -

A.2 Other debt instruments -

A.3 OEIC units -
A4 Financing

- banks 78,094

- customers 15,160
'L.i.ablllties
B.1 Deposits and current

accounts

- banks 76,849

- customers 820,001
B.2 Debt instruments -
B.3 Other liabilities 1,092

n

1,100

663

125
509

1
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Off-statement of financial
position transactions

C.1Financial derivatives with
exchange of principal

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.2 Financial derivatives
without exchange of
principal

- long positions -
- short positions 48

C.3 Deposits and financing to
be received

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.4 Irrevocable commitments
to disburse funds

- long positions -
- short positions -
C.5 Financial guarantees issued -

C.6 Financial guarantees
received -

C.7 Credit derivatives with
exchange of principal

- long positions -
- short positions -

C.8 Credit derivatives without
exchange of principal

- long positions -

- short positions -

427,802
32,435

406,131

80
5,391

FROM 6

FROM MONTHS
3TO6 TO
MONTHS 1YEAR
- 178

45,037 -
45,037 -
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1.4 BANKING GROUP — OPERATIONAL RISKS

A. General aspects, management and measurement of operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from errors or shortfalls in internal procedures, human resources or systems and
external factors, including judicial risk. This risk also comprises IT risk, legal risk, model risk and the risk related to financial trans-
actions including those related to market risk.

Operational risk is characterised by cause-effect relationships whereby if one or more trigger events occur, this leads to a detri-
mental event which is directly linked to an economic loss. Therefore, an operating loss is the result of negative economic effects
created by operating events, recorded by the bank and that affect its profit or loss.

The main characteristic of operational risks is that they are inherent to the group’s business and are, therefore, unavoidable
and omnipresent. This implies that they are inherent in the decision to perform a certain activity and, in general, the bank’s
operations rather than, in the case of the other risks, the group intentionally takes credit or financial positions based on its risk
appetite to achieve its target risk/return profile. In order to measure the bank’s exposure to operational risks and the effects of
any mitigating actions, it has to combine the qualitative and quantitative information.

In this context, the Internal Control System must be the main safequard for the prevention and containment of these risks. In
particular, company policies and procedures must be approved and implemented to define, identify, assess and manage expo-
sure to operational risks, including those deriving from events characterized by low frequency and particular seriousness.

The Operational Risk Management Framework

The operational risk governance framework consists of a structured set of processes, functions and resources for the identifi-
cation, assessment and control of operational risks, with particular regard to the objective of ensuring effective prevention and
mitigation measures for risks themselves.

Elements of this framework, in line with the provisions of prudential supervisory requlations, are:

- the assessment of exposure to operational risks as a process that is tightly integrated into the risk management process in all
company activities;

- the formalization and attribution of responsibilities;

- the reporting system.

Considering the Group's specific activities, mainly related to the offer to the financial system of high technological innovation
services and payment systems, Operational Risk is the main risk to which the Group is exposed.

In addition to what is required in terms of capital requirement, the Nexi Group has activated a specific process aimed to fully
analyzing the operational risks to which it is exposed, identifying any areas of vulnerability and setting up adequate management
and control systems. The framework consists of four basic elements:

- Identification;

- Measurement;

- Monitoring and Reporting;

- Management.

The Identification of operational risks takes place through the collection of operational risk information and the coherent
and coordinated processing of all relevant sources of information; the objective pursued is the establishment of a complete
information base. The necessary information is internal loss data with all the information relevant for management purposes
and the subjective assessments acquired through the self-assessment of risks and controls. The collection of this information
takes place on the basis of specific classification models, designed to guarantee a homogeneous representation of the data. The

Identification phase consists of the following processes:

- Collection of operational loss data. The Nexi Group has set up a system for the collection and storage of the Operational Risks
data, including significant losses and the related recoveries, which are suitable for conferring effectiveness on the manage-
ment system. The Loss Data Collection (LDC) process of the Nexi Group provides for the collection of all the injurious events
of the processes of each business line for all Group companies.

- Identification and assessment of operational risks. The Nexi Group has implemented a system to identify potential losses relat-
ed to operational events that, regardless of past events, present a plausible probability of occurrence. The process of identify-
ing and assessing Operational Risks is carried out during:

a. Design of new services / products, identifying the possible types of injurious events related to the initiative, their possible
impact in terms of project and / or product / service and the objectives and actions of control and mitigation to be;

b. Identification and evaluation of the coherence of the risk profile of the Most Significant Transactions (MRO) with the risk
appetite defined by the Group (Risk Appetite Framework, "RAF");
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c. Periodic assessment of the operational risk profile of existing processes: at least once a year, an overall assessment is carried
out, for the relevant business segments, of the level of exposure to Operational Risks through the Risk Control Self-Assess-
ment process (RCSA);

d. Periodic assessment of the IT risk for the best qualification of operational risk by identifying the specific risks inherent in the
ICT sphere and the indication, based on the evidence of the most critical areas, of countermeasures aimed to improve the
risk profile.

Measurement is the risk assessment activity aimed to quantify the capital to be allocated for operational risk. Regulatory capital
corresponds to the minimum capital required by the Supervision to meet operational risks. Economic capital, on the other hand,
is the capital actually needed to meet the expected and unexpected losses induced by the risks themselves. The measurement
of economic and requlatory capital should converge towards a homogeneous unit of measure. Currently the Nexi Group cal-
culates regulatory capital for Operational Risks using the basic method, in consideration of the degree of compliance with the
minimum qualitative-quantitative requirements defined for access to the most advanced models (standardized and advanced).
In addition, for a better assessment of the exposure to risks, the Nexi Group has implemented a quantitative process for assess-
ing operational risks by which expected and unexpected losses are calculated on various percentiles.

The Monitoring phase of the risk profile has the objective of defining a set of risk indicators that allow the reporting of any crit-
ical issues and / or anomalies by means of an adequate reporting system. These indicators include both the specific qualitative
and quantitative indicators relating to the expected operationality within the Risk Appetite Framework, described above, and
the operational risk indicators in the field of e-money, aimed at monitoring the most significant operational risks at which Nexi
Payments is exposed to, as well as the indicators of conduct risk, defined as the current or prospective risk of losses resulting
from inappropriate supply of financial services, including cases of inadequate conduct (fraud / negligence) by the bank.

The Reporting phase aims to ensure timely and appropriate communication to support the management decisions of the

corporate bodies and the organizational functions. Reporting includes the results of the following activities:

- identification and monitoring of loss events identified through the Loss Data Collection (LDC) and Risk Control Self Assess-
ment (RCSA) processes;

- the assessment of operational risks to which the Group processes are exposed (eg evaluation of New Products / Services,
Transactions of Greater Surveys);

- the definition of action plans undertaken in the management and mitigation of risks, with indication of the time horizon of the
plan, of the contact person responsible for managing the same, as well as any supporting operating documents;

- any deviations from the monitoring indicators (RAF, specific indicators of e-money, indicators for monitoring risk measure-
ment and control systems).

Planning and development of the controls are subjected to follow-up processes through their inclusion in a dashboard and are
monitored by the control units (risk management, compliance and internal audit), which check all the actions taken to improve
the internal controls. The findings of the monitoring process are assembled once a quarter and communicated regularly to the
internal bodies to provide a complete picture of the main critical issues the group is exposed to and the status of the remedial
actions taken or to be implemented, and then sent to Bank of Italy.

The Operational Risk Management phase aims to continuously evaluate risk control and reduction strategies, deciding, based
on the nature and extent of the risk, whether to take it, implement mitigation policies or transfer it to third parties, in relation to
the risk propensity expressed by the company's top management. The decision-making process of choosing the most appro-
priate and cost-effective ways to manage risk is based on a rational, conscious, targeted and objective cost / benefit analysis.

A fundamental operational risk mitigation tool is the business continuity and disaster recovery plan, which is revised annually as
required by the supervisory instructions about internal controls. Bank of Italy extended the concept of business continuity to
all critical “business processes”, not just the technological component but all the factors (human resources, logistics, essential
services, etc.) that assist the mitigation of operational risks in new crisis situations.

Business continuity includes all those measures designed to reduce to an acceptable level the damage caused by accidents or
catastrophes that could directly or indirectly affect the bank while the disaster recovery plan sets out the technical and organ-
isational methods to resolve events that cause the unavailability of data processing centres. It is designed to ensure that the
important IT procedures can continue to be performed at alternative sites.

Finally, a further mitigation tool, in particular with regard to unexpected risks, consists of insurance coverage, that the Nexi
Group uses for certain areas of risk that are inherent to the business and to cases (typically low frequency and high impact) that
are not effectively mitigated with the sole prevention of operational line controls.
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Part F - Equity

SECTION 1 - Consolidated equity
B. QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURE

B.1 EQUITY: BREAKDOWN BY TYPE OF ENTITY

ELIMINATIONS AND
INSURANCE OTHER CONSOLIDATION
CAPTIONS/AMOUNTS BANKING GROUP COMPANIES COMPANIES ADJUSTMENTS TOTAL
sharecap|ta| 442”........442”
Share premium 148,314 148,314
Reserves
- income-related 1,683,188 1,683,188
a) legal R
b) statutory -
c) treasury shares -
d) other 10,848 10,848
- other -
Equity instruments -
(Treasury shares) -32 -32
Valuation reserves 90,828 90,828

- Available-for-sale financial
assets 45,827 45,827

- Property, equipment and
investment property -

- Intangible assets -

- Hedges of investments in
foreign operations -

- Cash flow hedges _
- Exchange rate gains (losses) _

- Non-current assets held for

sale -
- Net actuarial losses on defi-

ned benefit pension plans -1,221 -1,221
- Share of valuation reserves

of equity-accounted

investees )
- Special revaluation laws 46,222 46,222

Group profit (loss) for the year
and NCI 78,466 78,466

2,055,823 2,055,823
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B.2 FAIR VALUE RESERVES (AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS): BREAKDOWN

ELIMINATIONS AND
INSURANCE CONSOLIDATION
BANKING GROUP COMPANIES OTHER COMPANIES ADJUSTMENTS TOTAL

000 000000000000000000008 ©00000000000000000000008 000000000000 00000000008 0000000000000 000000000s s00cesece00sRs00 s E 0 be

FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR FAIR
VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE VALUE
ASSETS/AMOUNTS GAINS  LOSSES GAINS  LOSSES GAINS  LOSSES GAINS  LOSSES GAINS  LOSSES

0000 00000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0cscsscsscsscsscesscscsscssscce

1. Debt instruments 14,107 -189 14,107 -189
2. Equity instruments 31,476 31,476 -
3. OEIC units 433 433 -

4. Financing - -

31.12.2017 46,016 -189 = = = = = = 46,016 -189

31.12.2016 22,770 = = = = = = = 20,770 =

0000 00000000000000000000000 00000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000s0cscsscsscsscsscesscscsscssscce

B.3 FAIR VALUE RESERVES (AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS): CHANGES

DEBT EQUITY
INSTRUMENTS INSTRUMENTS OEIC UNITS FINANCING

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

1. Opening balance 17,702 3,178 - -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

2. Increases
2.1 Fair value gains - - 433

2.2 Reclassification of fair value losses to profit or
loss: - - -

due to impairment - - .
on sale - - _
2.3 Otherincreases - 28,298 -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

3. Decreases
3.1 Fair value losses
3.2 Impairment losses - - -
3.3 Reclassification of fair value gains to profit or
loss: on sale - - -
3.4 Other decreases 3,784 - -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

4. Closing balance 13,918 31,476 433 -

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000crscscssssesccsscnsnsesce

B.4 ACTUARIAL RESERVES: CHANGES

The actuarial reserve solely refers to the Italian post-employment benefits vested before 1 January2006. As there are no plan
assets, the reserve only includes the actuarial gains or losses on the liabilitywhich changed as follows:

ACTUARIAL RESERVE

secececesecscscsesrsecscscsesesscscsesesecnne

INCLUDING

GROSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ACTUARIAL INCOME THE OWNERS OF
LOSSES TAXES TOTAL THE PARENT

Opening balance -1,636 450 -1,186 -1,195
Actual gains
Actuarial losses -51 16 -35 -46

Closing balance -1,687 465 -1,221 -1,241

00 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000scscsesesesssosnsnsnsns o
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Part G - Business combinations regarding companies or divisions

SECTION 1-Transactions achieved during the year

Acquisition of Bassilichi Group
On 3 July 2017 there has been the closing of the transaction related to the acquisition of 98,2% of Bassilichi S.p.A. by Nexi S.p.A..
Following this transaction Nexi S.p.A. has obtained the control of the Bassilichi Group.

As the transaction meets the definition of a business combination, it has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3: Busi-
ness Combinations. This standard defines a business combination as “a transaction or other event in which an acquirer obtains
control of one or more businesses’, and provides for the consolidation of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired company at their fair value at the acquisition date, including any identifiable intangible assets not recognized in the
acquired company’s balance sheet, and the assessment of goodwill as the difference between the aggregation cost and the
fair value net of assets, liabilities and identified contingent liabilities. This Purchase Price allocation process has to be performed
during the “measurement period” that cannot be longer than one year from the date of acquisition.

At the year end the purchase price allocation process has been completed and the goodwill arising from this business combi-
nation amount to € 138.0 million.

After the business combination of Bassilichi Group, Nexi S.p.A. has acquired the minorities in Bassilichi S.p.A. and the minorities
of Consorzio Triveneto (subsidiary of Bassilichi S.p.A.). As a result of these transaction, Nexi Group holds 100% of Bassilichi S.p.A.
and 100% of Consorzio Triveneto. These transactions, that result in change in ownership interest while retaining control, based
on IFRS 10, have to be accounted for as transactions with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. As a result no change
in the carrying amounts of assets (including goodwill) or liability has been recognized and the goodwill relate to the minority
interest acquired, amounting to Euro 7 million, has been recognized in equity.

Acquisition of MPS and DB business units

On May 31st 2017 Nexi Payments S.p.A. completed the acquisition of Deutsche Bank AG Cards Acquiring business and on June
30th 2017 Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena S.p.A. Acquiring Services (“MPS and DB acquiring businesses”).

The two acquisitions of MPS and DB acquiring businesses are very similar in their nature. Substantially, Nexi Payments purchased
relationships with merchants as direct customers, both in acquiring and in POS terminals servicing, earning the power to take

relevant decisions, in terms of pricing and eventual closure of relationship.

As the transactions meet the definition of a business combination, they have been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3:
Business Combinations as above descripted.

At the year end the purchase price allocation process has not been completed and it will be completed between 2018 half year.

The goodwill arising from these business combinations amounts to Euro 558.5 million.
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Other information
As requested by IFRS 3, we report below, for the above descripted 2017 business combinations, pro-forma figures of revenue and
costs as if the transactions would have been made at the begin of 2017

OTHER INFORMATION
NEXI GROUP 2017
WITHOUT THE
CONTRIBUTION NEXI

OF NEW BUSINESS MPS AND NEXI MPS AND BASSILICHI PAYMENTS

(MPS/DB BOOKS/ DB BOOKS BASSILICHI GROUP DB HI 2017 H12017 PROFORMA
DESCRIPTION (€'000) BASSILICHI) H2 2017 H2 2017 2017 PROFORMA  PROFORMA 2017
Operating revenue 734,345 44,702 76,898 855,945 36,821 57,100 949,866
Operating costs
(net of DA) -464,961 -18,426 -68,615  -552,001 -14,159 -55,416 -621,577
Operating Profit 269,384 26,277 8,283 303,944 22,662 1,684 328,290
Depreciation
and amortization -60,277 -588 -6,959 -67,824 -200 -12,822 -80,846
Share of gains/losses
of investees 22,065 - 2,307 24,372 - -2,559 21,813
Non recurring/
extraordinary items -154,420 - -2,752 -157172 - 4,702 152,470
Pre-tax profit 76,753 25,689 879 103,320 22,461 -8,995 116,787
Income taxes -14,860 -8,502 -1,492 -24,855 -7434 -6,270 -38,559
Net profit 61,892 17,187 -614 78,466 15,027 15,265 78,228
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- Business combinations after the reporting period

The Group did not carry out any business combinations in the first few mounts of 2018.

- Retrospective adjustments

Not applicable.
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Part H - Related party transactions

1. Fees of key management personnel

The fees paid by the Nexi to its directors and key management personnel as defined in part 2, are set out below.

31.12.2017
Directors 1,619
Other key management personnel and members of supervisory committees 12,520

Total 14,139
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2. Related party transactions

The aim of IAS 24 (Related party transactions) is to ensure that an entity’s financial statements include the additional disclosures necessary

to understand whether its financial position and performance may be altered by related party transactions and balances.

Based on this standard, applied to its organisational and governance structure, Nexi Group identified the following related parties:

a) parties that controls Nexi Group, directly orindirectly, also through subsidiaries, trustees or through a third party, even jointly or possesses
aninterest in Nexi which enables it to exercise significant influence;

b) entities that are controlled or jointly controlled by the above indicated parties;

¢) entities that are controlled or jointly controlled or under the significant influence of Nexi;

d) Key Managers of Nexi Group or its parent and entities in which they exercises control, joint control or significant influence;

e)is a close relative of a natural person included in letters a) or d) above;

f)is a collective or individual Italian or foreign supplementary pension fund established for the employees of Nexi Group or of any other
entity related.

The effects of transactions carried out with the related parties identified above are summarised in the following table.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (€000)
DIRECTORS, MANAGERS
OTHER RELATED AND MEMBERS OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CAPTION TOTAL PARTIES SUPERVISORY BODIES
60Loansandrece|vab|esw|thbanks835]‘]6 teeeseneattttttinnatttettnnannes
70. Loans and receivables with customers 2,910,913 -
120. Property, equipment and investment property 217,658 921
130. Intangible assets 1,889,309 90
160. Other assets 648,390 -
1oouetobanks1692051 teeeseneattttttinnatttettnnannes
20. Due to customers 7,789,484 625,705 203
100. Other liabilities 919,308 793
10|nterestands|m||armcome72732160 .
20. Interest and similar expense 33,718
40. Fee and commission income 1,078,507
50. Fee and commission expense 592,824
180. Administrative expenses 757,582 10,141 14,139
220. Other operating income, net 377,574 85
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Centralised transactions with Nexi group companies are usually governed by specific agreements that, while aiming at optimis-
ing synergies, economies of scale and purpose and to use centers of excellence, make reference to objective parameters that
are constant over time, characterised by transparency and substantial fairness. Transfer pricing is defined and formalised based
on parameters that account for the actual use of the service by each end user.

Other transactions with related parties that are part of the bank’s normal business operations, are usually take part at market
conditions.
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Part | - Share-based payments

None.

Part L - Segment reporting

Segment reporting complies with IFRS 8, which did not lead to substantial changes in the identification of the operating seg-
ments and reporting to management when introduced, compared to the previous requirements of IAS 14.

Segment reporting is consistent with the group's organisational, in line with its business plan and as required by its regulation.

Reporting by geographical segments is not included as the group operates only in Italy and the breakdown of assets, liabilities,
revenue and costs by geographical segment was meaningless.

Reporting by business segment includes, in order of importance, the segments that may be identified within the group's orga-
nisation and specifically:

E-money

It comprises Nexi and Help Line and its integrated activities are as follows:
- financial and operating services relating to the issue and acceptance of payment cards and related management services;
-payment card terminal management (POS and ATM).

Payments

It comprises an operating division of the parent, which carries out the following integrated activities:

- banking payment services and related back-office services for banks, companies and bodies;

- interbank payment systems for companies and bodies and related management services and e-banking;
- IT and computer-based services relating to payment systems.

Securities services

It comprises an operating division of the parent, which carries out the following integrated activities:
- securities custody and administration services;

- fund services;

- investment and investment-related services for qualified parties and professional customers.

Application outsourcing and innovative services

It comprises Oasi, which carries out the following integrated activities:
- IT systems for supervisory reporting and management systems;

- anti-money laundering, safety and internal control systems;

- development and provision of training courses.

Other group activities

This segment manages the activities that are not carried out by the parent's business units. Specifically:
- credit and financial activities for the relevant business segments;

- property management;

- equity investment management;

- group management and coordination;

- other activities of the consolidated companies.
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A.1Breakdown by business segment: income statement
The results of operations for 2017 of each of the above business segments are set out below.

NEXI GROUP: SEGMENT REPORTING

CONSO-
OTHER LIDATION CONSOLIDATED
SECURITIES APPLICATION GROUP ADJUST- FINANCIAL
YTD Dec, 31 (€/000) E-MONEY PAYMENTS SERVICES OUTSOURCING BASSILICHI ACTIVITIES MENT STATEMENTS
Net fee and commission
income 560,518 89,409 60,797 27,527 92,901 1,286 -20,735 811,702
Net interest income -12,420 2,409 8,348 -6 - 1,174 41,481 219 38,857
Net trading/hedging income - 553 - 2,070 - - 3,230 - 4,748
Dividends from equity
investments and AFS 248 - - - 24 366 - 639
Operating revenue 547,794 91,818 71,215 27,521 91,751 46,362 -20,517 855,945
Payroll and related costs - 59,851 - 13,151 - 17,485 -7,502 -21,721 - 52,141 5 -171,846
Production costs - 89,046 -10,393 - 4,481 -3,478 -19926 -413 16,541 - 111,196
ICT costs -125,322 -26,338 -18,997 -4,802 -35000 -10,0m 2,328 - 218,140
General expenses - 40,375 -2,535 -726 -2,008 - 6,821 -19,907 24,202 - 48,170
Administrative expenses - 314,595 -52,417 -41,688 -17,790 -83,468 -82,471 43,077 - 549,352
Other net operating expenses/
income 4,878 -8,912 -10,091 -22 - 41,828 -22,635 5,046
Net accruals for risks and
charges -7302 359 - 631 -167 - 46 - - 7,696

Operating costs (net of DA) - 317,019 -60,970 -52,410 -17979 -83,468 -40,597 20,442

EBITDA 230,776 30,848 18,804 9,542 8,283 5,765 -75 ,944
Depreciation and amortization - 35,750 -2,975 -2,824 - 5,501 - 6,959 -3,239 -53 - 57,301
Operating profit 195,026 27,874 15,981 4,041 1,325 2,526 -128 246,643
Depr.&Amort.

(customer contract) -10,523
Share of gains/losses of

investees 24,372
Non recurring/extraordinary items -157,172

Pre-tax profit
Income taxes - 24,855
Profit to non-controlling interests 626

79,092
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Net interest income (expense) is the business segments' contribution to the group's net interest income resulting from the sum
of realised interest income and expense recognised in the accounting system and unrealised interest calculated as part of the
planning and control system, using the cash-pooling method based on internal transfer rates.

A breakdown of operating revenue arising from transactions with third party customers and other business segments of the
same entity by operating segment is set out below for better disclosure purposes.

2017 INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: OPERATING REVENUE

SECURITIES ~ APPLICATION g;(l;lﬁl; GROUP
YTD Dec, 31 (€/000) E-MONEY PAYMENTS SERVICES OUTSOURCING BASSILICHI ACTIVITIES TOTAL
E-money 3,318 - 940 14,853 21,355 40,466
Payments -1,897 - - - - -1,897
Securities Services - - 653 - - 653
Application Outsourcing 125 51 - - 315 491
Bassilichi 18 - - - 338 456
Other group activities -20,337 - - 1,023 -338 -19,652
Third party customers 569,785 88,450 71,215 24,904 77,236 24,354 855,945

Total operating revenue 547,794 91,818 71,215 27,521 91,751 46,362 876,462
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Reconciliation between the management accounts and the consolidated financial
statements

Segment reporting is consistent with the group planning and control system's principles and operating procedures defined by
the central planning and control (P&C) department and approved by group management, whose aim is to ensure consistent
management reporting among the various group operations and structures.

This system is based on the general criteria of tracing management data and reports to the general accounting records. Con-
sidering the characteristics of the parent, which is required to prepare consolidated financial statements, the group's manage-
ment account income statement is presented with the general classification used in the financial statements of banking groups.

In order to improve management reporting of the group's operations and performance, as an exception to the above-men-
tioned general criteria of tracing management figures to those of the separate and consolidated financial statements, the P&C
system sets out certain grouping rules for data that are dissimilar from those of the general accounts. The main differences in
data grouping relate to the following:

« income classified in Other operating income/expense (caption 220 of the consolidated financial statements), relating to the
provision of services (non-banking/financial) that are part of the operating segments' core business, is presented under Net
fee and commission income and revenue from services in the management accounts;

« expense classified in Other operating income/expense (caption 220 of the consolidated financial statements), relating to
royalties and/or selling costs, is presented under Net fee and commission income and revenue from services in the manage-
ment accounts;

« income classified in Other operating income/expense (caption 220 of the consolidated financial statements), relating to the
recovery of expenses, is presented in the caption to which the expense refers in the management accounts;

e income classified in Fee and commission income (caption 40 of the consolidated financial statements), relating to items
subject to IFRIC 13, which establishes the accounting treatment to be applied by entities that grant awards under customer
loyalty programmes relating to the purchase of goods or services and requires that the consideration for the obligation arising
from granting the award be separated from sales revenue and deferred up to when the obligation with the customers is settled,
is presented under Production costs in the management accounts;

« gains and losses relating to impairment losses/reversals of impairment losses on the equity portion of the AFS and HTM por-
tfolios and classified in Net impairment losses (captions 130b and 130c of the consolidated financial statements) are presented
under Gains (losses) on equity investments and AFS financial assets in the management accounts;

« profits relating to the bond portion of the AFS portfolio and classified in Profit (loss) on sale or repurchase of AFS financial assets
(caption 100b of the consolidated financial statements) are presented under Profit on securities and exchange rate gains in the
management accounts;

« income and expense relating to prior year items, classified in the caption that generated them in the financial statements of
banks and financial companies, are presented under Other operating income (expense) in the management accounts;

« dividends collected on equity instruments included in the trading portfolio, classified in Dividends and similar income (caption
70 of the consolidated financial statements), are presented under Profits on securities and exchange rate gains in the mana-
gement accounts;

« fees paid to directors and statutory auditors, classified in Personnel expense (caption 180a of the consolidated financial state-
ments), are presented under General expenses in the management accounts; -

« gains and losses relating to interest rate hedging derivatives are presented under Net interest income (expense) in the mana-
gement accounts even when they do not formally meet the requirements for recognition as such and are, therefore, classified
in Net trading income (expense) in the consolidated financial statements (caption 80);

« accruals relating to the remuneration of employees, classified in Net accruals to provisions for risks and charges (caption 190 of
the Consolidated financial statements), are presented under Personnel expense in the management accounts;

« consolidation entries relating to dividends distributed by non-group companies that are accounted for using the equity
method, classified in Dividends and similar income (caption 70 of the consolidated financial statements), are presented under
Gains (losses) on equity investments and AFS financial assets in the management accounts;

« income and expense that, based on supporting evidence, relate to extraordinary and/or non-recurring events for the Nexi
Group are presented under Other items in the management accounts, even if they are classified in other captions in the ge-
neral accounting system;

« other administrative expenses (caption 180b of the consolidated financial statements) are classified as expenses relating to the
production of offered services, ITC service costs or general expenses and presented in the related caption of the management
accounts, in order that the group companies present operating costs consistently.

The group's income statement included in the management accounts is set out below, with a reconciliation of its captions to
those of the consolidated financial statements:
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2017 INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECONCILIATION
(CONS. F/s- CONS. FINANCIAL
MANAGERIAL INCOME MANAGEMENT MNGMT. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT CAPTION (7D Dec, 31 (€/000) ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS) STATEMENTS CAPTION
Netfeeandcomm|ss|on.ncome811702326019"435683”60”
Net interest income 38,857 157 39,014 30
Net trading/hedging income 4,748 16 4,763 80-90
Dividends from equity investments and AFS 639 855 1,494 70
Payroll and related costs -171,846 - 90,003 - 261,849 180a
Other administrative expenses -377506 - 118,227 - 495,733 180b
Admm.strat.veexpenses-549,352-203,230"-757,532”sumn
Other net operating expenses/income 5,046 372,528 377,574 220
Net accruals for risks and charges -7.696 3,523 -4173 130-190

Operating costs

(net of depreciation and amortization) SEz Al LZp:2y Sebadil

EBITDA 303,944 -157,171 146,773

Depreciation and amortization - 57,301 -10,523 - 67,824 200-210
Operating proﬁt 246,643 - 99,870 146,773 sum
Amortization customer contract -10,523 10,523 - other item
Share of gains/losses of investees 24,372 - 24,372 100-240-270
Non recurring/extraordinary items -157172 157172 - other item
Pre-tax profit 103,320 - 103,321 sum
Income taxes - 24,855 - - 24,855 290
Profit to non-controlling interests 626 - 626 330
Net profit 79,092 - 79,092 sum
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A.2 BREAKDOWN BY BUSINESS SEGMENT: STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED
APPLICATION SECURITIES OTHER GROUP CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
} ) E-MONEY PAYMENTS OUTSOURCING SERVICES ACTIVITIES ADJUSTMENTS STATEMENTS
€000
Assets 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Loans and
receivables with
banks 98,727 11,523 - - 1122 408 136,245 231,753 658950 507624 -59928  -3632 8516 747676
Loans and
receivables with .
customers 2,541,292 2385135 3,509 26,132 - - 143642 164114 1945316 1389901 1,722,846 -1120,752 2910913 2,844,529
Financial assets 83,244 47583 - - - - 16,268 11,445 2,633,369 3,328,010 - - 2,732,881 3,387,038
Equity investments 1,890 - - - - - 1,250 1,250 1,793,451 1,626,362 -1,784,488 -1,617507 12,02 10,05
CONSOLIDATED
APPLICATION SECURITIES OTHER GROUP CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
; ) E-MONEY PAYMENTS OUTSOURCING SERVICES ACTIVITIES ADJUSTMENTS STATEMENTS
€000
Liabilities 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Due to banks 2,320,980 1,587,659 - - - - 89,343 70,559 1,004,573 1,029,648 -1,722,846 -1720,752 1,692,051 1567114

Due to customers 43549 30850 798,619 826,258 - - 6,276,852 5348106 729906 53759 -59442  -3632 7789484 6,255,341
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REPORT OF THE
AUDITING COMPANY

2017



(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Independent auditors’ report pursuant to article 14 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010 and article 10
of Regulation (EU) no. 537 of 16 April 2014

To the shareholders of
Nexi S.p.A.

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Nexi Group (the
“Group”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
the income statement and statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity

and cash flows for the year then ended and notes thereto, which include a summary of
the significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Nexi Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by the European Union and the
Italian regulations implementing article 43 of Legislative decree no. 136/15.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA
Italia). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section
of our report. We are independent of Nexi S.p.A. (the “Company”) in accordance with
the ethics and independence rules and standards applicable in